Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

THURSDAY, 3RD FEBRUARY, 2011 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Khan (Chair), Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Bloch,
Butcher and Gorrie

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 15 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the matter
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -10)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 2 November
2010.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS, LETTINGS AND HOMELESSNESS SERVICES RE-
INSPECTION - UPDATE

Report of the Assistant Director, Strategic and Community Housing Service, to
comply with the Audit Committee request from November 2010 which requested an
action plan which shows how the Strategic and Community Housing Service will be
taking the recommendations of the Audit Commission’s re-inspection of the Council’s
Housing Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness services which took place in the
summer of 2010 and to present the updated action plan that has been put into place
to ensure the Council meets the Audit Commission’s recommendations and findings.

TO FOLLOW

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2011/12 TO 2013/14
(PAGES 11 - 38)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to present the proposed Treasury
Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12 to 2013/14 for scrutiny prior to it being
presented to Council for final approval.

IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRS) - PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 39 - 44)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to inform the Committee on the
progress made in respect of the implementation of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and to note the ongoing actions to secure full implementation.
EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 45 - 46)

Report of Grant Thornton.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2010/11 (PAGES 47 - 66)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to inform the Committee of the
external audit plan for 2010/11 proposed by Grant Thornton and to agree the audit
fees.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (PAGES 67 - 86)

Report of the Director of Corporate resources to receive the Annual Audit Letter for
2009/10 from the Council’'s external auditors, Grant Thornton and to note the issues
raised and actions being taken.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2010/11 QUARTER 3 (PAGES 87 - 124)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the work undertaken during the third quarter by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the 2010/11 annual audit plan and reports issued for outstanding 2009/10
audits together with the responsive and housing benefit fraud investigation work. In
addition, to provide details of the work the Council’s personnel division has
undertaken in supporting disciplinary action taken across all departments by
respective council managers.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 3 2010/11 (PAGES 125 - 130)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the current position on compliance with the corporate risk management policy for the
management of risk registers across the Council.

OFFICE OF THE SURVEILLANCE COMMISSIONERS (OSC) INSPECTION
(PAGES 131 - 144)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform Members of the
inspection visit made to Haringey by the Assistant Surveillance Commissioner in
November 2010 and to inform Members of the recommendations made by the OSC
and the Council’s response in order to ensure these are appropriately addressed.
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday, 19™ April, at 7.30pm.

Ken Pryor Helen Chapman

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Committee Coordinator
Services Tel: 020 8489 2615

5" Floor Fax: 020 8489 2660

River Park House Email: Helen.Chapman@haringey.gov.uk
225 High Road

London N22 8HQ Wednesday, 26" January 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

Councillors Khan (Chair), Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Butcher and Gorrie

Apologies Councillor Bloch
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC45.| APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Bloch. Apologies for
lateness were received from Clir Amin.

PRAC46. URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRAC47.. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRAC48.| MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2010 be
approved and signed by the Chair.

PRAC49. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRACS50.| AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton, presented the audit progress report and
highlighted the key issues. It was reported that the accounts had been
signed off and an unqualified opinion had been given. A review of the
restated balance sheet under IFRS had been agreed as preparation for
the IFRS accounts 2010/11 and the auditors were working with
management on areas of focus for Value for Money audit work in
2010/11, following the cessation of the CAA regime.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC51.| VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT

Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton, introduced the report on Value for Money
2009/10. With the abolition of the CAA regime, scores were no longer




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

provided in respect of value for money; the report set out the auditor’s
findings. The auditor’s view was that improvements had been made in a
number of areas, including data quality which was now felt to be
adequate after extensive work during the year. It was reported that the
value for money conclusion was therefore unqualified for 2009/10. It was
reported that workforce management arrangements were felt to be
robust, and that these arrangements would continue to be monitored as
this became an increasingly challenging area. An area identified for
improvement was the need to demonstrate a fully embedded approach
towards value for money, but Grant Thornton understood that work was
ongoing to address this. Key issues were set out at paragraph 1.5 of the
report, namely the Council’s response to funding pressures, the need to
address in-year challenges, the need for continued focus on the
production of the IFRS accounts and the continued emphasis on the
importance of data quality.

A question was raised about the generally positive assessment of the
Council’s financial planning arrangements, as the report did not seem to
foresee the budgetary pressures occurring in-year for 2010/11. Paul
Dossett, Grant Thornton, advised that they assessed the outcomes and
processes and that while there had been financial pressures, these had
been managed with no significant impact on the Council’s overall
financial health. It was reported that there were continued financial
pressures, but that these were recognised and assessed against the
relevant criteria; in 2010/11 there would be a significantly increased
focus on the Council’s financial resilience. Some Committee Members
noted that while there had been pressures, specifically in demand-led
budgets, it was positive to note that reserves had been reasonable to
accommodate these and issues had been identified at a very early
stage.

The Committee expressed some concern regarding procurement
processes, as Members were aware of examples where complying in full
with procurement processes appeared to lead to less value for money
for the Council. It was reported that the Council must aim to obtain the
best value for money in all its activities, and that how to manage such
situations depended on local judgement and the Council’s appetite for
risk.

Concern was expressed regarding the value of the report, and some
Members felt that the report contained little of actual substance;
questions were asked regarding why the report stated that the
governance systems were robust, when a review of governance was
being undertaken, and how workforce management could be assessed
as good, when 91 days was the average suspension period. Mr Dossett
reported that the report had been undertaken in line with requirements at
the time, and that more robust recommendations would have been made
had significant problems been identified. In response to the question
regarding the governance arrangements, it was reported that these had
been identified as positive overall, and that the subsequent decision to
undertake a review of the arrangements did not negate that finding. It
was also reported that while the average length of suspension may not




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

be positive, it formed only one of a number of aspects of the workforce
management arrangements which were assessed.

The Committee questioned the positive findings regarding sustainability,
in response to which Mr Hughes advised that sustainability had been
assessed in great detail in the previous year, and that Haringey had
compared favourably with other London boroughs in this regard; Grant
Thornton confirmed that they were comfortable with that assessment. In
response to a question regarding benefits administration and whether
further improvement was needed in this area, Mr Hughes advised that
benefits was a technical and complex area, and that there were issues
regarding data quality and processing of benefits nationally. It was
reported that since the previous year’s findings, which had contributed to
a qualified opinion, work was ongoing to improve this area, but there was
a time lag between the implementation of these improvements and the
results coming into effect.

The Chair advised that, subject to the comments made by the
Committee, his personal view was that Grant Thornton was an impartial
organisation, and that their findings were that significant improvements
had been made since the previous year in areas including data quality,
safeguarding and the Children’s Service. The Chair noted that despite
the CAA regime being abolished, there was still a requirement for good
audit practices and that it was a source of satisfaction that the Council
had this year received an unqualified value for money conclusion. It was
also noted that the auditor's report referred to the judgements on the
Council by other bodies, and the Chair highlighted the positive findings
of the report in respect of the strength of the Council’s financial planning,
the incorporation of the anticipated cuts into the revised budget, the
preparation for IFRS, the national recognition of the Council’'s customer
services and pensions service, the commendation for its procurement
practices, the Council’s acknowledged leadership in sustainability, the
Carbon Trust Standard award, development of the data quality strategy,
positive feedback from the JAR safeguarding follow-up report and
unannounced inspection, the sustainable community strategy, the best
practice work on Councillor Call for Action, the adequate challenge and
control provided by the Audit Committee and the awards for Human
Capital management, the Leadership Programme, WOW awards and
National Customer Service awards. While the Council should be proud
of these achievements, it was reported that areas for improvement had
been identified and needed to be worked on, in accordance with the
action plan attached. The Chair also noted the recommendation that the
AGS should be presented to Members by someone from outside of
audit, to ensure independence.

Taking into account the comments made by the Committee, it was
RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACS52.

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS, LETTINGS AND HOMELESSNESS




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

SERVICES RE-INSPECTION - FINAL REPORT

Phil Harris, Assistant Director of Strategic and Community Housing,
presented the report on the Housing Allocations, Lettings and
Homelessness Service Re-inspection. Further to the poor inspection
rating received in 2007, a re-inspection had been undertaken in May
2010, the conclusion from which was that the Service was delivering a 1-
star, “fair’ service, with excellent prospects for improvement.
Engagement with service users was seen to have improved, and the
temporary accommodation forum and multi-agency approach were
identified as strengths of the service. A number of areas for further
improvement had been identified, including monitoring, obtaining
feedback and diversity. A requirement for benchmarking data in respect
of temporary accommodation had been identified to ensure that value for
money was being achieved, and further improvement was necessary in
managing the performance of the lettings policy. It was reported that the
re-inspection had been of great benefit to the service in working out its
priorities and recognising where improvements had been made, and that
an action plan had been produced to take this work forward.

The Committee expressed concern that the report did not give a clear
sense of direction and did not include the action plan, as this limited the
ability of the Committee Members to monitor progress. Mr Harris agreed
that the action plan could be circulated to the Committee, and advised
that the content of the action plan closely reflected what had been
published in the Housing Improvement Plan.

In response to a question from the Committee about the voids process,
Mr Harris responded that the approval of Full Council was required for
the proposal that there should be a single point of responsibility for
voids. The Committee expressed concern that this had not been agreed
yet, as the issue of voids had cost implications and needed to be
addressed. Mr Harris advised that performance in respect of vacant
properties had improved significantly; turnaround times had decreased,
acceptance rates for sheltered housing had increased and the number of
empty properties had reduced from 60 to 5, some of which had been
vacant for just a month or two.

The Committee acknowledged the progress that had been made, but
noted that it was important for the Committee to see how the
fundamental systems in place were being improved, and this report did
not give a sense of this. The Committee expressed concern with the
amount of progress made, given the significant amount of resources
dedicated to improving the service since 2007. The Committee also
expressed concern that the report did not include any figures relating to
cost implications, and requested that these be provided.

The Committee asked which other committees were considering this
report, and where responsibility lay for holding it to account. It was
reported that the report was also going to Overview and Scrutiny for
consideration. The Committee agreed that it was essential for there to be
clarity regarding accountability. In response to the points raised by the
Committee, Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources, stated that




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

the best place for the report to be held accountable was the Audit
Committee. The Chair emphasised that under the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference, it was essential for the Committee to see these
reports in order to fulfil its responsibility to provide independent
assurance of the Council’s financial and non-financial affairs. The
Committee stated that it was also essential for them to receive the
relevant action plans, in order to fulfil its duties. The Committee
suggested that it be fed into the ongoing review of the Council’s
governance arrangements that Audit Committee should be identified as
the appropriate body for receiving and monitoring such reports.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted and that the report be brought
back for consideration by the Committee, including the action plan.

PRACS53.

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - OUTCOME OF THE
ANNUAL AUDIT FOR 2009/10 AND REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer, presented the report on the final
outcome of the annual audit for 2009/10, the action plan from the
external auditor Grant Thornton, and the management responses to the
action plan. The Committee was asked to note that the accounts were
signed off by the appropriate deadline and that an unqualified audit
opinion had been provided. Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton, reported that
the audit of the accounts had gone well in terms of the information being
provided in good time and officers fully cooperating with the audit
process. It was reported that some medium priority issues had been
identified, and that these were set out in the action plan. It was reported
that Grant Thornton were satisfied with the management responses
provided, and would work with management to monitor the
implementation of the recommendations.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the significance
of items such as Hostel Valuations, for example, Mr Hughes advised that
where accounting practice in this area was found to deviate from
standard practice, this was flagged up.

The Chair reported that the accounts had already been considered and
approved by the General Purposes Committee, and noted the
unqualified audit opinion from the auditor. The Chair accepted the
priorities outlined in the action plan by Grant Thornton, however gave his
opinion that the items on the balance due from the DCLG and the
reconciliation between rent and financial accounting systems should be
considered a high priority by officers, in order for the Council to
discharge its duties effectively.

RESOLVED

That the management responses contained in the action plan be agreed,
and that the Committee receive an update on agreed actions at a future




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

meeting of the Audit Committee.

PRAC54.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES DOCUMENT

Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer, presented the report on the Treasury
Management Practices document. It was reported that this had been
approved by the General Purposes Committee, and that under the
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, the Audit Committee
was required to scrutinise the document.

In response to a question from the Committee, Mr Bartle confirmed that
members who had attended the sessions had received the appropriate
training.

The Chair asked for clarification of the separation of functions as set out
in Treasury Management Practice 5, in response to which Mr Bartle
advised that there were separate teams for policy and operations, which
reported directly to the Section 151 Officer and Lead Finance Officer. It
was confirmed that these arrangements were audited on an annual basis
by both internal and external audit. The Chair expressed concern that
staff costs for treasury management were shown in the Corporate
Finance budget, while interest earned and payable was shown in the
Non Service Revenue budget. Mr Bartle advised that this was so that
staff costs were accounted for in line with all other staff costs, and the
interest earned and payable was accounted for on a ‘council-wide’ basis,
as it was not as such allocated to a specific service. The Chair accepted
the view of officers in this regard, however gave his opinion that it did not
lead to a true picture for the purposes of budget planning and
accounting.

The Chair asked whether officers could confirm whether the Council was
fully compliant with all the 12 treasury management practices as set out
by CIPFA, and whether officers were confident that a situation such as
that in Iceland could not happen again. Mr Bartle confirmed that the
Council was fully compliant with the 12 treasury management practices.
Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources, advised the Committee
that the Council was taking into account all of the guidance available in
this area, including the CIPFA guidance which had been revised to
prevent a similar occurrence such as the Iceland situation, and that while
there could be no absolute assurance that the same thing would not
happen again, a reasonable assurance could be provided, because the
Council was following as many examples of best practice as possible.

RESOLVED

That the Treasury Management Practices document be approved.

PRACS55.

HOUSING BENEFITS - 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT ON
COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the quarterly counter fraud performance of the Benefits and Local
Taxation Service. The Committee noted that sanctions for quarters 1 and




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

2 were three short of the target for this period, and that £631k in
overpaid benefits had been identified. The report also included details of
prosecutions undertaken in 2010/11 to date and the new corporate anti-
fraud team.

The Committee discussed the central government subsidy paid in
relation to overpayments. It was noted that recovery of overpayments
identified had increased. The Committee asked whether fraud was not
being pursued as effectively as it could be by the Council, in response to
which Ms Woods reported that new means of addressing fraud had
become available during the past year which were not previously open to
the Council, which could now be taken on board and could improve
recovery rates.

The Committee noted that there had never been a 100% recovery rate
for overpaid benefits, and so the Council had yet to fully benefit from the
potential profit available from the government subsidy. The Committee
asked what the actual amount recovered was, in response to which Ms
Woods reported that software problems at a national level meant that it
was not currently possible to calculate and report this amount, however it
was anticipated that this would be corrected and that an accurate
recovery figure could be reported at the next Committee. The Committee
requested that the list of successful prosecutions for 2010/11 be
annotated for the Committee, to show the likelihood of recovery in each
instance.

In response to a question from the Committee, Ms Woods reported that
the Council had a duty to look closely at suspected fraud, as this was
often liked to wider criminality, and could lead to those in genuine need
of financial assistance being disadvantaged.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report and the work being carried out by the
Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity
be noted.

PRACS56.

INTERNAL AUDIT - 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the work undertaken during the second quarter by the internal audit
service. It was reported that, as a result of the Committee’s continued
focus on ensuring the implementation of all audit recommendations, only
1 recommendation was outstanding from 2008/09 and 2009/10, and this
was in the process of being implemented. It was reported that the in-
house team continued to meet turnaround targets for fraud
investigations, and were working to reduce the length of suspensions as
far as possible. In response to a request at the previous meeting of the
Committee for information on why there was a need for a corporate anti
fraud resource, this had been set out in the report.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding whether it




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

would be possible to promote the outcome of fraud investigations to staff
as a deterrent, it was reported that there needed to be a balance
between the benefits of disclosure and the need to protect sensitive
information, and that this was being looked into. The Committee
suggested that staff induction would be an appropriate place to
emphasise the action taken by the Council in response to fraud, and it
was confirmed that this did form part of the current staff induction.

The Chair highlighted areas identified in the audits which were
unacceptable, namely that that the Safeguarding Adults Prevention
Strategy was still in draft form and that guidelines in respect of
unaccompanied asylum seeking children have not been reviewed and
updated in the last 12 months.

RESOLVED
i) That the audit coverage and progress during the second
quarter 2010/11.
ii) That progress and responses received in respect of

outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

iii) That the actions taken during Quarter 2 to address the
outstanding recommendations be confirmed as appropriate.

PRAC57.

RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the current position on compliance with the corporate risk
management policy for the management of risk registers. It was reported
that, subsequent to the publication of the report, the final risk register
had been updated and there was now 100% compliance with the
corporate risk management policy.

RESOLVED

That compliance with the risk management strategy for the completion of
risk registers across the Council be noted.

PRACS5S8.

NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE 2010/11 - CORPORATE
ARRANGEMENTS AND REQUIREMENTS

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise. It was
reported that as any change to the Audit Commission Act, under which
the NFI was carried out, would require primary legislation, the NFI data
matching exercise for 2010/11 would be going ahead, and the Council
had submitted the information required for this.

In response to a question from the Committee, Ms Woods confirmed that
cross-reference was made between the electoral register and council tax
lists and that there was a specific focus on single person council tax
discounts. The Committee suggested that there should be a system of




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2010

checking council tax registrations in connection with the planning
system, for example where properties were converted into a number of
flats or bedsits; it was reported that more proactive approaches to anti
fraud work in relation to housing and planning issues such as this were
being looked at as part of the work of the corporate anti fraud team. It
was reported that, as a recommendation of a previous audit, certificates
of lawfulness were now cross-referenced with all available data. The
Committee asked whether the Council used private sector organisations
such as Experian as part of its checks, in response to which Ms Woods
advised that checks were done using private sector organisations as part
of investigations that were felt to be high risk, and in reactive fraud
investigations. Use of private firms was limited to higher risk areas, as
there were cost implications. Julie Parker, Director of Corporate
Resources, advised the Committee that there were minimal resource
implications arising from the data matching work, but that where cases
went to investigations, these did lead to costs.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACS59.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRACG60.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

3 February 2011, at 7.30pm.

The meeting closed at 21:10hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

| Audit Committee On 3" February 2011

Report Title. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2011/12 to 2013/14
Report of: Director of Corporate Resources
Signed :

T Ruster 26| |/

Contact Officer : Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To present the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12 to
2013/14 for scrutiny prior to it being presented to Council for final approval.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12 to
21013/14 at Appendix A is scrutinised and comments made prior to its
presentation to Council for approval.

3. Reason for recommendation

3.1 To ensure the Treasury Management Strategy is scrutinised in advance of Council
approval as required by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.

4. Summary

4.1 This report sets out the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
financial years 2011/12 to 2013/14 in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice. The strategy was considered by General
Purposes Committee on 11" January 2011 and by Cabinet on 25" January 2011 |




Page 12

4.2

4.3

and they have recommended that it is approved by Council.

The proposed borrowing strategy is to keep borrowing to a minimum due to the
“cost of carry” resulting from the difference in short term and medium/long term
interest rates.

Some limited additions to the Council’s lending list are proposed in order to
provide some further capacity. These proposals are put forward having taken
advice from the Council’s treasury management advisers and are considered to be
prudent enough to ensure the credit quality of the Council’s investment portfolio
remains high.

Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
comments that its content and recommendation are within the policy agreed by
Council and consistent with the purposes of Financial Regulations. In considering
the report Members must take into account the expert financial advice available in
the report and any further advice given at the meeting in relation to the level of risk
inherent in the proposals.

Use of appendices

Appendix A: Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
2011/12 to 2013/14.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

« Financial Planning report for 2010/11 to 2012/13 reported to Council and
agreed on 22" February 2010.

« Treasury Management reports to General Purposes Committee 28" June
2010, 23" September 2010 and 11" January 2011.

For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions, on 0208 489 3726.

8.1

Background

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires all local
authorities to agree a Treasury Management Strategy Statement including
an Investment Strategy annually in advance of the financial year. The
strategy should incorporate the setting of the Council’s prudential
indicators for the three forthcoming financial years.




8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

Page 13

Following the publication of the revised CIPFA Treasury Management
Code of Practice in 2009, the Council’s constitution was amended to
incorporate treasury management reporting requirements. General
Purposes Committee are required to receive the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement in advance of it being submitted to Cabinet and
Council for final approval. The strategy was considered by General
Purposes Committee on 11" January 2011 and by Cabinet on 25"
January 2011 and they have recommended that it is approved by Council.

A further requirement is for the strategy to be scrutinised by Audit
Committee in advance of approval by Council. This report is being
presented to this meeting for that purpose.

Proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement

The proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement is set out in
Appendix A to this report. The document includes the following:

* Borrowing (section 3)

* Investments (section 4)

e Monitoring (section 8)

The key factor to note in considering the strategy for 2011/12 is that short
term interest rates are expected to remain very low throughout the year in
contrast to medium and long term rates. This means that there will be a
‘cost of carry” if funds are borrowed in advance of capital expenditure
being incurred. Therefore the Council anticipates continuing to run a
strategy of keeping cash balances low and invested short term and to
borrow only when required.

The proposed prudential indicators set out in the report do not reflect the
funding of Decent Homes. The government have not yet made clear how
much will be allocated to the Council or how it will be funded. Once this is
clear, the prudential indicators will need to be revisited and if necessary
revised. Any revisions to the indicators will need to be approved by full
Council.

Proposed additions to approved Investment counterparties and
instruments

The proposed investment strategy for 2011/12 is set out in section 4 and
annexes 4 and 5 of Appendix A. There are two proposed additions to the
existing approved lending list:

* Addition of Nat West and Standard Chartered to the list of UK

banks

» Deposits with non UK banks
There is also a proposed addition to the types of instruments which can be
used:

* UK Treasury Bills issued by the Debt Management Office



Page 14

10.2 The Council’'s treasury management advisers have recommended the

10.3

10.4

10.5

addition of UK banks Standard Chartered and Nat West. The long term
credit rating of Standard Chartered has been upgraded following an
improvement in the level of its balances. It is now clear that Nat West has
a long term future within the RBS Group and with stable ratings, it is
recommended that it is added to the lending list.

UK Treasury Bills are issued by HM Treasury’s Debt Management Office
and so are guaranteed by the UK government. They are proposed for
inclusion as they offer a better rate of return than the Debt Management
Account Deposit Facility, albeit with less flexibility on term (they are only
available for periods of 1 month, 3 months and 6 months) with the same
level of security.

In order to provide a wider range of creditworthy counterparties for the
Council to invest with, it is proposed to add a limited range of non-UK
banks to the Council’s lending list. The banks it is proposed to add are all
based in AAA rated European countries and have minimum long term
credit ratings of A+ and in fact many are more highly rated than the UK
banks already on the list. The table below demonstrates this as it lists the
banks in descending order of their current lowest long term rating.

UK Banks — Long term ratings | Non UK Banks — Long term
ratings
Rabobank AA+
HSBC AA
Barclays Bank AA- Nordea Bank AA-
Santander UK AA- BNP Paribas AA-
Credit Agricole CIB AA-
Credit Agricole SA AA-
Svenska Handelsbanken AA-
Bank of Scotland A+ Deutsche Bank A+
Lloyds TSB A+ Credit Suisse A+
Clydesdale Bank A+ Societe Generale A+
Nationwide Building Soc | A+ ING Bank A+
Royal Bank of Scotland | A+
Nat West A+
Standard Chartered A+

It is proposed that these banks have a lower credit limit than the UK banks
- £15m compared to £20m and there is a maximum period of investment of
6 months. It is also proposed that investments in any one country’s banks
are limited to a maximum of 10% at the time of investment, excluding the
UK.



Page 15

10.6  All counterparties, and the countries in which they are based, are kept

11.

1.1

under continual review by officers and the Council’s treasury management
advisers, Arlingclose Ltd. In the event any information reveals a concern
about a counterparty’s creditworthiness or the country in which it is based,
it will be removed from the lending list with immediate effect and no new
investments entered into. Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of Appendix A set out the
range of information monitored.

Recommendation
That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12

to 21013/14 at Appendix A is scrutinised and comments made prior to it's
presentation to Council for approval.



Page 16

APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2011/12 to 2013/14

Contents

1.

2.

Background

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position
Borrowing Strategy

Investment Policy and Strategy
Outlook for Interest Rates

Balanced Budget Requirement

MRP Statement

Monitoring and Reporting

Other Issues

Annexes

1.

Current and Projected Portfolio Position

Summary of Prudential Indicators

Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast
Specified and Non specified Investments

Lending List of counterparties for investments



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Page 17

Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM
Code”) and the Prudential Code require local authorities to determine the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Prudential
Indicators on an annual basis. The TMSS also incorporates the Investment
Strategy as required under the Communities and Local Government (CLG)
Department’s Investment Guidance.

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

“the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No
treasury management activity is without risk. The successful identification,
monitoring and control of risk are integral elements of treasury
management activities and include Credit and Counterparty Risk, Liquidity
Risk, Market or Interest Rate Risk, Refinancing Risk and Legal and
Regulatory Risk.

The strategy takes into account the impact of the Council’'s Revenue
Budget and Capital Programme on the Balance Sheet position, the current
and projected Treasury position, the Prudential Indicators and the outlook
for interest rates.

The purpose of this report is to propose:
e Treasury Management Strategy - Borrowing in Section 3,
Investments in Section 4
» Prudential Indicators — these are detailed throughout the report and
summarised in Annex 2
» MRP Statement — Section 7

The Council originally adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in May 2002. At its meeting on 22" February 2010 the
Council adopted the revised CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management. The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised
CIPFA Code of Practice into its treasury policies, procedures and
practices. All treasury activity will comply with relevant statute, guidance
and accounting standards. Adoption of the Code is one of the Prudential
Indicators.



2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 18

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, as measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), together with Balances and
Reserves, are the core drivers of Treasury Management activity. The

estimates, based on the current proposed Revenue Budget and Capital

Programmes, are:

Table 1: Treasury Position

31/03/2011 | 31/03/2012 | 31/03/2013 | 31/03/2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund CFR 281,164 268,465 261,365 252,521
HRA CFR 488,046 488,046 488,046 488,046
Total CFR 769,210 756,511 749,411 740,567
Less:
Existing Profile of Borrowing (713,976) | (667,476) | (625,476)| (578,780)
& Other Long Term
Liabilities
Cumulative Maximum
External Borrowing 55,234 89,035 123,935 161,787
Requirement
Unearmarked Balances & (17,822) (17,873) (17,873) (17,873)
Reserves
Cumulative Net Borrowing
Requirement /(Investments) 3r.412 71,162 106,062 143,914

The Council’s level of physical debt and investments is linked to these

components of the Balance Sheet. The current portfolio position is set out
at Annex 1. Market conditions, interest rate expectations and credit risk
considerations will influence the Council’'s strategy in determining the
borrowing and investment activity against the underlying Balance Sheet
position. The Council will ensure that net physical external borrowing (i.e.
net of investments) will not exceed the CFR other than for short term cash
flow requirements.

Estimates of Capital Expenditure:

It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that capital
expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider
the impact on Council Tax and in the case of the HRA, housing rent levels.




2.4

2.5

2.6

Table 2: Capital Expenditure

Page 19

2010/11 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Approved Projected Estimate Estimate Estimate
Actuals
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-HRA 95,956 99,115 42,671 40,000 30,426
HRA 52,642 55,033 17,526 14,843 13,543
Total 148,598 154,148 60,197 54,843 43,969
Capital expenditure is expected to be financed as follows:
Table 3. Capital Financing
2010/11 201011 | 2011/12 | 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved | Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Actuals

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital receipts 5,520 3,566 13,444 9,277 5,650
Other grants & 4,943 10,166 7,786 12,977 14,088

contributions
Government Grants 67,160 69,766| 24,724] 12,008 6,966
Major Repairs Allowance 12,909 14,137 13,543 13,543 13,543
Revenue contributions 7,757 7,877 400 1,700 200
Total Financing 98,289| 105,512| 59,897| 49,505| 40,447
Borrowing 50,309 48,636 300 5,338 3,522
Total 148,598| 154,148| 60,197| 54,843| 43,969

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions:

As an indicator of affordability the table overleaf shows the impact of
capital investment decisions on Council Tax and Housing Rent levels. The
incremental impact is calculated by comparing the total revenue budget
requirement of the current approved capital programme with an equivalent
calculation of the revenue budget requirement arising from the proposed
capital programme.

As reported in the treasury monitoring reports during 2010/11 the
indicators set in February 2010 are actually the total of Band D council tax
and housing rent, rather than the incremental impact relating to capital
decisions. This is the reason the approved figures for 2010/11 are much
higher than future years. The reduction between 2010/11 and 2011/12
onwards is due to the reduction in the amount of capital expenditure being
funded through borrowing shown in Table 3 above.




2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

Page 20

Table 4: Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions

2010/11 | 2010/11 2011/12 | 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved | Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Actual
£ £ £ £ £
Increase in Band D | 4 454 35 9.96 1.00 1.88 1.95
Council Tax
Increase in Average
Weekly Housing 83.20 0.01 0.02 0.00 0.00
Rents

Reform to the Council Housing Subsidy System: CLG consulted on
proposals to reform the council housing subsidy system in July 2010. The
consultation proposed a removal of the subsidy system by offering a one-
off reallocation of debt. Details of the new system will be announced in
January 2011, and will be introduced in the Localism Bill to enable the new
system to start in 2012. For the Council, this is expected to equate to a
reduction in debt of £236m. CLG proposes to settle this by repaying a
proportion of each of the Council's PWLB loans.

The estimate for interest payments in 2011/12 is £41.3m and for interest
receipts is £0.28m. The ratio of financing costs to the Council's net
revenue stream is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue
implications of existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the
proportion of the revenue budget required to meet borrowing costs. The
ratio is based on costs net of investment income.

Table 5: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

2010/11| 201011 | 2011/12| 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved | Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Actual
% % % % %
Non-HRA 4.67 5.52 4.95 4.04 3.72
HRA 33.39 31.36 31.90 29.87 28.84

Borrowing Strategy

The Council’'s balance of actual gross borrowing plus other long-term
liabilities is shown in Annex 1. This is measured in a manner consistent for
comparison with the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit.

The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a
gross basis (i.e. not net of investments) and is the statutory limit
determined under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 (referred

to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit).




3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 21

Table 6: Authorised Limit for External Debt

2010/11 2010111 | 2011/12| 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Actual

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing 860,455 663,811 | 861,544 | 857,239 | 851,332
Other Long-term 39,545 50,165 85,335 80,110 74,606

Liabilities
Total 900,000 713,976 | 946,879 | 937,349 | 925,938

The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’'s estimates of the
CFR and estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based

on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely,

prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional headroom
included within the Authorised Limit.

Table 7: Operational Boundary for External Debt

2010/11 | 2010/11| 2011/12| 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved | Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Actual

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing 835,455 | 663,811 | 761,544 | 757,239| 751,332
Other Long-term 39,545 50,165 56,890 53,407 49,737

Liabilities
Total 875,000 713,976 | 818,434 | 810,646 | 801,069

The Director of Corporate Resources has delegated authority, within the
total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the

separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long-term liabilities.
Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and
best value considerations. Any movement between these separate limits
will be reported to the next meeting of the General Purposes Committee.

In conjunction with advice from its treasury management adviser,
Arlingclose Ltd, the Council will keep under review the following borrowing

options:

¢ PWLB loans

e Borrowing from other local authorities

e Borrowing from institutions such as the European Investment Bank
and directly from Commercial Banks

e Borrowing from the Money Markets

Local authority stock issues

e Structured finance




3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Page 22

The PWLB issued a new set of lending arrangements on 20" October
2010, following the Spending Review announcement, which increase the
cost of new local authority fixed rate loans to 1% above the cost of the
Government’s borrowing. Despite this, the PWLB remains an attractive
source of borrowing, given the transparency and control that its facilities
continue to provide. The types of PWLB borrowing that are considered
appropriate for a low interest rate environment are:

» Variable rate borrowing

o Medium-term Equal Instalments of Principal (EIP) or Annuity Loans

s Long-term Maturity loans, where affordable.

Capital expenditure levels, market conditions and interest rate levels will
be monitored during the year in order to minimise borrowing costs over the
medium to longer term and to maintain stability. The differential between
debt costs and investment earnings, despite long term borrowing rates
being at low levels, remains acute and this is expected to remain a feature
during 2011/12. The “cost of carry” associated with medium and long term
borrowing compared to temporary investment returns means that new
fixed rate borrowing could entail additional short-term costs. The continued
use of internal resources in lieu of borrowing is likely to remain the most
cost effective means of financing capital expenditure during 2011/12.

PWLB variable rates are expected to remain low as the Bank Rate is
maintained at historically low levels for an extended period. Exposure to
variable interest rates will be kept under regular review. Each time the
spread between long-term rates and variable rates narrows by 0.50%, this
will trigger a formal review point and options will be considered in
conjunction with the Council’'s treasury management adviser and decisions
taken on whether to retain the same exposure or change from variable to
fixed rate debt. The Council's existing PWLB variable rate loan borrowed
prior to 20™ October 2010 will be maintained on it's initial terms and is not
subject to the additional increased margin for new variable rate loans.

The Council has £125m of loans which are LOBO loans (Lender’'s Options
Borrower’'s Option) of which £75m of loans are currently in or will be in
their call period in 2011/12. In the event that the lender exercises the
option to change the rate or terms of the loan, the Council will consider the
terms being provided and also repayment of the loan without penalty. The
Council may utilise cash resources for repayment or may consider
replacing the loan(s) by borrowing from the PWLB. The default response
will however be early repayment without penalty.

The rationale for considering any possible rescheduling opportunities
during the year would be one or more of the following:
» Savings in interest costs with minimal risk
¢ Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate
debt) of the debt portfolio
¢ Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent
refinancing risks.



3.11

3.12

3.13

Page 23

As opportunities arise, they will be identified by Arlingclose and discussed
with the Council’s officers. Borrowing and rescheduling activity will be
reported to General Purposes Committee as part of the quarterly monitor
reports.

The following Prudential Indicators allow the Council to manage the extent
to which it is exposed to changes in interest rates. The upper limit for
variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is not
exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue
budget. The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure
to changes in short-term rates on investments.

The Council’s existing level of fixed interest rate exposure is 98.5% and
variable rate exposure is 1.5%, however it is recommended that the limits
in place for 2010/11 are maintained in future to retain flexibility.

Table 8: Fixed and Variable Interest Rate Exposure

2010/11| 2010/11| 2011/12| 2012/13| 2013/14
Approved Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
% % % % %
Upper Limit for
Fixed Interest Rate 100 98.5 100 100
Exposure
Upper Limit for
Variable Interest 40 1.5 40 40
Rate Exposure

The Council will also limit and monitor large concentrations of fixed rate
debt needing to be replaced. Limits in the following table are intended to
control excessive exposures to volatility in interest rates when refinancing
maturing debt.

Table 9: Maturity Structure of fixed rate borrowing

Lower Limit Upper Limit

% %
under 12 months 0 25
12 months & within 2 years 0 25
2 years & within 5 years 0 50
5 years & within 10 years 0 60
10 years & within 20 years 0 60
20 years & within 30 years 0 60
30 years & within 40 years 0 60
40 years & within 50 years 0 60
50 years & above 0 60




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 24

Investment Policy and Strategy

Guidance from the Communities and Local Government Department
(CLG) on Local Government Investments in England requires that an
Annual Investment Strategy be set.

The Council’'s investment priorities are, in this order:
o security of the invested capital,
e liquidity of the invested capital;
e an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity.

Investments are categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ investments
based on the criteria in the CLG Guidance. Instruments proposed for the
Council’s use within its investment strategy are contained in Annex 4 and
the list of proposed counterparties is shown in Annex 5. The Director of
Corporate Resources, under delegated powers, will undertake the most
appropriate form of investments in keeping with the investment objectives,
income and risk management requirements and Prudential Indicators.
Investment activity will be reported to General Purposes Committee as
part of the quarterly reports.

With all investments the Council makes there is a risk of default, so the
proposed list of investments is prepared to minimise this risk by being
selective about the counterparties to be used. They are then subjected to
continual monitoring, in conjunction with the Council’s treasury
management advisers, to ensure that they continue to meet the high
standard set. The range of information used to determine creditworthiness
is:
o Credit Ratings (minimum long-term A+ for counterparties; AAA for
countries)
o Credit Default Swaps (where quoted)
o Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP for countries
o Sovereign Support Mechanisms/potential support from a well-
resourced parent institution
e Share Prices
e Macro-economic indicators
o Corporate developments, news and articles, market sentiment.

If the monitoring reveals any concern about a counterparty’s
creditworthiness, it will be removed from the lending list with immediate
effect. In any period of significant stress in the markets, the default
position is for investments to be made with the Debt Management Office —
either in the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF) or UK
Treasury Bills. (The rates of interest from the DMADF are below
equivalent money market rates, but the returns are an acceptable trade-off
for the guarantee that the Council’s capital is secure.)



4.6

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

4.1

Page 25

The changes to the list of specified counterparties proposed for 2011/12
are:

» Addition of Nat West and Standard Chartered to the list of UK

banks

¢ Deposits with non UK banks
There is also a proposed addition to the list of instruments which can be
used:

» UK Treasury Bills issued by the Debt Management Office

The Council's treasury management advisers have recommended the
addition of UK banks Standard Chartered and Nat West following an
improvement in the ratings of the former and the confirmation of the long
term future of the latter within the RBS Group. UK Treasury Bills are
issued by HM Treasury’s Debt Management Office and so are guaranteed
by the UK government. They are proposed for inclusion as they offer a
better rate of return than the DMADF, albeit with less flexibility on term,
with the same level of security.

In order to provide a wider range of creditworthy counterparties for the
Council to invest with, it is proposed to add a limited range of non-UK
banks to the Council’s lending list. The banks it is proposed to add are all
based in AAA rated European countries and have minimum long term
credit ratings of A+ and in fact many are more highly rated than the UK
banks already on the list.

The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009, and is
anticipated to remain at low levels throughout 2011/12. Short-term money
market rates are likely to remain at very low levels for an extended period
which will have a significant impact on investment income.

To protect against a prolonged period of low interest rates and to provide
certainty of income, 2-year deposits and longer-term secure investments
may be considered within the limits proposed for Non-Specified
Investments (see Annex 4). If longer-term investments are considered they
would include:
e Term Deposits with counterparties rated at least A+ (or equivalent)
e Supranational Bonds (bonds issued by multilateral development
banks): Even at the lower yields likely to be in force, the return on
these bonds will provide certainty of income against an outlook of
low official interest rates.

The Council has placed an upper limit for principal sums invested for over
364 days, as required by the Prudential Code. This limit is to contain
exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as a result of the Council
having to seek early repayment of the sums invested.



5.1

52

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

Page 26

Table 10: Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days
2010/11 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Approved | Projected Estimate Estimate Estimate
Actual
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Principal 60,000 0 20,000 20,000 20,000

Outlook for Interest Rates

The economic interest rate outlook provided by the Council’s treasury
management adviser, Arlingclose Ltd, is attached at Annex 3. The Council
will reappraise its strategy from time to time and, if needs be, realign it with
evolving market conditions and expectations for future interest rates.

The interest rate outlook shows that short term rates are expected to
remain significantly lower than long term rates throughout 201 1/12. For
this reason it is anticipated that cash balances will kept at a minimum
throughout the financial year as the “cost of carry” will be significant for
any borrowing taken before capital expenditure is incurred.

Balanced Budget Requirement

The Council complies with the provisions of Section 32 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget.

MRP Statement

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/414) place a duty on local
authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption. Guidance on
Minimum Revenue Provision has been issued by the Secretary of State
and local authorities are required to “have regard” to such Guidance under
section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003.

The four MRP options available are:
Option 1: Regulatory Method
Option 2: CFR Method
Option 3: Asset Life Method
Option 4: Depreciation Method

MRP in 2011/12: Options 1 and 2 may be used only for supported
expenditure. Methods of making prudent provision for self financed
expenditure include Options 3 and 4 (which may also be used for
supported expenditure if the Council chooses).




7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

Page 27

It is a requirement for Council to approve the MRP statement before the
start of the financial year. If it is ever proposed to vary the terms of the
original MRP Statement during the year, a revised statement will be put to
Council at that time.

It is proposed the Council will apply Option 1 in respect of supported
capital expenditure and Option 3 in respect of unsupported capital
expenditure. This is a continuation of current practice. MRP in respect of
leases brought onto the Balance Sheet under the IFRS-based Code of
Practice will match the annual principal repayment for the associated
deferred liability.

Monitoring and Reporting

General Purposes Committee will receive a quarterly report on treasury
management activity and performance. This will include monitoring of the
prudential indicators.

It is a requirement of the Treasury Management Code of Practice that an
outturn report on treasury activity is produced after the financial year end,
no later than 30" September. This will be reported to General Purposes
Committee in advance of Cabinet and Council. Audit Committee will be
responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management activity and practices.

Officers monitor counterparties on a daily basis with advice from the
Council’s treasury management advisers to ensure that any
creditworthiness concerns are addressed as soon as they arise. Senior
management hold monthly meetings with the officers undertaking treasury
management to monitor activity and to ensure all policies and procedures
are being followed.

Other Issues

Training

CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code of Practice requires the Director of
Corporate Resources to ensure that all members tasked with treasury
management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury
management function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs
and understand fully their roles and responsibilities.

Regular training sessions are arranged for members to keep their
knowledge up to date. This included a Treasury Management Strategy
training session on 11" January 2011.



9.3

9.4

Page 28

Investment Consultants

The CLG's Guidance on local government investments recommends that
the Investment Strategy should state:

“Whether and, if so, how the authority uses external contractors offering
information, advice or assistance relating to investment and how the
quality of any such service is controlled.”

The Council has appointed Arlingclose Limited to provide information and
advice about the types of investment the Council should undertake and the
counterparties that should be used. Quarterly service review meetings
take place to monitor the service and the appointment is formally reviewed
in accordance with the Council's Contract Standing Orders.



Page 29

ANNEX 1
Current and Projected Portfolio Position
Current | 31 Mar 11 31 Mar12| 31 Mar 13| 31 Mar 14
Portfolio Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

External Borrowing:
Fixed Rate — PWLB 460,806 490,806 529,106 530,106 527,706
Fixed Rate — Market 125,005 125,005 125,005 125,005 125,005
Variable Rate — PWLB 20,000 48,000 0 0 0
Variable Rate — Market 0 0 0 0 0
Total External Borrowing 605,811 663,811 654,111 655,111 652,711
Existing long-term
liabilities 2,625 2,539 2,442 2,334 2,213
IFRS Long Term
Liabilities:
- PFI 43,026 40,929 38,957 36,884 34,705
- _Operating Leases 7,351 6,697 6,010 5,288 4,530
Total Gross External 658,813 713,976 701,520 699,617 694,159
Debt
Total Investments 20,000 20,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
(Net Borrowing
Position)/ (638,813) | (693,976) (661,520) | (659,617)| (654,159)
Net Investment
position




Page 30

ANNEX 2
Summary of Prudential Indicators
No. | Prudential Indicator 201112 2012/13 2013/14
CAPITAL INDICATORS
1 Capital Expenditure £60,197k £54,843k £43,969k
2 | Ratio of financing costs o | o
to net revenue stream . 0 v o
General Fund 4.95% 4.04% 3.72%
HRA 31.90% 29.87% 28.84%
3 | Capital Financing £756.511k | £749,411k |  £740,567k
Requirement
4 Incremental impact of ‘

capital investment
decisions

£1.00

£1.88

£1.05

Band D Council Tax

Weekly Housing rents £0.02 £0.00 £0.00
TREASURY MANAGEMENT LIMITS
5 Authorised Limit £946,879k £937,349k £925,938k

Operational Boundary £818,434k £810,646k £801,069k
6 gf;’:;j‘rrg't — fixed rate 100% 100% 100%

;J)E)g:g&:rrgit — variable rate 40% 40% 40%
7 Maturity structure of

borrowing L U L U L U

(U: upper, L: lower)

under 12 months 0% | 25% 0% | 25% 0% | 25%

12 months & within 2 yrs 0% | 25% 0% 25% 0% | 25%

2yrs & within 5 yrs 0% | 50% 0% | 50% 0% | 50%

5 yrs & within 10 yrs 0% | 60% 0% | 60% 0% | 60%

10 yrs & within 20 yrs 0% | 60% 0% | 60% 0% | 60%

20 yrs & within 30 yrs 0% | 60% 0% 60% 0% | 60%

30 yrs & within 40 yrs 0% | 60% 0% | 60% 0% | 60%

40 yrs & within 50 yrs 0% | 60% 0% | 60% 0% | 60%

50 yrs & above 0% | 60% 0% | 60% 0% | 60%
8 i:":%g”:i;‘;: for more £20,000k £20,000k |  £20,000k
9 Adoption of CIPFA

Treasury Management N N v

Code of Practice




Page 31

ANNEX 3

Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast

Dec-10  Mar-11  Jun-11  Sep-11  Dec-11  Mar12 Jun-12 Sep-12  Dec-12 Mar13  Jun-13
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk - 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.50 2.00 2.50 2,75 2.75
Downside risk - - - 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
1-yr LIBID
Upside risk 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 1.50 1.75 2.00 2.25 2.50 2.75 3.00 3.25 3.50 3.50 3.50
Downside risk - 025 0.25 0.25 025 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
§-yr gilt
Upside risk 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 2.00 2.25 2.75 3.25 3.50 3.75 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Downside risk - 025 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
10-yr gilt
Upside risk 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 3.50 3.75 3.75 4.00 4.25 4.50 4.75 4.75 475 4.75 4.75
Downside risk - 025 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 025]-" 0.25 0.25 0.25
20-yr gilt
Upside risk 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 4.25 4.50 4.75 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Downside risk - 025 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
50-yr gilt
Upside risk 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Central case 4.25 4.25 4.50 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Downside risk - 025 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

Arlingclose’s comments and assumptions

» The recovery in growth is likely to be slow, uneven and more

“Square root” than “V” shaped.
The initial reaction to the Comprehensive Spending Review is
positive but implementation risks remain.
The path of base rates reflects the fragility of the recovery and the
significantly greater fiscal tightening of the emergency budget. With
growth and underlying inflation likely to remain subdued, the Bank

will stick to its lower for longer stance on policy rates.

Gilts will remain volatile as the growth versus headline inflation

debate escalates.



Page 32

ANNEX 4

Specified and Non Specified Investments

Specified Investments identified for use by the Council

Specified Investments are those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance,
i.e. the investment

is sterling denominated.

e has a maximum maturity of 1 year.
meets the “high credit quality” definition as determined by the Council or
is made with the UK government or is made with a local authority in
England, Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland or a parish or community
council.

e the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section
25(1)(d) in SI 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or
share capital in a body corporate).

“Specified” Investments identified for the Council’s use are:

. Deposits in the DMO'’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility
. Deposits with UK local authorities

. Deposits with banks and building societies

o AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value
. Treasury-Bills (T-Bills)

o *Certificates of deposit with banks and building societies

. *Gilts: (bonds issued by the UK government)

. *Bonds issued by multilateral development banks

* Investments in these instruments would only be undertaken on advice from
the Council’s treasury management adviser.

For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the lowest
equivalent short-term and long-term ratings assigned by Fitch, Moody'’s and
Standard & Poor’s (where assigned).

Long-term minimum: A+ (Fitch); A1 (Moody’s); A+ (S&P)
Short-term minimum: F1 (Fitch); P-1 (Moody’s); A-1 (S&P)

The Council will also take into account the range of information on investment
counterparties detailed in section 4.4.



Page 33

Specified investments will be made within the limits detailed in the following
table. The limits stated will apply across the total portfolio operated by the
Council and so incorporate both Council and Pension Fund specific

investments.
Instrument Country/ Counterparty Maximum Maximum
Domicile Counterparty | period of
Limits £m investment*
Term Deposits | UK Debt Management Account | No limit 6 months
Deposit Facility (DMADF),
Debt Management Office
(DMO)
Gilts UK Debt Management Office No limit 364 days
(DMO)
T-Bills UK Debt Management Office No limit 6 months
(DMO)
Term Deposits/ | UK Other UK Local Authorities | £30m per local | 364 days
Call Accounts. authority
Term Deposits/ | UK Counterparties rated at least | £20m per 364 days
Call Accounts/ A+ Long Term and F1 Short | bank or
Certificates of Term (or equivalent) banking group
Deposit
Term Deposits/ | Non-UK Counterparties rated at least | £15m per 6 months
Call Accounts/ A+ Long Term and F1 Short | bank or
Certifiqates of Term (or equivalent) in banking group
Deposit European countries** with a
Sovereign Rating of at least
AAA from all three credit
rating agencies.
Bonds issued Non-UK Counterparties rated AAA in | £15m per 364 days
by multilateral which the UK is a counterparty
development shareholder
banks
AAA-rated UK/Ireland/ | Constant Net Asset Value £20m per Instant
Money Market | Luxembourg | Money Market Funds MMF***; Access
Funds domiciled (MMFs) Group limit
£100m

*

The limits for the period of investment are the maximum for the categories

of counterparties. Lower operational limits will apply if recommended
following a review of creditworthiness.

* Kk

Investments in any one country’s banks will be limited to a maximum of

10% of the total investments at the time of investment, excluding the UK.

*** Limit per MMF to be no more than 0.5% of the Money Market Fund's total

assets.




Page 34

Non-Specified Investments proposed for use by the Council

Non-specified investments are those which do not meet the criteria for
specified investments. The non-specified investments which it is proposed
the Council will consider are investments for longer than one year with the
same counterparties as specified investments. None of these will constitute
capital expenditure. Non-specified investments will form a maximum of 50%
of the total portfolio at any time.

In-house use | Maximum Capital
maturity | expenditure?

»Term Deposits with UK banks
and building societies

Certificates of Deposit with UK 7 5 years No
banks and building societies

“Gilts , . v (on advice

=Bonds issued by multilateral from treasury 5 years No
development banks adviser)

In determining the period to maturity of an investment, the investment should
be regarded as commencing on the date of the commitment of the investment
rather than the date on which funds are paid over to the counterparty.



Page 35

Lending List of counterparties for investments

ANNEX 5

This is the proposed list of counterparties which the Council can lend to. The
list will be kept under constant review and counterparties removed if the
process described in 4.4 and 4.5 raises any concerns about their credit

worthiness.
Instrument Country/ Counterparty Maximum
Domicile Counterparty

Limit £m

Gilts, Treasury UK Debt Management Office (Term No limit

Bills, Term deposits with Debt Management

Deposits Account Deposit Facility DMADF)

Term Deposits UK Other Local Authorities £30m per local
authority

Term Deposits/ UK Santander UK Plc (Banco Santander 20

Call Accounts/ Group)

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Bank of Scotland (Lloyds Banking 20

Call Accounts/ Group)

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Lloyds TSB 20

Call Accounts/ (Lloyds Banking Group)

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ UK Barclays Bank Plc 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ UK Clydesdale Bank 20

Call Accounts/ (National Australia Bank Group)

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ UK HSBC Bank Plc 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Nationwide Building Society 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ UK NatWest (RBS Group) 20

Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit




Page 36

Instrument

Country/
Domicile

Counterparty

Maximum
Counterparty
Limit £m

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

UK

Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS Group)

20

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

UK

Standard Chartered Bank

20

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

Finland

Nordea Bank

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

France

BNP Paribas

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

France

Credit Agricole CIB (Credit Agricole
Group)

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

France

Credit Agricole SA (Credit Agricole
Group)

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

France

Société Générale

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

Germany

Deutsche Bank AG

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

Netherlands

ING Bank NV

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

Netherlands

Rabobank

15

Term Deposits/
Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

Sweden

Svenska Handelsbanken

15




Page 37

Instrument Country/ Counterparty Maximum

Domicile Counterparty
Limit £m

Term Deposits/ | Switzerland | Credit Suisse 15

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Money Market Ireland BlackRock Institutional Sterling Liquidity 20

Funds Fund

Money Market Ireland BlackRock Institutional Sterling 12

Funds Government Liquidity Fund

Money Market Ireland Goldman Sachs Liquid Reserves Fund 20

Funds

Money Market Ireland Henderson Global Investors Liquid 15

Funds Assets Sterling Fund

Money Market Ireland Invesco Short Term Investments 5

Funds Company Sterling Liquidity Portfolio

Money Market Luxembourg | J.P. Morgan Asset Management Sterling 20

Funds Liquidity Fund

Money Market Ireland RBS Global Treasury Fund - Sterling 20

Funds

Bonds European European Investment Bank 15
Union

Bonds European European Bank for Reconstruction and 15
Union Development

Bonds Worldwide International Bank for Reconstruction 15

and Development (the World Bank)




Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39 Agenda ltem 8

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 3 February 2011

Report Title: Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
- Progress Report

Report of:  Director of Corporate Resources

Signed : ’jg&gw 20 ;i ;ié’

Contact Officer : Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer
Telephone 020 8489 5972

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To inform the Committee on the progress made in respect of the implementation of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and to note the ongoing actions
to secure full implementation.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1. The IFRS initiative has strong links to the Council’s Financial Strategy and is also a
mandatory requirement with objectives and timescales that are imposed by central
government.

3. Recommendation
3.1. That the progress to date to ensure full IFRS implementation be noted.

4. Summary

4.1. In the budget in 2007 the Chancellor announced that the public sector would be
moving to IFRS-based financial reporting from 2008/09 for all areas except local
government. Local government would be required to report on these new standards




Page 40

from 2009/10.

4.2.In the 2008 budget it was announced that this timetable would slip by one year

and, therefore, local government are required to meet these standards in closing
the 2010/11 accounts.

4.3.This report updates the committee on progress towards implementing the

requirements of IFRS.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1. There are no specific legal implications in this report.

6. Service Financial Comments
6.1. The additional costs the Council will incur in preparing for IFRS in 2010/11 are to be

contained within existing budgets.

7. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

7.1.

8. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
8.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report of Chief Financial Officer to the Audit Committee on 23 April 2009 —
Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Report of Chief Financial Officer to the Audit Committee on 1 February 2010 —
Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) — Progress
Report

9.1.

9.2.

Background

The Audit Committee were briefed on the requirement for the Council to complete
its statement of accounts in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in April 2009 with a progress report in February 2010. The
committee has also been periodically updated in the Audit Progress reports from
the Council’s external auditors Grant Thornton.

Annual accounts for local authorities will need to be prepared using IFRS from the
year ending 31 March 2011. In addition financial information for 2009/10 will need
to be restated for comparative purposes along with opening balances as at 1 April
2009. In practice, this means that the transition period for all Local Government




10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

Page 41

bodies started in 2009/10.

Progress to date and Milestones

The Council's project plan includes a number of milestones to be achieved in
preparation for IFRS which are detailed below.

Restatement of the balance sheet at 1 April 2009 and at 31 March 2010.

Implementing IFRS requires accounting for some financial transactions as though
they had always been accounted for on an IFRS basis. This requires the
restatement of the transition balance sheet i.e. the balance sheet as at 1 April
2009 and 31 March 2010.

A draft of the restated balance sheet was completed in December 2010 and has
been submitted to external audit for their review.

Restatement of the other disclosures to the accounts at 31 March 2010

The statement of accounts for 2010/11 will include comparator information from 31
March 2010. Consequently all disclosures required for IFRS will need to be
restated.

Additional guidance on the Code of Practice for IFRS was received from CIPFA in
December 2010 with examples of the required accounting disclosures. The
requisite changes to the Council's accounting systems have been implemented to
ensure that the necessary data collection processes are in place by 31 March
2011,

Review of the accounting policies for 2010/11

The Council's accounting policies are reviewed each year based on changes to
the CIPFA Code of Practice and approved by the General Purposes Committee.
The policies under IFRS will be considered by that committee in March 2011.

The Council will also work closely with our external auditors to ensure they have
been able to review the draft set of policies prior to the March 2011 General
Purposes Committee.

Preparation of the 2010/11 Statement of Accounts

As noted above, guidance on the 2010/11 accounts has been received from
CIPFA and will inform the preparation of the accounts for the current financial year
and the restatement of the 2009-10 accounts for comparative purposes. The
outcome of the work external audit is currently undertaking will also inform the
preparation of the accounts.



10.9.

1.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

11.8.

Page 42

IFRS will now become part of the business-as-usual closing process for the
Council. The timetable for the closure of accounts will be prepared in February as
usual.

Principal Impacts and Workloads

The implementation of IFRS has the largest impact on the following areas of the
Council’s accounts.

Employee Benefits

The cost of accrued employee benefits such as flexitime and annual leave carried
forward now need to be included in the accounts.

Leases and Contractual Arrangements

A small number of leases have been identified so far that were previously treated
as operating leases which are to be accounted for as finance leases under IFRS.
The review of leases will continue up to the balance sheet date of 31 March 2011
to incorporate any changes for new leases or leases with modifications.

As part of the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts work, a review was undertaken of
contractual and other arrangements which involve the provision of services using
specific underlying assets and which therefore can be considered as containing a
lease for those assets. At that time, the review concluded that only that the
suspended PFI contract fell into this category. This review process will continue for
the closure of the 2010/11 accounts.

Land and Buildings Valuation and Classification

All property assets were revalued where appropriate under IFRS as part of the
2009/10 closing process to enable the restatement of the balance sheet.

The revaluation process for 2010/11 is in progress in accordance with the normal
timetable for the closure of accounts and includes a full revaluation of the
investment property portfolio.

Some assets have also been reclassified in the restated IFRS balance sheet. For
example, the category of ‘Assets Held for Sale’ has much stricter criteria than the
former ‘Surplus Assets’ category so some assets formerly classified as surplus will
be held as ‘Property, Plant and Equipment.

Building Components

From 1 April 2010, any addition to, enhancement of or revaluation of buildings
requires a judgement to determine whether the building has significant



11.9.

11.10.

11.11.

11.12.

11.13.

11.14.
12.

12.1.

13.

13.1.

Page 43

components that have varying economic lives and should therefore be depreciated
over differing periods of time. The components are then recorded separately in the
asset register and depreciated over their respective economic lives.

The consideration of components is in progress in line with the normal closing
timetable.

Group Accounts

IFRS still requires local authorities to produce group accounts where they have
subsidiary or associate entities. Haringey's 2009/10 group accounts consolidated
Homes for Haringey’s and the Council’s financial statements.

However, under IFRS, an entity could be treated as a subsidiary based on the
Council's ability to control the entity as opposed to the old standards which
required actual control taking place. More organisations may therefore need to be
consolidated into the Council’s group accounts.

The outcome of this is that there is a possibility that Alexandra Park and Palace
Charitable Trust will be required to be consolidated into the Council's group
accounts.

External and independent advice from consultants Deloitte’s on the accounting
treatment for potential consolidation has been received and is being reviewed.

The review is ongoing and a final conclusion has not yet been reached.

Summary

The requirements of IFRS are being implemented and the Council is on track to
produce IFRS compliant accounts for 2010/11. The Council will continue to work
closely with external audit throughout this process. This report has outlined some
of the ongoing activities and actions in order to achieve this.

Recommendation

That the progress to date to ensure full IFRS implementation be noted.



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45 Agenda ltem 9

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - FEBRUARY 2011

Work Progress

2009/10 Audit We have now completed our 2009/10 audit and the Annual Audit Letter
that we are about to present to Cabinet and the Audit Committee
summarises the work that we carried out and our main conclusions.

Audit Plan We agreed our indicative fee for 2010/11 with the Chief Financial Officer

2010/11 and presented this to the June meeting of the Audit Committee. This letter
was prepared in advance of the audit year in order to provide the Audit
Commission will details of indicative fees nationally.
We have now agtreed the full 2010/11 Audit Plan with management and will
present this to the February meeting of the Audit Committee. The plan sets
out the areas where we will be catrying out work in 2010/11 and provides
the confirmed position on the 2010/11 audit fee and the likely level of
reduction to the 2011/12 fee.

International We are continuing to work with management as preparations for IFRS

Financial continue and we are currently performing a review of the restated 31 March

Reporting 2010 balance sheet, under IFRS.

Standards

(IFRS) We will report the outcome of this review to management in mid-February
and present this to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

Grants claims We presented our Grant Claims And Returns Planning Memorandum 2009-

and returns 10 to the September 2010 Audit Committee and, with the exception of the

certification housing benefit claim where we are having to carry out further testing, our
work is complete.
We will issue our 2009-10 grants report to the Council once this claim has
been certified and will present this to the next meeting of the Audit
Committee.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

February 2011




Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda Item

Audit Committee On 3 February 2011

Report title: External Audit Plan 2010/11

Report of: Director of Corporate Resources

. . el ;
Signed: . Q¢%%, QS/!//;’
Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Decision

1. Purpose

1.1To inform the Committee of the external audit plan for 2010/11 proposed by Grant
Thornton and to agree the audit fees.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee approves the proposed audit plan and fees for 2010/11.

Report authorised by: Kevin Bartle — Lead Finance Officer

Contact officer: Kevin Bartle - Head of Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 5972

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The proposed audit plan for 2010/11 sets out the work that Grant Thornton, the
Council's _external auditors are proposing to carry out in discharging their




Page 48

responsibilities to provide an opinion on the Council’s financial statements and to be
able to provide an opinion on the value for money arrangements the Council has in
place.

3.2 The plan also includes the proposed fees for the audit of £505k and an estimate of
the fees for grant certification of £90k which are equal to the indicative figures
provided originally to the Audit Committee in March 2010.

3.3 The proposed plan has been discussed with senior officers of the Council and it is
recommended for approval.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

5.1 None.

6. Background

6.1  The content of the work in the external audit plan is proposed by Grant
Thornton on a risk based approach to audit planning and reflects national and
local risk issues. The outputs from this are contained on page 13 of their plan
and include appropriate reporting back to Members on completion of the work.

6.2  The key risk areas highlighted in the proposed audit plan include:

Accounting under IFRS

Financial performance pressures

Revaluation of fixed assets

Use of estimates and judgements

Valuation of Council dwellings

Alexandra Park and Palace Trust — consideration of group accounts
consolidation

6.3  The fees charged by Grant Thornton are for the work they carry out for the
statutory audit, Value for Money assessment, review the Annual Governance
Statement, the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack, the
certification of grants and claims and review of the work the Council
undertakes on the National Fraud Initiative.

7. Recommendation

7.1 That the Committee approves the proposed audit plan and fees for 2010/11.




Page 49

103298 21jgnd uojuioy] jueis)

110z Adenuep

uojuloy | Juelc) ;




| 'Pansasai sybii 11y g T MM UOLOYL JURID 0102 ©

“£1and3(qo pue sduspuadopur jo 19adsax ur syuswammbar s worssIWon) PNy
oy s A1dwod 9\ FIpne [euIaILT Jo Y1om o uo dduerx Juperd ur yorordde mo o3 vonuaye
mof meIp pue 3pny oy Jo 102dso1 Ut £11aN23[qo puE D UIPUIdIPUT INO PIIIPISTOD ALY I\

V Xipuaddy

sag

TUNOY) 21 01 191397 npny
fenouy Mo MO onssy Ayl ur wgﬁéﬁu .MuOB no jo SUoISNOUod ﬁuom&uvﬁ 1 I nok UmugOHmm
T gorgm 1824 MY uH—OQMUOuSu sn wroxy muS&SO 1910 pue wquﬁﬁuu Jo qunu e SATIDIT [[IM O X

aulpwn pue sinding
993

"IIEQRT IYIINY ¥ IATIDT [[I4n PUNOD) Y} By PIWITUOD AUIIIT SLY BOISSIIWOT) 93 ()] (7 YOTEN
994 UPNY JO 2A1¥dTpUT P13 oY) W01y padUrydUN SUTEWRI 997 S1y) ySnoyayy 993 npne pasodord ok
7o 91emd[ed 03 11-010g ¥0j dwweidord YIom $99F JO I[EIS VOISSIUILO) IPNY U} PIST ATY I

Aduow .HQM aNTLA %Gﬁwuﬁmux

st woij 9sn3dxa Jo sppad] pasmbor oy Sunied sre nok yey smsus 303 SIUDUWIDBUBLIE 8 [IOUNON)

S, HCOEDGNQCM pPUY Jiom Ino uHO&QSw 0] U0JUIOY T, JUTIL) SSOIdE woIy wuw.ﬂ&ﬁvU&w asn A om ‘s1E2A wﬂOTPUHQ

238 I3 GO uomsnpuod B pue

ursy 'ssonord $JUTNOI2T [eul) 9Y) peo] 0 18euewy JUEISISSE MU B SOPNIUT Wied) pne urewy gy

SIUQWIDILIS [PIDURUL S [10UNOY)

e uorssTUImOn Apny o Aq pogmeds THowm oy uo vorurdo ue HaId 03

10} enjep Sunrodor oy vo paseq vorsnpPuod fHuow 10§ anpea Mo 213 [IM 9M -0 (7 WOL] "TOISSTWIWION) wuﬁémﬁmcﬁvﬁwou mo wc.mww@ﬁumﬁa
89g yipny 211 £q padnponur sea jFom npne LUOR 10§ anfeA [eao] 03 yorosdde mou e 10z ndny uf UT JOAT[IP [[I 94\ JU YI0M

SU1 100 §198 37 .Q«UCSOU Qﬂuv

JUSWISSISSE JSIT JIPNE SIUNOIIE IO pajepdn 9a¥Y 9m IIpne (§1-600Z 2 JO
HPNE SUNoddY uona[dwod 33 JUIMOT[o] “01-6007 10 PIFRUIPI 1By} WO} JUIYJIP Apuesyudis aq Jou pnom ]

299 3IpnE 93 01 VONE[II UT YSIT JO [9A9] Sutdjropun o1 93udpeyd pue o8uerp JURDTTUSIS © ST QY] O3 QUL J0J 11-010¢ JeIA [erouvuly
GONISUEI} 94 ISPYM YY) pILunsse 2 99§ siy3 3unids U] "(01(7 YOTEJA UT 99F SANEDIPUT UL 198 I oY 303 Gﬁ& JIPNE IO ST ST T,

HFune Jo ydnozog uopuor]

Page 50

1 1-0

m i e
A

N

L 10z Atenuer | 11-0102 ueid upny Aabuuey jo ybnosog uopuo-



Page 51

T poaniasal syubls Iy “d 77 A UOWOY L JUBID 0102 ©

*93pa[MOUy O
I JUDISISUODUT 1O JUIPBI[STWY ST JUSWILIS ) J1 3O ‘sjuswarmbar asoyy
199W 30U $20p 31 31 130da1 01 pue s1udWRIMbYT JuLA[RT YA 9oUEPIOIDE
ur pa3uasa3d udaq seY (SOHY) 1UAWILIG IDULUIIAOL) [ENUUY I} IOYIdYM
s1uowRImMbag
3unioda1 1apo pue sprepuels Sununosoe sjqeondde ‘vone[sida
TUBAIPT 3w 90UEp100dE Ul Aradord pasedard usaq aaey Loy soyroym
uonsanb ur powrad oy 305 SwoduI pue drypuadxa s3T puE PUNOY
oy Jo vonrsod [eULUY 9y} JO MOIA ITej PUE oI € A1 Loy JoyIayMm o

(0] se GOE@QO ae ®>& O] pue sjuswialels [edUTUL] 9y 1Ipne O} @MHBT@M 91e 9\

sajiqisuodsal inQ

‘sprepurlg unroday [eurur,] [PUOnRUIAIU]

I 90UEPIOIIT BT SWODUT PUE 9IIPUadXd 11 puE [19UNo7) oy
3o vontsod euruy oY) 1uasordar £prvandoe Yoruym sjunodde oredord .
$p10231 Zupunode sodoxd urelurewr

fuoypne sredordde sy

9DUEPIOIDE UL 978 SUONILSUEI]} [EDUTU 1Y) 9INSUD 0] [0FIUOD [LUIITL
jo swasds soepd u1 umind £q suonosesuen jo LimemSer oy ansud
101 ppuno) 2y 3o Amqrsuodsal oy 111 '$32IN0$21 2501
Jo asn o3 ur duEWFOFIRd [BIDURUY $IT PUE 59010593 JO dIyspreaals s
$9IBIISUOWIIP I1 YOI £q SUEIW [ENUISSI U OTE SJUNOIDE 8 [IPUNOY) Y],

sanljigisuodsal s,}1ouno) sy

'SY{SI 25913 91¥3nTw 03 92v[d T sey [PUNOT) Sy S[ONUOD I3 PUE JIpne
o Aq PassaIppe 9q 01 PadU ey SYSI IIPNE pUE ssoulsng enuaod oy
JO JuoWwssasse Mo uo paseq st pue Juruue(d pne 01 yoeordde paseq-ysu
0 o paseq st ue[d YT, "SIUNOIDE [[-0[(Z AP JO NIPNE Y3 O} UONE[AT
ur oxeropun 03 asodord om sFom o) 1o s19s ueld I Jo LONDAS ST,

uononpou}

S
gt

e e d
o
s
g
e

L 10z Atenuer | L1-010Z ueld #pny AebBuuiey jo ybnoiog uopuo-



Page 52

€ "paniasal bl iy *dT1 YN UOIWOY L eI 0102 ©

"SYAT o vondope vodn Jutstre 950y St [[am st ‘PISSIIPPE U2 IABY SUONEPUIIIOIA]

snomad amsud 03 Fupunoooe Juswdmbs pue juerd “fradord jo o141 parresap ¥ Surpersopun [a 2\
YFOMP[ NIPNE S1UN0IIE [euy Ino 03 Joud pawroyrad oq [ yrom sty dqqrssod a1y A QUL yepd ‘Apadosg uojjenjeAay

3o syuawoimbox oy (I dUEdWod UT 93¢ 959U JeY) 2INSUD PUE USYEIIIPUN SUORENEA UT MITADT I O\ o D)

juswdinba pue S)9SSE paxy jo

SjuwRZUELE SUIpUn JULKIND 30 13T Ut £81e1s [PIOUYUY WD) WNIPIW §,[DUNOT) T} AITAIT [[IM A\ . Slowai b RHCETE
Teaf o1 Funnp 59439597 [eI2UA3 JO 95N Y IOPISTOD [ 24\ [elouBUYy oY) esuewouad
.5@@5@ vuouw« S amcﬁm« T84 Y3 30§ uuc«go.tu& [¢10URUY] S TIDUNIOT) YT MITAIT [ 94\ joseaie ||y jeloueulq

“A[3urpI020e [PUNOY) A
A SSNOSTP pue 9duEpmE Y] 03 20ua1a5a1 ydnoy sansst Judopasp Lue Jo suopesrdur Y AITAST [ A o :
"parmbas se [PUNOT) 33 03 I[qe[rEAt dprwr 9q 01 aNUNTBOD [ woddns [EorYo) IsTEIAdS . L ORIANES S¥ 41 Japun
"WIn 1811 Y} 103 mmnz 3o vondope s11 u1 pouno) ay £q pasn saprod SuRUNOIE I AITADT TIAS I _”M.Mmugﬂm:.ﬂ . Bupunoooy
\ "$9mMBY 259 F240 dduUTINSSE UTES 01 sjusWILIS .
Pa3v3$27 943 U0 y10Mm Jo dwresdord e 2913e [ om 2o¢[d Supye) IPnE SJUNOIDE [EIDUELY TTEW ) 01 JOL »

~ yoeoudde ypny - pojosye sealepny - Wsp )pne Aay

asuodsai jipne pauuejd pue sysu Bupunodoy :| sjqe)

"asuodsaz pauueid mo pue [puNo’) oy Juioey SYSU [eIOUBUY JUEDHIUSIS JO JUDLUSSISSE YSI [ERIUT INO JO SIMSAI 93 SASTEWWNS MO[3( [ d[qEL
asuodsai yipne pauueld pue sysu Bupunosoy

S1UNOD sjm

110z Aenuep | L1-010Z ueld npny AsbBuliey jo ybnosog uopuor




Page 53

p "paniesal siubU Iy "dTT MN UoIWOY L uBID) 0102 ©

"SY[ Fopun sjunodde dnoid ojur pareprosuod aq P[NOYS ISNI Y, 90¥[E] PUE I EIPULXI[Y JOYIoym UolEpIOSU0D : Jsni| adejed pue
. sjunodse dnoig 3ied eipuexs|y

SUIUII19p O] 1SN, IDT[EJ PUE Hied BIPpUEXITY pue TI2UNOT) 91 UIamiaq QUQMQ ur ﬁQOE@MG.&uaN MITAIT TN 3\

(Sumpny uo sprepuelg [PUONEUINU]) SYST AIE]D) S JO UOPINPOTITT I Y du7] UT asn 0) suonduwmnsse . juewidinbs pue " sBuyjemp j1ouncs
PUE $301pUT YoTya SUIUTULRP UT [PUN0Y) 9y ] 9pews s1uoweSpn paiuaumoop 43 Ma1493 [Iim ap jueyd *Apedoig - 10 uojjeniep

PaoURPIAS puE pauaWMO0p e[ 9q 03 padu [ ‘s1anfea £130dord se yons seuorssajord £q pasn

9soy Furpnut ‘pouno) oy £q pasn s1uswadpnl [y SIUSWRIEIS [EOUEUT SY) UM syuowadpnl pue sarewnss Sjudtualels |eppueuy ' sjuswabpnl pue
Jo 9sn oy s1 w0 3oedwr 03 APYI] ST STYI 1LY JIOM INO JO LITE UTPW Y ], “SURIPOY UO SPIEPULIg [EuOnEUINU] 2y} Jo sease ||y S9jewWw)sa Jo asn
oy £jurep 03 preog spaepuelg duUEINSsy pue Sunipny euonruInu] 9y £q paredwos usaq sey 199ford % .

- pejaeye sease Jpny

mw:oama._ jipne _owczm_a pue s)ysui m:;c:ooo< L a_nm 1

(panunuoo) ssuodsai jipne pauue|d pue sysu BuluNoIdY

S1Unod fﬁﬂ.«

L10z Aenuer | L1-01L0Z ueld ipny AsbBuliey jo ybnoiog uopuot

¢

B
B S

,
e
-
i
B
& ey




Page 54

G "ponsesal SIUBY Y *d T YN UoRIOYL JUBID 0102 @

nmuon) Npny 01 Sunioday .
vorutdo pne ue SuwTuINo (T « EEIEHEGITEE)

ssan01d 91 JO UONEN[RAD [[EI2A0 wchwHUﬁH .

arvidordde pue yuamiyns ST 25UIPIAD
VIPNE I9YI2YM UONEIIPISUOD 01UT SUTHE) ‘SIUNOIDE 399YS

90U¥[eq pUE AINPUIAXD PUT JWOUT [P LW [t SUIA]io A « [REEEEEELED
. T aApuesqng

MI1ADT [eONATRUE FUTIOJID ] o

Blieslssani AN [erdueuIy o) ut wUHBmOﬁUmEU el Mﬁguﬂxwom .

2JMIBI JO 9pO)) V1D Y} 1SUTESE JIpne [eUIuf SUISSISSY o :sasrdwod A3a1ens ypne o Lrewrwmns up

S[OTITVOD PaIIJ[AS JO $SaUANIY2 Sunesado oYy Sunsa]

£3o1ens ypne srendordde uonenieAs ‘sGurpury mo Juniodas
ue Sunuowardwr pue Suidoppasp pue ysir ypne uissassy o jonuon uaym pue Npne o Sutuue[d USYM SUONIESUEI] JO AIeIDIEW O3 IIPISUOD .
SIUIWAN LIS
[epuruy 9y 1edwr Loy ooy ‘11 Sutpnpour ‘sonuod
[epueuy [eursjul vopeluswoalduwr pue udsop oyl Fumorady .

"PRAJOAUT JJES e Yy @OUHM,N sa1qelawimn

pue Jﬂuﬂd 94l O 13%e)s ol Je SIS¥(q 3s¥) Mwﬂﬁﬂ\w%ﬂﬂ Ue uo jipne Jno Qﬂﬁm .
%@GMMUCMO Hapne oy] 1onpuod pue

SOUT[PEIP JIPNE ]9 oM Jeyl sansuo 03 WIE9 I, 90UreUul,f Ele! Yam %Momoﬁu HI0M .

SIUNODIE JUSWRFeULW 9] JO MITAII ¥ PUE JUSWITEULUW 1Im Bujuued RIS\
SUOISSTOSIP Ydnory) pUNo’) Ay jo Surpurisiopun mo Junepdp yoeoudde jpny

L10Z Atenuer | 1-0102 uejd upny Aebuliey jo ybnosog uopuo-




Page 55

9 "panasal siybu iy "dT1 %N uolwoy L IUeID 0102 O

‘paygnuapt saystews oy dn Sumoroy ur

suonoe put $s31301d §,[10UN07) o) MITADI [Ia 2\ “s1pOq d1qnd uT pnexy
19919p puE 1U2421d 01 PoUSISOp 2$19I9X JUIYDILW-LILP S, UOISSTLILION)
PN 93 “DABENTU] pne,] feuoneN o) ur saedpnied punon) sy,

(14N) @Aneniuj pne.y jeuonen

Hrom UonesynIad mno 30O ToIsSNPuUOd o [I2UN0)) o1 O3 Ty Ut uuo&wu
pue G,N?m wuﬁmum T ONSST A om FI0M INO JO JUIWRDUIWIIOD 3l Ol I0LI ]

“11-010T $99F JO sa[eds pue swwresdord

JF0/\\, SUOTSSTUIWIOY) PN A} UT INO 19§ SUINIAI pue suned Juidjniad

303 $913 A[FNOY S} VO PIsEq DI $21eI 9SIY [, "USYEIIIPUN YIOM JUTAIT
91} JO 150D [N DY SI2A0D J¥Y) 9] ¥ “WINIDT PUE Wre Juesd Yo Jo 3199dsas
U1 1240223 03 paxmbai a1 om vorssTIIIIOD) Npny 2 Jo syuade sy Lpoq
Furfed yuesd sy Yum vorssnosIp FUIMO[[O] DWBYDS OB 10 UOISSTIO )
ypny oup 4q pansst ‘VONININSUT UONEdHYNIIY) € U Pay1dads ST ayvlropun
01 paxmbas st sopne o ey yrom ay 1, sarpoq Jurked Juead oy jo
J[EY2q UO “VOTSSTUWIOD) JIPNY 2} JO JUdFE UL Sk 8108 [T S[[] VOIWIOY ],
JUEIO) ‘SUINIST PUE SWTE[D JUEIS 0) UONE[I UT J1om Ino Jurdires uf
"SP[OYSaIY) pauTwIalopasd

9A0(E SUINIAI PUE SWIE]D JUI3 4JN392 01 pasmbor o1e om ‘Aouoyy 105
ON[EA PUE SIUDWRIEIS [EDURUY S [IDUNOT) ) JO JIPNE IO 0} UONIPPE U]
SUIN}ay pue SjuRIc JO UOKBIIJILIB)

"S9[EIS 9] S, VOTSSTUIUION)

PNy Y PIA SIUEPIOIIE UT yI0M ST 30§ d3reyd ‘arerrdordde sroym

‘PUE [DUNOT) A PIM I5IY) SSNISIP [[IA% M $10199(qO $ J0JDI[2 JO IMSIT ¥

ST Pa1IMOUI 3UIq $1S0D JO JUIAD 9T} U "297 1IPNE 23 Jo 11ed JOU 1% SI0109
4q posres suonsolqo 10 suonsanb Lue 01 Jurpuodsas ur parnour $1509

YT, "PasIeI $oUSS] Y UO SUONEIUasardar (e8] o5 01 Juswermbar o vr
IS P[NOd pue IUESYIUFIS 9q Aew YIoM [PUONIPPE 2], “UONID(qO §J0129[
91 VO UOISIIIP ¥ WHOJ O YI0M [EUONIPPE 2YEIIIPUN 0} paau Aews om
$1Un029E 91 03 323[qo 03 JyF a1 Temonted UT Iy I JO IMSAT ¥ SY

"$JUN029E 23 01 199(qo 01 3yTu oY

pue $51unodov 9yl Jnoqe suonsanb Joipne oy yse 01 S oy
sjunode 9 19adsur 01 3ydu 21y

'SIYSH UTENIID 103092 SIAIS g6 19V UOISSTUIWO ) PNy oY,
abuajjeys 10309|3

"SIUNODDE $[IDUNOY) Y1 YIm £OUd)sIsu0d 10§ yjoed
UONEPIIOSUOD (YO A)) SIUNOIDY JUDWUIIAOL) JO J[OY A\ Y} MITAT OS[E [ DA\
SJUNO02JY JUSWUIDAOL) JO D[OUM

TPUNOY) 31 JO 93pa[mouy

INO M JUIISISUOD ST 3T 31 SUTWIANIP 01 (SOHV) JUIWIIEIG IIUBUIIAOL)
[ENUUY I MITAT M 94 JIPNE STUNOIE 2} TO JIoM Ino Jo Jred sy
JUBWIBIR}S SOUBUIBAOL) [BNUUY

senss| 1oyl

110z Asenuer | 11-010Z ueld #pny Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 56

L "paniasal sybul iy "dT] N tojuioy ] JUerD 0102 ©

mowﬁﬁu puE $395 01 sadueyd pasodord
30 1o Surwoo svondumsse JWOOUT SUIMIIADY o
suerd sSurAes 913 JO UONII[ES T MITADI
0} 9014395 £33 out UMOP FuTIp pue [rEIap
Ul 71-110Z *03 svondwnsse 103pnq no Junsa], «
“Suruuerd pepueuy s punon
oY} U0 d4a'Y [ STY) T8} 10edwT Y pue MoTAdY
Sutpuadg a3 01 asuodsar s [PUNOY) 9T FOPISUOY) #
SONEF [EDUEUY JUIWIUIDAOL) [ed07T Isurede
uucmﬂuoﬁum [EIOURUT S [IPUNOY) A3 IIPISUOT) o
 s3ea4 29111 1XU O
7210 uerd a3 Jo Hqesasrp pue suonduwmsse
Suimorass veld [eOUELY W) WNIPaW
$,[IPUNOT) U1 JO M1AIX 3dIp-UT UE SYEIIPU[] »
. I 9 Areayoadg
"JOTIUOD [EUELY puE
wcﬁcﬁa [EULUY 0139)EMs 90UBUISA0T TepuUELy 01
Suneps siwowsdurire uo Bursnooy ygom pasvq-ysny

uaXeuapuUn aq 0} YIOM

ainn} ||qeaasaloy
ay} Joj sjesado 0}
anunuog 0} J! Sejqeua
1ey} uoiyisod |eioueul)
3|ge]S B 2Inoas
0} pue saijunuoddo
pue sysu
[eroueul) Aj@Anoays
abeuew o] sassasoud
pue swajsAs
|[BlOUBUlf }SNQOJ SBY
J19UNoD ay jeylsym
19pISU0D |[IM apA

- 2oualjisal [eloueuly
- Buunoas Joj acejd i
w“cmEmmcmtm sadosd
3 mmn _6_53 ayl

] BeLI9}1I0 9p0O)

“WOISSTWWON) NIpny 2y 4q payyads erayn

3unzodar om) uo paseq uOISIPUOS ASUOW 10§ IN[EA IO AL [[IM I [[-010T
WOT,{ "UOTSSTWIIOT) 1PNy ) £q PIadNPONUT U29q SEY JI0M JIpnE LoUoTA]

303 onfeA [e20] 03 yorordde mou € I9N19] 937 2ANEIIPUL INO PINSSI I DUIG

uolsnpuod WA L1-0102

"TOISN[IUOD

£ouow 103 SN[EA Y} St UMOUY ST SIY T, ‘SIDINOSIT JO ISN ST UL SSIUIATIJD
pue £5uany)e “Awouods Juumdas 103 siusweueare sadord soed ur

nd sey [PUNOY) AU} IPYIYM UO UOISNPUOD E INSST 03 st sa3mbaz 9po7) oy T,

uonoINpoIU|

L10z Aenuer | 11-040Z ueld #pny Aebuliey jo ybnosog uopuo-



Page 57

g 'pantasa: sjybl Iy "dT1 MN oo | UBID 0102 ©

"SISEQ MITAII-AQ-MITADI € UO [1DUNOY)

oy 01 Junzodas [euonippe Aue 2213% [ 9\ TN NPNY [ERUTY oY)

ur pue (odax )97 YSI) 22UrUIIA0L) (i padreyr) asoy], 03 3rodoy] o ul
pa110dar aq [ saSessow £y puE YJoM JIPNE J\F A [¥O0] NO [[¥ JO SIMSIT oY

“MDTADT [OED JO

Surum pue 2dods ‘s2an199[qo o1 Surkyads s190m30 I 25ULI9§9Y JO SWII T,
3911q 2918 [ 9 ‘UOISNOUOD A 10 1roddns 01 smo1ass og1oads ayrITopUn
01 ue[d oM 219U\ "STOQIS PUE SIIDJO J0J DUELINSSE JO IDIMOS € ST PISN 3G
ued pue seare (uoud s,[PUno’) 9y vo pasnoog D1qrssod FAdIIYM ‘ST 3T sEaTE
s y31g 3no FuIsSAIPPE ST [[oM ST ITY) 2INSUD O3 JIOM JAJ A FNO IO [[IA A\

SIUAWRFULITE 20ULUIIA0G JO MITAST
yuapuadopur pazordwos £puades oy woxy wcaaa .

suonor waucugwag Ul 9pvws $591303d MITAY W

“ma1A9Y Sutpuadg

o 03 asuodsas s punon A3 JO IXIIVOD

oY U1 SjuSWIGUIIE 9030F3FoM pue Furyrom
drgsyounred JO SMD1AAI ()1-600T 1O BO dn MOT[O,] »

*$9DTATIG [E120G NPy UT §393pnq

[euosiod Jurdeurews 103 syusweurare s oUNON)
o jo Lovnbope oty ssassE 01 MATAYF ® N0 L1Iv7) W

: ek o Surmp pawrogaad sootazos

407 Ysfqeass 03 ueunorad (1-600z s,Punon)
oy 03 [003 Surprewyduaq WA Ino Addy .«

i om Afpeogroadg

s19bpnq s93ybiy
UIL}im S32IN0Sssl
sy Bursnuond
Sl [1IPUNoY)
oL} lsyjaum
19pISUQD ||IM S A

: ; . ssindasy
“fouapyye pue moy Buibusjieyo
Ayanonpoid Sunaosdu pue soomosas Suispmond Joj sjuswabuele

303 SJUSWRZULITE UO JUISNOO] JIOM PISEQ-YSTY | 0 Ll

- Sey [1Punog eyl

uayeHapun aq 0} IO Z eLIB}ID 8p0)

110z Atenuer | 11-0102 ueld upny Aebuney jo ybnoiog uopuo-



Page 58

6 "Panasal sUBu iy “d T N UolIoy ] RIS 0102 ©

"SIUEBISISSE JIpNE JO Wed) ¢ Aq

paroddns aq s vap
1usunredap souruy
$,[IPUNOT) Y3 YIIM UOSTET]
fep-o1-Lep pue spomppy
3IpNE 24 Jo 2ouewIoyIad
a3 303 2[qrsuodsas s1 UsPL]
‘eystuel 01 Suniodoy

woo 16 yn@sdijiyd-usjey 3

G8€Z 822/ 020 1
BORSY
(vov) sdijjiug usjoH

"SINSST FUNUNOIIE [LITULD)
Bu1A]0S9T 10J 10EILOD
Jo1urod 1811y 213 ST pUE
ssa001d 11pne a1 noyInoryy
[IPUNOT) A1 03 Y2eqpPad)
opraod [ eysiuey]
$IUNODDY JO PESL]

3y JOJ 19EIVOD UTLW 3}

ST PUE S1U2WIA)EIS [EDUEUY
a1 jo npne o1 Suideuewy
303 9[qrsuodsas st eystueLL]

woo 16 Y n@pjuelos eysiuey 3

21028212020 L
eIs18sy
(vo0oV) pjuejog eysiueH

‘STOQUIDIA] PUE SIDYJO
s,puno”) o) 01 s130dos
pue sue[d Junuosord

01 Jo1rd Suniodoas

Jo £orImooe soInsud

pue sindino ypne jo

Lrenb oy smotass surjoren)
‘uerd

JIPNE [[eI2A0 ) JO AT12AT[9p
311 pue JIpne a1 Jo Juruuni
Jloowss 9Y3 2INsUD 0} Jpne

<

[eUFaIUT SUIPNOUT ‘S12EIU0D
[1oUn07) oY YA uosTer pue
Suruuerd “A8a1ens ypne oy

303 91qrsuodsas st durOIL)

woo 16 N®auy b6 aulj0ied 3
§80¢ 82/.. 020 L

(v4dD) 23119 suijoies

uoIsNPUOd pue syrodox

1pne oy3 Surudis ‘pue ndino
Jo Anrenb oy Sutpnpur
3pNE 3Y3 3O AIIAT[IP [[EIA0
a1 103 a1qisuodsas s1 e
PINIWIOT) Npny 243

PUE S190JJ() [IPUNOY) JOTUIS
I9YI0 DULUL] JO JOIIII(T
oY) DATMDIXT Jo1Y") I}

303 3081000 L9 © 9q [IM e
TPUNOY) a1 01 2snIadxd
Lroyine [edoy 2a1sUIXD STY
Suidunq ‘pear] JuswodeSuy
$,[IDUNOT) A ST e

woo b ynnassopined 3

081L€82..020 L
pro uwawsBebuy
(vd4dD) nessoq jned

‘VOREDOT JO U?SUUQ%Q.«& e 03
‘ . H

pareuruassip pue padopasp
2T $2O1AIIS puE $oudnadxo
2on0esd pood ‘svopt mou Je
SIMSUD 01 $IIYJO INO ¥

MQ IO O %Cﬁ&ﬁﬁuxmccu
“onovad puonvu v

se a1ezodo om n.ﬁ,u,,/u?cz

s3s11e100ds 303008 orpqnd e

9IE PUE BOPUOT UI paseq
ST WEd) JPNE UTBW JNO

LLoz Arenuer | 11-010z ueld Hpny AeBuuey jo ybnosog uopuo-



Page 59

0} ‘panasal sybu |1y "dT1 %N uojwoy) WBIH 0102 ©

"UOISNPUOD ASUOJA] JOJ N[EA
8,[PUNOY) 33 uo Yrom no 1roddns
03 pasn 9q [ 9snI2dx9 s ANy

Juatadeuew

a3uryd pue VO EWIO)SULI)

pUE SmI1Ad1 2ouBWI0JIdd

pue £oudpyyoe ‘enutuy

ur Sursirenads soustradxo
30309s o1qnd 2ATSUMIXD se] Ano)

wodb )yN@uoylio Anb 3

momm 82,1020 L
OSIADY
2&& uoyo Ang

"[ounon)

AU PIM SINSST SUNUNOIDE
xa1dwoo fue jo uonnjosas

oy ur 1oddns o3 ojqepeat oq [
pue wea) yrpne oyl 03 13oddns
[e21UY293 IPN[OUT [[IA I[OF STF]
"SJURTPD INO

[Ie ssoxoe AQUISISUOD [IA I[EIP
93¢ sanssT [ea1uy23) xo[dwoo Je
Sunmsuo 105 s[qisuodsas st sTUI(T

woob-yn@adioyysiusep 3
Sm@ €89 /.0 L
¢ s |
(v4dD) aduoyy siueq

Ay

-
w e

ue

"Swire[ JULId 91 JO UONEIYNIND
1) 2IBUIPIO0D 01 [PUNOT) 3
Yim yIom [ pue swweidord
npne s10eI8 oY) Jo Judwodeurw
[[e3940 311 307 2[qIsuodsar s1 YOIN

wooB N0l ey yoiu g

wmm 6180050 L
Jaupugn //%ﬁ«&»&ﬁ/
?Gs JojAe | ¥oIN

"$nssT Aue ssndSIP 03 [IPUNOT)
93 01 J[qE[IEA® 9q O] SNUNUOD
14 PUE ‘POPI2U SE 1135S0(]
e 707 asnndop osfe [ meg
"BIIE [8D0]

AU UT SIUDTP SEIN PUE [IOUNOD
IO INO PUE JUIWUIIA0TZ
€207 I9pIA “TDUNOT) 9y

3o 2ouanadxoa sty Sursn ‘A31ems
ypne o) Sumoarep pue Junias
u1 dutjore,) 1oddns im meg

woo1b3yN®saybny-ned 3
96¢C 82l. omo ._.

¥

110z Asenuer | L1-010Z ueld ypny Asbuliey jo ybnoisog uopuo



Page 60

L1 "panesal sjubu iy “dT] Mn uojoy L U 010z ©

"$90IN0sY AeI0dI07) JO JOIIICT Y YIIA SIY) SSNOSIP

[ 9 “spreadn 993 1Ipne s [OUNO7) oY) 951427 03 ATESSIIIU 37 IIPISTOD oM
ey} 10240 91 U "[puno) Iy 4q papraord voneumoyur o Lienb 10 Surwn
o 01 onp pouvueld st 3Ipne oy ss21303d 01 9[qEUN 21T oM J1 30 PaYTULPT AIE
SYSII MOU JULIYIUSIS J1 PastanT 9q Lewr puw Md1A91 03 193(qns aq [ 993 oY T,

s170da1 33e3p 03 papraoid aq [ sasuodsax 1dword pue npne
o vo Junordun syuawdoppasp JuesyuSis Jo sn wIOFUT A [PUNOY) I A

ypne mo 1oddns o1 yusmyns ‘sjuswaels

[eruELy o3 Ut saundy apraoid ey swoIsAs [EILIEW [[E UO YIoM I¥EIIIPUN
pue spaepuess [euotssajoid aendordde 100w 01 SnuNUO [ JIpnE [PUINUT
SY:IT 03 uonISUEN 3y (i Npne mo uo Funordwn sonsst juedyIuSIs ou A

npne s1unodot a3 33oddns 01 papraoid Suraq

spa0221 pue s1aded Suryrom Qienb pood pue Apum ym swesy suonenrea
pue 20UTUY § 19UN07) I i Funjrom Jutof 9a19e01d JO [949] PooT € A

:suondumsse SUIMO[0] 943 9prLU 2ALY om “2[EdS MO[I] 99§ JIpnE o) Fumas U]
"99] JIPNE 3[EIS P3sIFINs Y} VLY TOMO[ 0/,G ST 99§ pauue(d oy,
'G98°1¢GT 1B PaIP[MONED U923 SEY [IDUNOT) Y1 JOF 99F JPNE 9[¥ds YT,

993 01-600T Y3 Uyl s3] 0000 1S ST ST (LY A JO 2AIN[9%X3) 000‘GOSF
ST 11-010Z 03 (puny UOTSUlJ 93 mﬁmiuxvv JIpNE 9] J0J 99 AT EIIPUIL
TmuOu uﬂu ﬁQ:VN ﬁuuﬁz ﬁuﬂwwﬂ Huuuw‘m Uw,m uﬂuﬂ/\ ®>ﬁmuﬂmuﬁi mno CH no 19s w(.w

99 Jipne 11-010Z

TRUNOD Ay Yum 29§ pasodoid ap jo

JUoW23I3e FUIMO[O] ‘vorssturo?) 3pny oy £4q pasordde oq snw 99J
9[eds ) 03 UOREHEA AUY “99] JIPNE I[EIS I} UO SprEMUMOp JO spreadn
UONELIEA € UT JNSOT A6 ST T, 'SOOUEISWNIIID [E20] 19327 03 oM

INO I0[7E} VA 9M ‘SIOQUIDJN PUT STIDTF(O) [PUNOY) YIIA SUOISSNOSIP
SOPNIUT YD1 WIEd) JIpne 93 Aq 421491 ySnoroy € uo paseg

99} JIpNe 9[eS 8y} 0} SUCHEBLIEA

“DOTSSTUIIIO )

NIpPnY o) 4q PoUTIIINLD SB amypuadxs ssoxd pauuerd jo a8eyuaoiad

¥ puE 43noIog UopuoT € JOJ JUSWIP PIXY ® SOPNIUT BORENOTEd

2e0s 3 “PUNOT) A3 J0,] 1 [-0T(Z FOF $99 JIPNIE JO (LIS §,VOISSTUWO")
FIPRY S} IIA 9DUEPIOIDT UT PIJE[NITED ST 99] JIPNE S [DUNOT) AT,

99} JIPNE 3[B0S INOA 8)eIN3|RD 9M MOH

JUIWUOIIAUD [0XITOD punos  aoe[d Ut sey 31 pue

SY{SE 3pne JuLdYIuSIs ou ey Apoq parpne 3 219ym Jipne ue 213]dwod
01 paambaz 333 91 JO ATWNS? 183 S, VOISSTUWOT) ) $3U2$23da7T 1]
"800C 29121 1PNy JO 9po7

O3 (A IDUEPIOIIE UL 0 VOISSTULIO,) JIPNY 943 I9pun sopiqrsuodsas
£3omeas 109w 03 ssopue Aq pazmbar 993 oy se pauyap st sy,

{98} pne 8je0s oy} s 1BUYM

LLoz Aienuer | 11-010Z ueld #pny AsBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo-



Page 61

Zh 'panasal subl Iy "dTT 0N UOJWOUL JUBID 0102 ©

‘ounog ey Aq paiinoul Buiaq sisoo 1ipne [euonippe o}
pes| |im ‘spjousq Buisnoy se yons ‘swie|o able} Jo uoneoyeo

au} yum senss| “sajed Aunoy paysiignd je pabieys aq |im pue
paseq aTeds oy Isutede 997 71-110Z N0 398 [ 3\ "000°T9FF punore aq pmoam Ajuo eyewnss ue si yiom uopesyes Juelb 1oy 89y pejonb ay ]
‘993 9[EIs Y JO SIUDWII3 I[GEMTA ) UJ SIUDWIAOW JOlew ou 03 39a(qns “yorym

‘0401 31Ny  £q paonpaz £q A [1DUNOY) 9y 10§ 99 IS Y3 TI-1 10T IO

ToUNON) 2] 1® YS1I JO [2A9] possasse 241 uo

SJUNOOOE poie)sal
01-6002 @y} Jo malaal yipne Buipnoul ‘Buunodoe S¥4| JO Jesk 1sly

"000°0ZF o uvordas B} JO JoedWl B} PUB SJUNOIDY JUSWILISAOS) JO SJOYAA JO SAISNOU] #
Dﬁu CM CUUQ ®>w£ UMSOB nmuUZAﬁ— 'ﬁ nﬂuﬂﬂ.\x/ VNHO\ / QUCNQQO-«.HUAH wgmwwﬁwz A\#\U
PARIOqE J0J Pa3IEyd 2q JOU [ [IPBNOT) 9Y) I¥T PIULPUOD OS[E SEY UOISSTUWO)) 000°063 000°063 »SUINJaI PUE SWIED JO UORBOILSD

YL "000°98%F 03 995 Ipne [[-Q[0g S,PUNOD Y3 FuNpaT JO 199539 Jou

2 S SIYT, "SI2INO0SIY JO 3S[) JO UONESSID Y SIDI[JIT YOIYM PIOUNOTUE U ‘
Apuaas sey ()00‘61F punoIE) 993 2[Eds JO 0/,C°¢ JO 91¥QRI IPYUNY  pue Sy, 03 000°GZ1L 000°svL uoIsnpuos A
UONTSUEL) 3] WoTj SUTSIIE $99] JIPNIE UT $SISEDIIUT ) 218301 03 9)eqdI 049 © uoArd

000°G1S3 0005053 99} jipne jejo

000°0¥€ 000°'09¢ #sjuswalels [epoueuly

ApEa3TE SEY UOTSSTWWOY) 93 [ [-((Z J0,] TUSWSSISSY vary 2arsuoyardwon

21 JO UONESSID Y3 FUIMO[[OF 993 JIPNE [1 /(107 2y} UO sy o 1oedun 0L/6002 Li/oLoe eale Jipny
89} [enjoy 89} pauueld
oY) puE YoM JpnE 10J £SUOA 303 anfeA Ted0] 03 yorordde mou Y Jo asiape
01 010 ISNSny UT SPABNDIIXD JATYD [IDUNOD [[¢ 01 DI0IM UOISSIULIOT) NIPNY YT, 99} JIpNe 11/0L0Z :Z dlqel
934 Jipne ay} uo joeduwil ~ JI0M NJIA |B20] 0} yorosdde maN :MO[aq I[qEI Y UT UMOYS ST 93] JIPNE 213 JO Arewnuns

110z Asenuer | 11-010Z ueid upny Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 62

€1 'Panasal siybu Iy g 1T NN UoILIoY ] UBID 0102 ©

110¢C ¥2quada(q

110T I2qUI2AON]

110z *oqui=ndag

1107 oqu=idag

110z 2un(

110z &renaga,g

ajep anssj

JuaWIA0IdWT JOF PIYNUIPT SUONTPUSWIWOINY
JI0M UOTIEOYBID SIULIS IO WOy SUISIIE SonssI Loy s1y3rySryy

pne [1/010g MO woiy Julstre sansst £o3] o) sosTrWIUING

UOISNPUOd A3U0W 107 anjea uo 1oday
$1U9WANEIS [eUELY uo Jrodoy

sarnpasoid yipne wo1y Funnses SUONEPUIWW031 Judswasorduw]
$S90U2I9JIIP JIpne pajsnipeun pue palsnlpe Jo vonETUNUWIWON)
UONN[OSIT 1Y) pue JIpne oY woij Julstre sansst Ly 1ySySry

IONIWIO)) JIPNY PUE SID[F() JOTUG L WAGUOT)

JIpnE 9Y3 0§ s¥aTe sndoj IYSIYITE]

£8urpr0ooe asuodsar pauuerd arepdn pur sysu motaoy

Sursueld 31pne pa[eIap Jo vOISNPUD Uo A321Ems ITPNE N0 FUMINC

SSHILRLOT) 1PNy LA UB[d WIyuo))
asuodsar pauueld ano pue seare ysu ySiy o {nuapy
yoeordde aipne sumpng

uoesl e
wiely sjuels

1oy

Hpny [enuuy

(09z vsi)
SBIUBLWIBAOSY
yitm pabieyo
asoy) o3 poday

WNPUBIOWaW
Yaeouddy
npny

ue|d ypny

“Aed pang

fue 01 30 “Aoedes Enprarpur
FOYI UT IDDLJO JO IO
Aue 01 szompue {q uoyes st

Apqrsuodsas ou pue ounon
A3 JO 28T [0S I JOJ
poredaad aze pur sonmunwon)
npny Oyl pue Juowndeurw

0} passaIppeE dre $1r0doy
DIPIUWOT) NP 23

01 pansst FuIdq 91032q $IDYJO
owetrdordde oy i paside
PUE PassnosIp aq s s10day

110z Atenuer | 11-010Z ueld #pny Asbuuiey jo ybnosog uopuoT



Page 63

1 “paniasal syBU [y "dTT N UOIWOY] 1UBID 0L0Z ©

HIOM JIPNE WIA [BO0] pUB SSLI JO MaIAas BujoBuQ

UOEOIILBD SjURIL)

~ — -~
uofjajdwos pue Yiompial Jipny IOM S{OAUOD WILIBYU]
- A ~ ~ - —~
(37174 LHOZ 1102 LL0Z LEOT kLO2 o2 LioZ FLOZ LLOZ “HHOZ
Jaquianag JaqeAoN 1eqoyoQ daquigydes 1snBnvy Amp aunp AE judyy Hosep Aienigay
Hoday m | | . |
Aewwng leyeiypny | | uoISNOUOD WIA _ﬁ, NIOM JIpNE YA | | [ seuWOD
uopesyIHe) [enuuy pue uojuido A oo} jo sBuipuy - oﬁwnﬁﬁ_wﬂwmﬁ,‘m L oupny ojueld cm_mzmw:< i
el enss| m Ipny ubig ho uopejuesald . i - upny juesald I
anssy | ; | ; ;

i i i
| | ;

(991Wwi0d 10s5892NS 10) sBuaaW BPIWIWICS PNV || 1B aJuepualy
pea juawabebug pue JapeaT ay) usamiag sbunesw dn yojes Ajyluow xig
wea) JIpny [BuILIXg aY3 pue s1a3Q Je1yd uasmiaqg sBuyaaw uosiey punoa teak Juenbaidy

AL

110z Aenuer | L1-010Z ueld 3pny AebBuuey jo ybnolog uopuo



Gl "paaiass) SIUBU ly T N valWoUL Weig 040E &

saorpuaddy

LL0Z Asenuer | 11-010Z Ueld upNY AsButiey jo 4Bnosog UopuoT




Page 65

9} "pantasal bl |1y “dT1 YN uolwoyL e 0402 ©

JusWwuTEIIRIUD pue Aeldsoy ‘1318 uo
£on0d s vorssTIIWOY) Ay Aq IPIQE 1SN URED) UPTE DY JO SIDAUISW PUT PEr] Juswodeduy oy,
*fpoq SHN 70 JuswuIA0g
[e2o] se[nonsed ¢ 0} 30 ‘eraual uT sATPoq GHN IO JUaWUIAA0F [¥D0] JO SUOHOUNY Ay} 01 ANXPTP
21%[23 SINIANIY 950y ‘dnoad 1sa30ut [epads T0 *Gred (eangod € jo Jeyaq uo Lanse reomjod
ur3ed Supier woiy pajudaard 93 W) PIPNE I JO STAGUIAW JOWUIS PUE Pear| juswadedus oYy,
s3224 913 £3943 90U J5¥3] ¥ PaSurYd 3q ‘SIDUBISWNOID
[puondaoxo 350w a1 Inq J[E Ul ‘pInoys upnE o 30§ S[qIsuodsal pes| JuowaBedugg oy,
"UOISSTUIWION)
Y3 FUN[OSUOD IST INOTIM YIOM UOISSTIIOD) UO UOISSIUrwo?) oy Aq paywodde SI0)IpNE JAYIO
3o sourwiiogzad Y1 vo FURULWWOD IAOAUT Yoy SIuaWLSYSUD 1d29T J0U pnoys sToupny .
29 WpnE [vwiou oy} woxg APyvredas 303 padieyd pue yrom puomppe, Suinq
se ueld ypnw oy unpEs pareRUaIdYIP £7¥d]> 9q PMOYS I ‘suorsnPUOd put voudo s JO)pNE 2y
1soddns 0y £3essa09u se paynsnl aq ssimIayo J0uUED e vare Temonsed ¥ U oM paseq-ysir
mo 413> 03 0MpNE Y3 saaW Apoq panpne a 239y “pasrwordwos 3q p[nod ssuapuadapu
7 Yoy uondadaad aqeuosea v 03 asix aa18 1yBrw 10 2duspuadaput 1Y) sswordwos
pmoa 31 3 (sapprqisuodsas £roimgeds 3193 199w 0) parmbar winunun 9y} 280qE puE
240 310 '9°7) £poq paupne UE 30§ Yrom [ruONPpE Wi0gidd Jou pnoys stonpue pauroddy .
1SMO[[0F se 31 Jusunuodde Jpne s1y)
03 JuEAd[RT $3[ £33 2y T, “sa[ns dPads Jo IqUIN € SIpNPUT sI0NpnY’ J03 ddurpIn Juipurg ay .

uawadpnl 1Ay jo Lianosafqo

oy sredwy 30 yr0Mm TaY JO 1081 30 1u2xd 9dods sy iy 01 AqEiynsniun 1o {prerdorddew
WAy Is1Ed ‘03 paarpIad aq Ajqruosear pnos o ‘Kew yorym sdiysuonepr reuosiad so [evosssajord
Teyjo Lue ojur Buaus proat poys Jyers 3dy pue ssonpne paiuiodde emonred uj

1$2I2)UT JO IDTFUOD ¥ ‘03 281 9aIT 01 paatadiad oq £[qruosEas pnod 30 ‘0 as aaid WS jey Aem
&ue w150 10U op Loy Jey) Arnsua pue “APAndslqo pue Apuspuadopur yrom 3153 Ino L1315 s30)1pNE
parnodde yey) Juswarmbas [erousd Suipirzaao ue sey 9omoEsg JIPRY JO 3PO7) S, UOISSTLIWIOT) Y,

5UPIOdWT JUITINS JO 3G 0) PAIIPISUOD 2T YOTYA SIDUEW UO furoyine oy

i £p22Ip 2)EIUNWIWOD 0 Ta89MOY IYS13 oY $9AT9$93 JONPNE 3T, "99UWOD JIpne
ST §1 95UTUIIAO0T YHm PIFTEYd ISOYH 0} JONPNE dY} WOIJ SUONTIUNWWIOD JO 93ss2IppY
ayerdordde oy “ases mof vy - Linud ue jo vondeIp pue [013u02 ‘vorsiazadns a

s pAsnnua suosiad dsowp, st 25UBuIA08 (im PaBITyd 350N, SIUPIP PIEPUTLS oYY

‘pastwordwod
10U st &1an03{qo meyy pue Juspuadapur a3e Loy “Juawadpn [euorssajord s Joypne
Y U e put s pandwion a3 SpIepuEs [aryId s g v 29 3P Junum ur SWIuod .
JUAP Y} paBreyd SEY J0IIPNT Y1 1Ty} 295 JO JUNOWTE [¥10} Y]
put syeax 9s913 3sutede 1>9303d 03 aoerd i nd sprengoyes paeppr ‘aouapuddopu
pue Anandslqo s soxpne o1 uo 1vaq Lew yeyy sdiysuoneps [e Junmm U SISOPISIP o
Joypne pajutodde o yeyy sommbar (25uruaa08 Y padrvyd asou I SIDYEW
IPRE JO UOLYIIINWWO)) (97 (PU¥(aI] put 1) Sunipny uo prepurl§ [FUONYUINU]

"MO[2q PISIEWIWINS 278 SPIEPUE]S I3 puE
SIONPNY 10 20UTPING FUIPUEIG 9ONIEIJ NPNY JO 2p07) AP JO stuawannboz urews Ay,

(@dv) preog seonoig Sunipny
oy 4q pansst sprepuels (€212 puE SpIEpUTIS Sunipne Yim f1dwoo o3 posmbor osfe ore
SIONPIE SIUDWIEIS [ErouEUy o Funipne uayy Iuaunuiodde Lw jo swial oy saugap

UPIYm “SIONPNY 105 25UTPIG) FUIPUEIS PUE DBIEIJ IPNY JO IPO7) S UOISSIUIWOT)
oy Y £dwod o3 pannbas axe worsstuwon) ypny oy Aq pasurodde szonpny
“Mopq pasprwiwns st 41andalqo pue aduapuadapus Jo 1adsar ur syuswasmbaz

SUOISSIWWOT) U3 NI PUE gV 943 Aq pansst sprepuels [eorgsa oy i £dwod oy

"parmbar se “90Inosas

[euonippe pur souired yuapuadapur ue asImN [ am spIEPUTIS [2o1pd Ym A[dwod o)
9pTO UT PUE JIPNY [PUINU] JO JOIIIN( IUEISISSY sE 99401dWwa UOIUIOY ] JUTIL) ToWIO] ¥
jo wawlordws s;munoy) ay Summoro,] wes) ipne ay jo Arandaiqo pue ssuapuadopur
3 3935 Avw yep sdiysuonear ur nof o) aresrunwwos 03 paxmbax o o

uodapuy
Vv xipuaddy

110z Aenuer | 11-010Z ueld spny AsbBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 66

3N 02" UOILIOYI-JURIS MMM

“uoRIgNd Sty U jeusiews Aue

0 ns3) e 52 Buyoe Loy Bupe s 1o Bunoe tosad Aue o)
PaUOISEIIO $SO} 0 511 AG patdadse aq ued Aqisuodsal oy
“3pin3 e se Ajuo pasedaad Lasq sey uoedgRd Siy:

wapuadapur Sy
IDCRUBLL BYLAQ PBIRARP BJE SHINISS "diySIaULIRd apmpLom B
10U BJ SLLY I3QUUISUI 3U} PUE [EUONRUISIL UCIIOY YR in
{[BUCNBUIB Y UORLIOL ] JU1815),) PY] JEUOIRUIBIL| LCYLIOH | WEIY
IO Lt SIS B S1 17 W0 uCIIoy | jiesg

“dissauried Appgey payg e
‘TN UOJUIOY] JURLE) SUeSW OO Jug e,

“POAIBSDI SIYELI 1Y "4 7] N UOHLIOY | e 9T0Z O

uojuioy| Jueis) Y




Page 67 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:
[No.]

Audit Committee On 3 February 2011

Report Title: Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Report of:  Director of Corporate Resources

Signed : J_‘%""’Téf/ iZ)/II”

Contact Officer : Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 from the Council’s external auditors,
Grant Thornton and to note the issues raised and actions being taken.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1. The Annual Audit Letter is part of the formal process of external audit and provides
an independent assessment of the Council’s position in terms of progress in meeting
its strategic objectives.

3. Recommendation
3.1. To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 and to note the Council’s response.

4. Summary

4.1. The Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 summarises the key issues arising from the
work undertaken by the external auditors, Grant Thornton, during their 2009/10
audit. The main two areas of audit work are in respect of the audit of the accounts
and the Value for Money conclusion.




Page 68

4.2. In terms of the audit of the accounts for 2009/10 the Council received an unqualified
opinion from the external auditors. This was formally reported to the General
Purposes committee on 23 September 2010 within the statutory deadline.

4.3. In respect of the Value for Money conclusion, the auditors concluded that the
Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2010. This was
formally reported to the Audit Committee on 2 November 2010.

4.4. The auditors work on the certification of grant claims and returns is ongoing. The
results of that work will be formally reported to the April 2011 Audit Committee.

4.5. The report also outlines how the Council is addressing the key areas for action
raised by external audit in the Annual Audit Letter.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1. The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
has no specific comment to make.

6. Service Financial Comments

6.1. The resource implications for implementing the actions recommended in the Annual
Audit Letter have been considered as part of the overall financial and business
planning process and are included within the previously approved budget.

7. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
7.1. Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 — Grant Thornton

8. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
10.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

* Report of Director of Corporate Resources to General Purposes Committee
on 23 September 2010 — Annual Governance Report — to consider the
statutory report of Grant Thornton, the Council's appointed auditor

e Report of Grant Thornton to Audit Committee on 2 November 2010 — Value
for Money 2009/10

9. Background

9.1.  The Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 is compiled by the Council's appointed
external auditors Grant Thornton. It summarises the conclusions and significant

Report Template: Formal Bodies




9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

1.

11.1.

Report Template: Formal Bodies

Page 69

issues arising out of the audit work for the Council in the preceding year. It
includes information from the audit of the Council’s accounts, the Council’'s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources and the certification of claims and returns.

The Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 from Grant Thornton is an important external
assessment of the Council’s overall position.

The auditors’ findings have been reported previously to the General Purposes
Committee and to the Audit Committee and actions agreed in response. The
Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation and progress of
the detailed actions, which are summarised in this report.

At the time of writing this report, the Annual Audit Letter will have been presented
to the Cabinet at its meeting of 25 January 2011; any feedback from that meeting
will be reported orally to this committee.

Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

This is the third year of Grant Thornton operating as the Council’s external
auditor. Council officers have worked closely with Grant Thornton in preparation
for and during the audit and a positive relationship continues to exist.

In relation to the Council’'s 2009/10 accounts, an unqualified opinion has been
received. This is a positive outcome for the Council.

The auditors’ Value for Money (VFM) concluded that “the Council has made
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2010”.

The Council has improved its management arrangements in a number of areas,
including data quality, commissioning and procurement and asset management
and the auditors’ view is that the Council’'s implementation of IFRS is on track.
They also highlighted a number of areas for improvement. Council responses to
these key areas are set out below.

Audit work on the certification of grant claims and returns is ongoing. The
outcome of this work will be formally reported to the Audit Committee in April
2011.

Recommendation
To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2009/10 and to note the issues raised and

actions being taken. Progress on the implementation of actions will be periodically
reported to members.



12.  Summary Actions

12.1.

Page 70

A summary of the key actions are set out in the table below.

Recommendations Response Responsible
Officer

The impact of the changes to | In the light of the government | Chief
local government funding are | funding reductions, the Executive and
taken into account in all Council's overall service the senior
future financial plans - in doing | structure is being reviewed management
this the Council will need to alongside detailed individual | team
review the services it service reviews. These
delivers and how it delivers reviews are taking place as
them and where savings and part of the Medium Term
changes can be made Financial Planning which
whilst minimising the impact includes an extensive budget
on the standard of service consuitation process, Equality
delivery Impact Assessments and

robust budget scrutiny.
The Medium Term Financial The process of reviewing the | Director of
Strategy is reviewed in the Medium Term Financial Corporate
light of the Spending Review Strategy is already well Resources
and is subject underway. A detailed report
to robust stress testing and was submitted to Cabinet on
sensitivity analysis 21% December 2010 and

further reports are planned for

January and February 2011.

The scrutiny of investment

and savings proposals

commenced in January 2011.

The review process will

continue to be supported by

robust budget monitoring

arrangements that ensure

that all service proposals are

subject to sound financial

analysis.
It continues to emphasise the | As a result of concerns raised | Director of
importance of data quality, in the previous Annual Audit | Corporate
including housing benefit Letter the Council has put in Resources

information, to prevent any
relaxation in compliance

place a more rigorous regime
for maintaining the integrity of
its data quality. The
associated systems and
procedures will continue to be
closely managed and
monitored.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 71

Recommendations Response Responsible
Officer
There is a continued focus on | The Council has a detailed Director of
the production of its first IFRS | project plan responsible for Corporate
compliant accounts in implementing the new IFRS. | Resources

2010/11, including ensuring
that there are sound
arrangements for the valuation
and accounting for property
assets

We will continue to work
closely with Grant Thornton to
ensure timely implementation
and careful management of
the project risks.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 72



Page 73
Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

26 November 2010



Page 74

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Contents

1 Introduction and Key Messages 1
2 Audit of Accounts 4
3 Value for Money 7
4 Closing Remarks 8
Appendices

A Reports issued in relation to the 2009/10 audit 9

B Audit and Other Fees 10



1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.7

Page 75

tondon Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Introduction and Key Messages

Purpose of this letter

The purpose of this Annual Audit Letter (lettet) is to summatise the key issues arising
from the work that we have cartied out during the year at The London Borough of
Haringey (the Council). Although this letter is addressed to the members of the
Council, it is also intended to communicate the significant issues we have identified to
key extetnal stakeholders, including membets of the public. The letter will be published
on the Audit Commission's website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk and also on the
Council's website.

Responsibilities of the external auditors and the Council
This letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission. This is available from

www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditor by the Audit
Commission, the body responsible for appointing extetnal auditors to local public
bodies in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and
governance matters.

Our annual wotk programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (the
Code) issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally
determined work. Our work considers the Council's key risks, when reaching our Code
conclusions.

[t is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that propet arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business and that public money is safeguarded and propetly
accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

What this letter covers

This Letter covers our 2009/10 Code audit, including key messages and conclusions
from our work on:

e auditing the 2009/10 year end accounts (Section 2)

®  theaccuracy of grant claims and returns to various government departments
and other agencies (Section 2)

®  assessing the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of its resources (Section 3).

A list of all the reports issued during the year is provided at Appendix A, whilst
Appendix B sets out our actual and budgeted fees for 2009/10.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Page 76

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

The Economy

The Government's most urgent priotity in the current financial climate is to reduce the
deficit whilst ensuring the economic recovery continues. Savings of over £6 billion are
planned from Government spending during this financial year, including some £1.1
billion in reduced grants to local government. At the same time, the Government aims
to reduce top-down government and devolve power and greater financial autonomy to
local authorities by a range of measutes including:

e abolishing Comprehensive Area Assessment

¢ reducing ring-fenced central government grants

® abolishing Local Area Agreements

* undertaking a full review of local government finance

The October Spending Review (SR) will have a significant impact on the Council, its
plans and its finances. The SR announced a 28% cut in DCLG grants, estimated job
losses within the public sector at 490,000 and £7bn of savings are required to be made
to the welfare budget, mainly through benefit cuts. Cuts are being top-loaded with the
greatest reductions being required in the first year of the SR period. The June Budget
announced the Government's intention to work with local authorities to freeze council
tax in England in 2011-12. The SR announced that local authorities who freeze their
council tax in 2011-12 and keep their bills flat for the next four financial years will have
the resultant loss to their tax base funded at a rate of 2.5% in each year of the Spending
Review period. As a large urban authority with a reliance on grant funding, the financial
challenge for Haringey is significant, with the anticipated impact of the SR requiring
savings of £45 - £50m to be made in 2011-12 alone.

The issues highlighted in this Annual Audit Letter should be understood within the
context of the significant changes to government policy and the reduction in financial
resoutces outlined above.

Key messages

Accounts audit

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2009/10 accounts on 27 Septembet
2010, ahead of the statutory certification deadline. Our opinion confirmed that the
accounts give a true and fair view of Council's financial affairs at 31 March 2010 and of
its income and expenditute for the year . The audit process was efficient and well
managed, although there have been a number of audit adjustments. This has affected
fixed asset accounting in particular following implementation of a new closing
procedure. Further detail on our accounts audit work is detailed in section 2.

Value for Money Conclusion
We issued our annual Value for Money (VFM) conclusion on 27 September 2010. We
concluded that, for 2009/10, the Council made propet arrangements to secute

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of tesources for the year ending 31
Match 2010.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2



1.13

1.14

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Page 77

Our work highlighted that the Council had improved its management arrangements in a
number of areas, including data quality, commissioning and procurement and asset
management. We also highlighted a number of areas for improvement and agreed an
action plan with management to implement the associated recommendations. Further
detail on our work in this atea is detailed in section 3.

International Financial Reporting Standards

From 2010/11 the Council is requitred to prepare its accounts in accordance with
[nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Our work to date on this area
confirms that, the Council's IFRS implementation plan remains on track. However, the
preparation and review of the 2009/10 IFRS restated accounts tepresents the first
major test and the Council must build on its good work to date.

Key areas for Council action
The Council will need to ensure that:

e the impact of the changes to local government funding are taken into account in all
future financial plans - in doing this the Council will need to review the services it
delivers and how it delivers them and where savings and changes can be made
whilst minimising the impact on the standard of service delivery

e the Medium Term Financial Strategy is reviewed in the light of the SR and is subject
to robust stress testing and sensitivity analysis

e it continues to emphasise the importance of data quality, including housing benefit
information, to prevent any relaxation in compliance

e there is a continued focus on the production of its first IFRS compliant accounts in
2010/11, including ensuring that there are sound arrangements for the valuation
and accounting for property assets.

Further details on these key messages can be found in sections 2 and 3 of this Letter.

@ 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



22

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

Page 78

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Audit of Accounts

Introduction

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2009/10 accounts on 27 September
2010, ahead of the statutory certification deadline of 30 September 2010. Our opinion
confirmed that the accounts give a true and fair view of the Council's financial affaits at
31 March 2010 and of its income and expenditure for the year.

Priot to giving out opinion on the accounts, we are required to tepott significant
matters atising from the audit to those charged with governance (for the accounts audit
this is defined as the General Purposes Committee). We presented our Annual Report
to those Charged with Govetnance at the General Purposes Committee on 23
September and summarise only the key messages in this Letter.

Audit of the accounts

The Council managed a rapid closedown process presenting us with the draft financial
statements on 28 June 2010 and, as in previous years, they were supported by good
quality working papers.

Closedown was well managed by the Council and there is clear corporate commitment
to producing timely final accounts. The audit process has been efficient and well
managed, although there have been 2 number of audit adjustments, particulatly
affecting fixed asset accounting.

The key messages atising from our accounts audit are:

*  the Council managed an effective closedown and audit process allowing eatly
resolution of audit findings as they arose

*  the Council continues to improve in valuing and accounting for its fixed assets
although our audit findings suggest that there is scope for further development,
particulatly in light of the requirements under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) applicable from 2010/11.

Financial performance
The Council reported a deficit on the Income & Expenditure account of £141 2million
(2008/09 £129.9million) and a genetal fund balance of £10.5million.

The current economic climate has placed significant pressure on the public sector and
local government in particular, to generate efficiencies and operate within reduced
resources. The Council has performed well to date by maintaining a robust budgetary
control system and early identification of cost pressutes. However, maintaining and
building on these arrangements will be critical with the anticipated impact of the SR
requiring savings of £45 - £50m to be made in 2011-12 alone, whilst the Council is
experiencing continued financial pressures from demand led services.

© 2011 Grant Thorntoen UK LLP. All rights reservad. 4



2.8

29

2.10

211

212

2.13

2.14

Page 79

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

The scale of the challenge faced has been recognised by Members and the Council will

need to continue to work hard to deliver the anticipated significant financial challenge
ahead.

We will continue to keep the Council's financial position under review as part of our
2010/11 audit including a risk based assessment of the robustness of the Medium Term
Financial Plan, the assumptions made within it and the reasonableness of associated
savings plans. This is in line with the new approach to local Value of Money audit work
introduced by the Audit Commission.

Financial systems

We undertake sufficient work on key financial controls for the purpose of designing
our programme of work for the financial statements audit. Our evaluation of the
Council's key financial control systems did not identify any control issues that presented
a matetial risk to the accuracy of the financial statements.

We reviewed the work of internal audit and concluded that the scope and conduct of
internal audit work was appropriate to support our work in auditing the Council's
2009/10 accounts. We also petformed a high level review of the general I'T control
environment as part of the overall review of the internal control system and concluded
that there wete no material weaknesses within the IT arrangements that would
adversely impact our audit of the accounts.

Annual Governance Statement

We examined the Council's arrangements and process for compiling the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS). In addition, we read the AGS and considered whether
the statement was in accordance with our knowledge of the Council. Our work
confirmed that the AGS was consistent with our knowledge of the Council and no
issues arose from out work.

International Financial Reporting Standards

The Council is requited to prepare its accounts in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) from 2010/11. The IFRS transition at the
Council is being led by the finance team and a clear project plan is in place.

Our work confirms that for the Council, the overall project plan remains on track. Key
dates for preparing the opening balance sheet and restating the 2009/10 accounts and
skeleton IFRS compliant statements are expected to be achieved. Our view is that the
Council has placed a good focus on IFRS, but that the preparation and review of the

2009/10 restated accounts represents the first major test.

We will continue to review progress as part of our planned programme of work for
2010/11.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5



Page 80

London Berough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Grant Claims and Returns

2.16 Each year we review and cettify a number of grant claims and returns in accordance
with the arrangements put in place by the Audit Commission. Following the
completion of the 2008/09 certification work we reported that performance had
generally improved against the key performance measures but identified that the
Council should work to continually reduce the number of claims requiring amendment.

2.17 We certified a total of 14 claims in 2008/09 of which one claim was qualified, the
housing and council tax benefit grant claim. Action arising from our recommendations

concerning this qualification is being monitored by the Audit Committee.

2.18 We are currently in the process of certifying the 2009/10 grant claims and returns.
Once this work is complete we will repott in full on the findings of our work.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 81

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

3 Value for Money

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Introduction

We issued our annual Value for Money (VEM) conclusion on 27 September 2010, at
the same time as our accounts opinion. We concluded that, for 2009/10, the Council
made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2010.

We set out the basis of this conclusion and the results of out assessment in our report
presented to the Audit Committee on 2 November. In this Letter, we summatise the
key messages from this work alongside relevant findings.

2009/10 VFM conclusion

The Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice requites us to assess whether the
Council has put in place proper arrangements to secute economy, efficiency and
etfectiveness in its use of resources. In discharging this responsibility, we ate required
to review and, where appropriate, examine evidence that is relevant to the Council's
cotporate performance management and financial management atrangements.

Our 2010 Value for Money conclusion was informed by work carried out on Use of
Resources up until the abolition of Comprehensive Area Assessment, and other local
risk based work carried out in accordance with our 2009/10 Audit Plan.

Key highlights within the Council's atrangements were that the Council had:

* improved its management arrangements in a number of areas, including data quality
(previously assessed as inadequate), commissioning and procurement and asset
management

* demonstrated strong and robust arrangements for the management of its wotkforce
against the criteria set out by the Commission.

The main areas for further development were around:

* ensuring that the impact of significant reductions in futute funding and the
tequirement to find savings beyond those that had been anticipated and planned for
as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy are taken into account in all future
financial planning

* addressing some significant in year challenges and robustly profiling the impact of
these in future financial plans.

* ensuring a continued emphasis on the importance of data quality to prevent any
relaxation in compliance and a potential return to an "inadequate” assessment for

data quality.

On the basis of the work completed, we issued an unqualified Value for Money
conclusion.

D 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7



3.8

3.9

3.10

Page 82

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

Approach to local value for money audit work from 2010/11

The Audit Commission has reviewed its work programme for 2010/11 onwards given
the scale of the pressures facing public bodies in the current economic climate. As part
of this exetcise, the Commission has adopted a new approach to local value for money
audit work with key national stakeholders.

From 2010/11 we will apply a new, more targeted and better value approach to our
local VFM audit work. This will be based on a reduced number of reporting criteria
specified by the Audit Commission, concentrating on:

® securing financial resilience
* prioritising resources within tighter budgets.

We will determine a local programme of VFM audit work based on our audit risk
assesstnent, informed by these criteria and our statutory responsibilities. We will no
longer make annual scored judgements relating to our local VFM audit work. Instead
we will report the results of all the local VFM audit work and the key messages for the

audited body in our annual report to those charged with governance and in the annual
audit letter.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 83

L.ondon Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

4 Closing Remarks

4.1 This Letter was discussed and agreed with the Director of Corporate Resources, in her

capacity as the Council's s151 officer, and will be presented to the Audit Committee on
3 February 2011.

4.2 We would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the assistance
and cooperation provided during the course of the audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
26 November 2010

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



Page 84

London Borough of Haringey
Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

A Reports issued in relation to the 2009/10 audit

Audit Plan December 2009
Partnership working March 2010
Accounts Audit Approach June 2010
Memorandum

Review of Leaseholder Service June 2010
Charges

Grants Plan 2009/10 August 2010
Annual Repott to those Charged September 2010
with Governance

Value for Money October 2010
Annual Audit Letter November 2010
Grant Certification Summary Report due December 2010

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Afl rights reserved.



Page 85

B Audit and Other Fees

Financial statements 340,000 340,000
VFM conclusion / Use of 175,000 175,000
resources

Total Code of Practice fee 515,000 515,000
Certification of grant claims 100,000 TBC
and returns™

*The quoted fee for grant certification wotk is an estimate only and will be charged at

published houtly rates.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 86

fo Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thoraton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (‘Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication.



Page 87 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 3 February 201 1

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2010/11 Quarter 3

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources

\T&f%f Zféﬁ}f!

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the third quarter by
the Internal Audit Service in completing the 2010/11 annual audit plan and reports
issued for outstanding 2009/10 audits together with the responsive and housing
benefit fraud investigation work. In addition, to provide details of the work the
Council’s personnel division has undertaken in supporting disciplinary action taken
across all departments by respective council managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Sirategies:

2 1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to provide assurance that managers have implemented agreed recommendations
and improvements.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the third quarter 2010/11.

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

3.3 That the Audit Committee confirms that the actions taken during Quarter 3 to




Page 88

address the outstanding recommendations are appropriate.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the
Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 31 December 2010 and focuses on:

o Progress by Deloitte and Touche on internal audit coverage relative to the
approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports issued and
finalised;

» Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with
special attention given to priority 1 recommendations;

» Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities
including those within the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team,
including information in respect of disciplinary action taken.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management business unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and the
Council’s corporate Human Resources business unit.

7. Head of Legal Services Commenis

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer supports the contents and recommendations set out in
this report and in particular the progress reported both in relation to the in year

N



Page 89

planned activity and also following up outstanding recommendations from prior
years.

8.2 That the integration of the audit and housing benefit investigation functions is now
complete has been noted and should place the council in a stronger position to
direct resources more effectively and help to reduce risk down. It is noted that the
pro-active counter-fraud framework and draft plan is being developed and will be
presented to the Audit Committee for formal approval later in the year.

8.3 There are no specific financial implications to highlight.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community.
Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors and Directors during the audit process and in the production of individual
internal audit reports and follow up programmes. Their comments are included in
the final report which is circulated in accordance with the agreed internal audit
reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and
managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1 Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B — In-house Team — investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C - Council-wide disciplinary information




Page 90

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate
Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between
the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Ref. | Performance Indicator 3 Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1l Audit work Completed vs. Planned 85% 80% 95%
programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 4.0 3.83 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 7.75 weeks 8 weeks 8 weeks
investigations (2009/10 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 90% 90% 95%
implemented at follow up

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the third quarter of 2010/11 to date is detailed at
Appendix A, which also includes reports issued for outstanding work from the 2009/10
audit plan. Members of the Audit Committee receive detailed summaries of all projects for
which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for any issues to be raised
and discussed in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all final reports which have
been issued during the quarter, together with detailed summaries of all reports which are
issued with a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

16.2 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which were
previously recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit work. Members have
been monitoring the progress and implementation of these at each Audit Committee to
ensure that managers were taking appropriate action to address outstanding
recommendations. Only 2 recommendations from prior years remain outstanding: 2005/06
- One Priority 2 recommendation remains partly implemented; and 2007/08 - One Priority 3
recommendation remains partly implemented. Work is ongoing to address these and
internal audit is satisfied that managers’ actions are appropriate to manage the lower

o
et



Page 91

priority risks facing the Council. Internal Audit will continue to monitor implementation of
recommendations to ensure appropriate actions are taken to mitigate identified risks.

16.3 A summary of all follow up audit projects for 2009/10 work which have been undertaken is

also included in Appendix A (page 13-14). We have followed up on 94 recommendations to
date and found that 77 (82%) have been implemented, six are no longer applicable, eight
are in progress, and one recommendation had not reached its due date. Seventeen out of
twenty Priority 1 recommendations followed up to date, where the deadline for
implementation has passed, have been implemented. Two Priority 1 recommendations are
in progress and the details provided at Appendix A.

16.4 To date, 85% of the planned annual programme of work for quarter 3 has been delivered,

the slightly reduced delivery was as a result of clients’ annual leave commitments at the
end of 2010. To date, 80% of the total planned work has been completed, and at this stage
there are no issues identified at this date which will prevent the 95% annual target from
being achieved. Ongoing monthly contract monitoring reviews ensure that performance
levels are kept under review.

16.5 In conjunction with the Director of Corporate Resources, Directors are kept advised of the

17.

17.1

outstanding recommendations and any actions required to ensure that implementation of
recommendations is achieved. From 2008/09 onwards, the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations has been included in the performance reporting requirements for all
departments. During quarter 3, Internal Audit are satisfied that managers have been taking
appropriate action to address the issues raised in the original recommendations prior to
2009/10.

In-house Team - Fraud investigation/Pro-active work

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall
outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-
house Team to date in 2010/11 and any which were brought forward from 2009/10. The
listing at Appendix B also includes any referrals made using the Council’s whistle blowing
policy which were investigated by Internal Audit. During the third quarter, two whistle
blowing referrals were made.

17.2 Within the third quarter, nine new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation,

and four cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The four
cases completed took 7.75 weeks on average to complete, within the agreed performance
target of 8 weeks. Internal Audit work closely with officers from personnel and the service
involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as quickly as possible.

17.3 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In the third

quarter of 2010/11, there have been no referrals for investigation and no losses 1o the
Council. Improvemenits in procedures, including the introduction of ‘positive pay’ whereby
the council’s banking tearn receives information on cheques before they are cleared, and



Page 92

new cheque security measures have reduced the opportunity for attempted fraud in this
area.

17.5 Since the creation of the corporate team in December 2010, the in-house fraud

18.

18.1

investigation resource has been increased to enable the Council to develop a corporate
pro-active approach. During the fourth quarter of 2010/11, the team will develop its
programme of work to focus on key risks facing the Council. This work programme will
include the National Fraud Initiative exercise, for which potential data matches will be made
available in February 2011. Some initial pro-active counter-fraud projects will be
undertaken during the fourth quarter and the section has begun working with Homes for
Haringey and the Strategic and Community Housing Service on developing an approach to
target and investigate housing and tenancy fraud. The pro-active counter-fraud framework
and draft plan will be developed and presented to the Audit Committee for formal approval
later in the year.

Housing Benefit counter-fraud

The function for investigating benefit fraud was transferred to the Audit & Risk Management
business unit on 13 December 2010. The HB Fraud Team spent a large proportion of the
third quarter processing outstanding claims and identified 128 existing cases which were
able to be closed with no identified fraud, although these may still have an overpayment
and a possible caution associated with them and these will be progressed during the fourth
quarter.

18.2 As a result of cleansing the system of old‘ cases, the team achieved a total of eight

prosecutions (compared to 6 in the second quarter). However, there were no lower
sanctions — admin penalties, or cautions — achieved during the third quarter, compared to a
total of 28 cautions and five admin penalties achieved in quarter 2. It is anticipated that,
with the investigation work that was started, that a further 16 lower sanctions can be
progressed during the fourth quarter. Although the capability to apply lower level sanctions
will be retained, the team’s focus going forward will be on securing prosecutions and
working with Legal Services and other services across the Council to recover money and
assets using relevant legislation, including the Fraud Act and Proceeds of Crime Act.

18.3 During the third quarter, seven prosecution cases resulted in an overpayment. The total

overpayment identified for the seven cases was £90.7k, of which £18.3k (20%) has already
been recovered. Two cases have been recovered in full — a total of £13.5k — and Legal
Services are currently attempting to secure a charge order of £40k against a property for a
third case. Payment plans are in place for 2 of the remaining cases, where £4.7k of the total
debt of £23.1k has already been recovered. The team will be working with the HB recovery
team and Legal Services to ensure that all options for recovery are considered when fraud
has been proven.

(o>}



Page 93

19. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

19.1 Appendix D details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the third
quarter of 2010/11. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by
the Council’s Human Resources business unit in line with Council statistics reported
elsewhere.

19.2 During quarter 3, the number of disciplinary cases investigated was 72 (an increase of nine
from the previous quarter), with 35 remaining ‘open’ at the end of the quarter. The average
length of time taken to resolve disciplinary cases in quarter 3 was 95 days, broadly similar
to the average length of time for the previous quarter’s cases.



Page 94

V XIANHddV

1107 Arenue(
"PYT PNV [BUIDIU] J0102S J1[gng 2Uono ], 29 2nIoR(

AdSuriR O YSnoJog Uopuoy
L107/010¢
110day Jipny [RuIalu] € J93ren()

Npny [BUIelu]



Page 95

V XIANHIddY

............................................................................

............. 01/600T SUOBPUIWILIONY ¢ -] AjuIoLg Surpurising - J0dey] §sa1801J pojiele

.................................................................................................................

11/0107 Woday ¢ se1reng) — Ipny [euzeiu] AeFuLe] Jo y3noIog uopuo]

Auqisuodsay Jo juawalely

£

............................................................................ @M\@@@N @M@@MLQQ \,&V»@M

............................................................. wO\N«OON - wmgww@ﬁgwgaauwm Qﬁ{\&%@wm@,ﬁw

............................................................. 90/S007— SUOTIEPUSIIL00Y dN-MOj[0]

...................................... mwﬂugmm®mm< _ mMQQEQm gw Mv @@Q@Mm ngﬂb@wﬁm@w‘\y@ wﬁwffwmgﬂi

.................... 11/010C pue (1/6007¢ -seurewawung pejiele(] pue ﬁ@@mﬁ% wwmﬁwpﬂ% upny

AIBUITING 2ATINDS

11/0107 LYOdHY LIANV ATHALIVAO - LIANV TYNYIINI ZLLIOTIA



Page 96

[ 23ed 11/0107 Hoday ¢ 1oueny) — PNy [ewIdu] ASFULIRY JO YSNoIog UopuoT

‘11/0 10T JUSWUOIIAUY UBQI[) — JUSUIRSRUB]A 20USqY e

pue 1 1/0 107 Sunsa ] 1siSay ysiy juowdopaa( 29 1oddng ssouisng o
‘11/0107 uoneorddy sigouag 79 SONUSARY PHIOMT o

11/0107T S9INPao0I UOnBIJUD A SulofuQ — juswhordwy o

ST/0T0z AenQ el e

11/010¢ senedoid Jo fesodsiq o

‘01/6007 AQUOIN IOl 2N[BA @

:panssi syroday [rul] — 11/0107 € F911en) Jo AIRUWIURS/SIYSUSIH A9

SUOLIBPUAUILIONaI 301)ovad 189 J0/pUR SIoPeWL JoUTW - £ AL/OLLg
UONOL JUSWAFEURW [200] O] SUONBPUAIUUOAL DO -~ 7 L0
JuowWaSeURW JOTUSS JO UONUSYR JY) J0] sensst jofewr - [ AJnionsd

:8911089180 SUIMO[[0] Oy} 0} SUIPI020E PasNLIOLId S8 SUONBPUSUINION9T INO IOPUIIRL B S

“90NIWIWIO)) 1PNy dY) 03 payrodol pue pansst st 110dal [eUl AU} W) 3L Aq SISOLIO [IOUNOS) Aq pajuswa[dul
100q 0ARY ApBoI[e ARW SUOEPUSIWIONdI PUE “)Ipne oy} JO dWl 9y} Je SWIdISAS o) JO smiels ayj JO9[Jo1 s9[qe} petodene ayj

‘S1I0d21
1IpNE [RUI] [ENPIAIPUL QU} UL PI[ILIdP A[[NJ 918 ‘UONS[dUIod IO] SUI[Peap oy} Pue I80Ljo o1qisuodsal a3 SUIPNOUl ‘SUOTBPUIUIUICID]
oy} SSAIPPE 0] SUONOB SIAJIJ(O ‘PISISE U3D( 9ARY 110dor ST UM pAIYSIYSTY SOSSAUNBAM [0IU0D AUR SS2IPPE 0] SUONRPUSTIIIOIS]
TV ‘ponsst Suraq 1odar [eury oY) 01 10ud passnosip e sondsip Aue pue ‘SIOJIJO [IOUNOCD) UM P22ISR IR SUOUBPUSIIIUIODI [V

1sanbar
uodn syodar jipne mo Jo sa1doo [ng yim popraoid oq os[e [[IM 93O Sy} JO SIOQUISJA] "SONILIO)) JIPNY 21l JO SIOQUIIA]
01 s1sBq A[Iuow & uo papiaoid SI yorym UOTRULIOJUl ATetnS oY) 19yio80) SmeIp 310dor oy "UONBULIOFUL 10} POPNIOUT ST STUIPUY
JIpNE 90UBINSSE PAWI] O} JO ATRWIUNS PAJIRIOP 2I0W Y "S}IPNE [BUIDUL INO JO 9SIN0D 3} SULIND PAYTIULPT 99q AR UOTUM [IOUNOT)
oy pue sjuownIedop [enpIAIpul Suoel sysU A9y oyl WS1ySiy 01 pouSisop os[e st 1odal SIY JO JBULIO} QU 9w I2A0 paSeuRl
Suroq ore SYSLI MOY UO UOIBWLIOFUI UM SIOQUIDJA 9pIAoid [[IM YOIUM JIOM SWwasAs A3 10] [9ARI) JO UOMOAIIP 21 JO UOUBOIPUI
UB SOAIS pUB 90URINSSE [BHURISQNS IO [[NJ PIASIYOE OARY UOIYM SBAIB 9SOU} U0 UONBULIOIUL sapiaoid pioder ay] -ofels [euy e
MoU oIe Yorym s110dal [[B JO S[IR1Op SuIpnjoul Jeak [eroueuy 11/0107 24} 10J 99NIWWO)) 1PNy ay} 01 110das 1a3renb pIIy o st S1y T,

UONINPOIIU]

AIeWIwnNg ANNIIXH

V XIANTddV I1/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TYNJIAINI ZLLIOTIA



7 938eq 11/0107 Woday ¢ 1ouend) — 1Ipny [euIiu] A9guLiel] Jo y3nolog uopuo]

"SUONBPUSUIWIONAT | AJLIOLI] om] apnjoul pajuawajduwr Ajied Ussq ALY YOIym STONBPUSTUTLOI
oy, -orqeorjdde 8uo] ou e (96°9) XIS pue anp 30K jou SI (%]) duo ‘pajuswRrduil Usaq 10U 9ABY (97) OM] ‘prustuerdul
Aped uoaq aary (%5°8) § ‘pAIucWRIdW UG IABY (%78) L. 1B} PUNOJ PUE SUOHBPUSWIWIONAI p6 dn PamoO[[0f SABY om 9Jep O]

01/600T

‘91qeordde 108uU0] OU 29I SUCHIRPUSWILIOIAT
om) pue pormowodwl USSq 9SABY SUONEPUOUINIONdI UIAJS JBY} PUNO] PUB §007 I9qON(Q Ul pansst 110del JIpny [Buioly]
(sourmssy JusweSeuryy 109(014) peoy suidg — puepieoy AsSuley oY) UL PasIRI SUOHBPUSWILIOAT JUTU JU} dn PamO[0} 2ARY 2 A

60/8007

"SI} $S2Ippe 03 Suro3uo SI JIom ‘SUIPULRISING SUTRIIAI UONBPUSWULIO0L ¢ AJLOLL] 2UQ

80/L00C

Page 97

ST} $S2IpPe 03 SuroSuo SI JIoM ‘SUIPULRISING SUTRWIAI UONBPUSWIIO0I 7 AJLIOLL] SUQ

90/500¢

'SMOTJO] SB 218 }10M dn-moO[[0] JNO JO S}NSAI Y]

SUOT}EPUITECINY SI8 X J0Lig Jo d) mofjog

"¢ 1001BNQ) UL SJOOYDS 01 PANSST ABY aM YOTYM $110d01 9PNOUL JOU S0P IST] dA0GE Y ],

"S9OIAIOS [ORUO) Buping e

DUR ‘SIDAIB)A JO3S[] o

‘Spae)) oseyoInd 10 9s) @

$S0INPO00Id 251BYOY PUB SIUSWIARJ [RUISIU] o

:supne SuImo[[o} Ay} 10J ¢ J03end) UI 110dol JJrIP B PanssI 0S[e om ‘UB[J 1PNV [RUWDIU] [1/0107 941 JO 1ed sy

V XIANAddV 11/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNJAINI ALLIOTAA



¢ 93eg 11/0107 Hoday] ¢ muen) — pny [BUIiU] A9BULBE J0 4Sn0I0g uopuo]

0 7 0 > renuesqns | O1°Z1°0T 01.4dy JUDWUOIIAUT URQI[) — JUSWAS RURIA] 20UISqY

{ % 0 V/N fenueisqus | OI°CI91 01.das Sunsa [, 101SISaY JSIY UONEXL], [200] % S1JoUDg

0 0 7 V/N pajIwIy 0T 1167 01.3°0 3unsa 1915189y sty 1wewdoraas(] 29 woddng ssauisng

1 i [ VIN fenuelsqng | oI 11°6T 01.des uonedl[ddy sijeuag % SONULASY PHOAT

0 ¢ 0 V/N renuesqns | OI°T1°80 o1.8ny UNSe ] 12ISI69Y NSTY SQOIAIRS SUISNOH ANUNWWO)) 215818

0 S I V/N reniueIsqns | 01 11°80 01.3ny 901AIRS 10BIUO)) 2uOYda[e ], SINOH JO 100 JO JUSUIAT BURIA]

7 5 0 VN Tenueisqns | 01°01°0C 01.d9s 1000301 1QWIDIU] JAAQ) 9910 A

1 5 1 V/N renueisqns | 01°01°81 01100 SQINPII0IJ UONEBILID A SUIOSU() — JUSWACTAWL]

! I 0 ¢« | lenuwisqng | 01°0I1T | 0150V AnenQ eieQ

[ € 0 V/IN [enueisqug | O1°01°81 o1.1nf sanradoid Jo resodsi(g

1 9 1 VIN paywry] 01°01'81 01.A8N QOUBINSSY 1URWASEURIA 102[01d — 2210, ed
e0) 2 14 0 V/N fenueisqng | 01°01°90 ol.mf (SOOV) sad1a19§ podsuel], —anua)) Ae(q
w TL/8107
w 0 % l VN [enueisqng | OI'11°SC 01/600C ASUOTA 0] anfEA
i 01/6007

£ AN §

J10day I
(Anrorg) [PABL], JO [249] [eury nupne P, PNy
SUOLEPUIWUIOINY TONIOIN | dueInssy | Jo e Jo
Jo aquiny aNe(q
“UONBULIOLI UL

SIoquIoly 10] poplaoid os[e aie sFurjel QJUBINSSE  [euRISNS, 10 [N, SAIS03I 10U Op (YOI S}PNE [[B JO SOLBUIWNS DIIvle(]

“2NIWWO.) JIpny 9y} 03 paptodar pue pansst st Jodal [eury oy} own 9} Aq SIOOIIO [10UN0)) Aq pajustuejdurl ueaq
aARY ApeaI[e ABUI SUONBPUSWILIONA] 2} JBY) PIIOU 9q SN J] ‘}IpNe df} JO Sl oY} 1B SWAISAS 91 JO SMIBIS QU] PUR ‘SIBIA [RIOUBUIL
11/010C PUe 01/600C U} 01 91B[21 Jey} 9oy} SuImoys ‘1 1/0 107 JO 901y Joyrenb ul pasijeul sjpne 24} 10 S39s 2[qel Sumoljo] 2y,

:AIemuIng ss21804J upny

V XIANIddV 11/0107 LIOdTY LIAAV ATIALAVAO - LIV TYNYIILNI ALLIOTIA



Page 99

¥ odeq 11/010T Woday] ¢ 10ueny) — Upny [euIeiu] As8uuiel] JO ysnoiog uopuo]

‘o1ep 10818) [RUISLIO O}
Aq paAayor 9q 01 pafrey seuolsafiuu 10oford uaym spodoy
WSySIyg 100f01g 9y} UO UMOYS SBM SNJRIS DVY URIS Ve

{PIAJOSalL
amom Aay} [un palojyruowr pue 30[ Sansst ayj Ul paplooal
10U 010M sansst o) ‘103fo1d oy 0} Sune[ol SINSSI SB UIAIS
SeM UOSBOI AU} 9IOUM ‘SI0UBISUI I9Y30 Ul pue uoneue[dxd
Aue noym paSueyo US2Qq PBY SUONOE  QUOISI[IW
oy} JO QUWIOS O] SQUITPEAP 9} IYM SIOUB)SUI 2IoM 1YL e

‘Tor1g 10of01g pue ase)) ssoulsng e Jo uond[dwod
JO 20USPIAD OU sem 2loyy ‘oSe)s uonenur Ay e 10afoid
o) uo Sugoeuq jouiqe)) 0} pejuesald sem 1odal e ySnoyy e

‘sFunoesw APYSTUIIO] JIOY) JB Wk ], SIOIAIRS UONBIINY o}
Aq possnostp st 109foxd a1y jo uona[dwod oY) Uo $SAIZ0Id e

410da1 aansor)) 109(o1d
oyy Sunpidwod jo sseooxd oy) ul ore wed] 109fo1d YL e

“uoweFeur Aq
Mmataal 10] paonpoid are suoday WSIYSIH 100{01d A[IUON @

:SMO[[0] Se oI suIpuy A9y o],

"SI 18 $9ATI02[qO s Juarpd oyl ind
P | O} SB YONS I8 S[OIIUO0D [BUIOIUL JO WIISAS Y} UT SISSIUNBI AN

'suonoy pue Juntodey Aoussuriuo)) pue
“902l01d oY} JO AISAIR(] 2InsSUg O] SUCIY e

pue ‘yied [BONLD 92U} JO SULIOJUOIA e
‘Kaniqisuodsay Jo uone3R( e

‘oM ], 9} UeamIag uonounsi
oyl pue ‘sonss] pue ssty Jo 1oedw] e

‘poAr[a( 10
1uads 1oA0/10pu Suleq soefoid jo speudis
Apred JO UONEBOYNUSDP] PUR  SULIONUOW
pue 108png onuosdy Io [eide) 01 YU e

‘Surpodoy] pue SULIOHUOIA 199{01J e
‘SIS URILY

JIomawer] juswegeue)y 109(01d [0UNOD
oyl yim osouerdwio) pue uonuedddy e

:sassa001d Suimorio] a1 Jo uoreoidde
o1} SSOSSB PuB AJNUIPT 01 }33S [[Im 1Ipne oY ],

i1/0106¢
IDUBINSSY
JURWISSRUBIA]
1sfoag
— 3210 igd

SADIAYAS ALINNIWINOD ® TANLTAD “LINAV i

2IULINSSY LSy sSurpuyy Aavy/smiels

adoag

#aIE JIPNY

SSHIRIVININAS A TIVLHEC

V XIANAddY [1/0107 LIOdAY LIAAV A NIALIVAO - LIANV TVNIEINI ALLIOTIA




Page 100

¢ 98eq

11/0107 Wodoy ¢ reuend) — Npny [eureiu] AeSULIBH JO YSNnoIog Uopuo

ue Jomoym Jo uondiLosap oy dseq 01 YOIy UO UOISIOIP
o) pue (SJIA) 2I1AIRS 901[0J ueljodonoA aU) Aq Pajoa[jod oq
[[1A4 BIBP JUBAS[RI QU 1B} J0B] o1} SUIPN]OUl ‘SUOSBAI JO JoquInu
® JOJ MSB] ASEQ UB g JOU [[IM S)08IP} JSUIESE JUOUIDADIOR
JO 1USWRINSEOW By} pajeasdl ‘1ofeuepy 109loid juoimd oy)
Y3m suorssnosy ‘syded Jo asn oy} pur swiLod Jo uondooiad oy
sem ssaIppe 0} powe 109foxd oy yorgm sonsst A9y ay} Jo U0
se ‘AoAIns SJUOPISAI [BNUUE XU oY) JO uond[dwod Furmoqjoy
POUIILISIOP 9q AJUO P[NOM ‘UOTOBJSIIES JOPOYdNR]S Juipnjoul
‘0foxd oy} Jo owooINO [N} U} JBY} POULIOJUI OI9M OM

“SUIIOM JO 9POW MU 1} 0} ul Anqg AJTUNWIWIOD JUIPISII
Suumoos pue sowuefe Jouped Ypm  sjuowdIUBLIR
SuDpIoM MU JO UOIEBaId dY) N0OTF JO Fuiaes AOUDIONJO
ug puB 1IUN/UOHOUN] B JO UONQ[OP 9} SUIpn[dUl ‘pajou 9q
PINOYS SAAT02[GO A9y OWIOS JO JUSWIDAIOR Y} “IOAIMOH
‘1oafoxd a3 yo uonerdwos pojoadxe ayy 03 dn pouad ay;
I9A00 sAem[e j0u pIp (Id) Iuownoo( uoneniuy 109fo1g oy
JO SUOISIOA JUSIQLIP Ul PAYIIUSPI souolsafiuu 10afoid Aoy e

pue ‘Jow uraq JOU SAUIPEIP Y} UI PAINSAI JBY) SanSsI
0IoMm IO} 1BY) PIBOIPUL SSUI[PBIP JUOISI[IW Y} JO SWOS
jsureSe poroiue syuowuoo ysnoyye ‘spoday WINySIyg
100f01g 2yl Ul popirodal jou 23om sansst 300foxd Aoy e

‘parmbai a10m saurpeap
PasiALI Jojoym 10 pojuowodwil udeq pey suonde dy)
Joyieym moys 01 parepdn usaq jou pey o] s oy} ‘spodoy
WSIYSTH 100f01d oYl Ul Paynuopl SYSLI oY) JO OM] 10]
passed pey suonoe Juredniw oy} J0J SUI[peap oy} YsSnoyy e

ADUBINSSY

ssurpuj Aa/sme)s

adodg

TOIE JIPNY

V XIONHddV

11/0107 LYOdAd LIANV ATIALIVAOD - LIANY TYNJALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 101

9 o8ed

11/0107 1oday] ¢ Jeuen() — Ipny [euiayu] AeSuLe] J0 ySnoIoqg uopuos]

‘jusuroSeuel
0] pojussard Furoq o1 J0ud wWed] SAOIAISS UONBIINDY
oUl UIIM  IOdUJo Ue Aq AoBINOOE puUB  ssoudio[duiod
I0] PamalAal 2q pinoys spoday JYSIYSIH 100[01 A[IUON e

19sIn00 oY IR
QOUBPURYIE JO PIUILIUIBW 9¢ P[NOYS PIOOAI B PUB SIOTRURIA
1efoig e 103 Alosindwod opewW 9 PINOYS ISINOD
Sururen juowRSeURIA 102[01d S [IOUNO)) AY) JB QUBPUINY e

‘o1 1092foxd ay3 uo proy st ‘ojenidordde
219UM PoUTIS ‘UONBIUIINOOP [[B JBY} ULIUOD 0] ‘SIOTBUBIA
1aforgd Aq uonordwioo Joj Iomowrl] JUSWOSEURW
100f01g S,JUN0) oI Jopun painbal  UONBIUSWNOOP
100f01d Koy [[8 J0 1sipoyo & oredoid pinoys juowoFeuR]y e

:SMOT]O] SB 218 SUONEPUSWIIO0d 7 AJLIOLLJ oY ],

‘s1r0doy] WSIYSIH 109f01d 943 UO SISLI 2}
Jo smiels oy} Sunepdn I0J PuB ‘SOUI[PBIP PUB SIOUMO JSLI
[enprarpur SUIAJuep! 193sI3a1 NS deredos v SurulejueW
se yons ‘sysur jooford oeSnuiw 03 suonoe jo uondduwod
o Surrojruowr 10y $s0001d © YSI[EISO P[NOYS JUSWSTRUBRIN e

:SMO[[O] SB ST UOT)BPUSTITLIOND] | AJLIOLLJ oY [,

"R STY} UT SJOHUOD
aanoxdwr 0 d[oy Prnoys Yormym ‘Uonepuowliiiosal ¢ AJLoL
QUO PUE SUOLBPUIUILIOIdI 7 AJLIOLJ XIS ‘UOLRPUSUILIOIAI
[ AJLI0LIJ SUO DOSIBI 0ABY 9M YIOM }IpnNE INO JO }[NSAI B Sy

"QUILIO UO SONSTIE]S YIIM 9SBD U} SI SB “USI[qrISe
0] JNOIIIP 9 [[IM 9pBW US3q 10U SBY IO Sey JuduwdAorduil

QdURINSSY

ssurpurj .muucmﬂﬁm

- odoag

23R PNy

V XIANHEddV

I1/0107 LYOdAY LIANV A TIALIVAOD - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTId




Page 102

[ 938

11/0107 woday ¢ souend) — upny [puroju] AsFuLiel] Jo y3norog Uopto]

pajury

01 puodsar1od AJ30a1100 jou op Ady} ySnoyje ‘AJ9ANO9LI
Sunerodo 2q 0] POULIFUOD 9I9M PIISA} S[ONUOD INOJ Y],

:SAOT[OJ S 918 sSuIpury A9y a1,

YSU ' $9A1300[qo s,3ua1]d 9y} Ind
0] SB [OnS oIk S[OJU0D [BUIOIUT JO WIISAS AU} Ul SISSOUNBOM

‘(sjooyos Arewnid) pustuop yiim saoeid
pouueld sour[eq 0} 812 — TOOY ¥0AD
:SMOJ]O] SE SI0M

10181821 MSLI S90IAIDS SUISNOH AJUNWWO)
oio1enng o3 woy pojdwes  SySU 2y

| SADIANAS STTIOTd ONNOA ¥ NTHATIHD

‘spodoy
wSiySIy 109foid oYy ur papnpoul oq pnoys uonesidul
[eroueury SunNSal oY) UO UONBULIONUL ‘JoW US9q JoU
aAeY sauojsafur 1oofoid oY) Jo Aue 10] SSUIPLAP oY) dI0YM

[

:SMO[[O] SB ST UOT}BPUSIITIONd] ¢ AJLIOLIJ oY ],

‘syoefoxd
amng e 107 suodoy wIySiH 109foid pue Id 9yl u
POPI00SI PUB JASINO JY) 18 PAYNULPI 99 pInoys aford syl
70 yied [eonuo oyl SuueAod ‘1afoxd oy Jo 2mnsop Ayl 03
dn uornedwos J191Y) 0] S9IEp 19518) PUB SOUOISI[IUL A9Y S [,

pue ‘smels
DVYY puB SUIPEIP ‘IOIJO J[qISuodsar oy ym I9ye30]
‘280Y} 9A[0Sa1 0} paxmbei suoroe oYy Surpnjout ‘103foxd oy
01 Suneo1 sanssI A9y [[e JO S[IeIOp pI10oda1 01 Ajjiqisuodsar
IRyl Jo  peputwial  9q  poys  suodoy  1YSIYSIH
waforg Appuow oy Sunedord 10y o[qisuodsar SIOUIO

‘preog weong pue dnoin SUDIOA ISQUISA A9SULIE]]
Ioneg oyl 01 pauiodal oq PINOYS UOISSNOSIP L) JO SUWI0INO
oy pue preog JuowdSeurjy 109f0o1d oyl AQq Ppossnosip
pue 01 pantwgns 2q pinoys syuodey ySiYIH 100f01g oy,

®

PuUBINSSY

_ mw,ﬁﬂg Iy moémz.._ﬁw

adoog

2AJIR PNV

V XIANHAddV

I1/0107 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TVYNIALINI ALLIOTIA




Page 103

g o3ed

11/010T 1odoy ¢ 1ouen() — JIpny [euiu] A93uLIBl] JO YySnolog uopuo]

ot Surosojulal ‘193sider Jsu (ISg 2y Jo uondduwioo oy 10f
Ajiqisuodsal [im SIOOUFO 0} JUdS 9q PNoys JOpuIwol y

pue ‘S[ONU0D pue SYSLI [ENPIAIPUT JO dIYSIOUMO
SABY OUM SIOOIJO AJUUSPI 0] pue S[OJUOD pue SYySU
oL opnoul 01 pae[dwoo A[ng sI pue siseq A[ouenb
© U0 SB[ 1B JUA[RA0)) U0 pajepdn ST 19381391 s (JSH 3
1B} 2INSUS PINOYS 9OTAIOS O} UIYIIM JUSWOFBURUL JOTUOS

'SMO[O] SE oI SUOTIBPUSWIONAI | AILIOL 9],

"BOIR STY)
ur sjonuod aaoxdunt o) djoy pinoys yorgm ‘SuOBpUIUIIOdl
[ AJoLig OM) PAsIEl 9ABY oM NIOM }IpNe Ino JO J[NS3al B SV

‘diysioumo
[0NU0D puUB SL AJUUOPI 10U SO0p IdISIFAI YSW YL

(71 st AS91e1S JuowdSRURIA JSTY S, [I0UN0D Y}
IOpUN 2100S YSU [enpisal a[qeidoooe oy 1By} o0u osea[d)
10181301 ST QU] UO PAPI0ddI JOU SeA [OIYM ‘UOI0R JoYlny
01 102[gns sem 4] JO 9I03S JSII [BNPISAL B UM ISLI 9UQ

*10)S1801 SLI oY} w0} Apjuonbasqns
poAowol sem NS SIY] (Uo¥el 9 O] PIpasu  uoIdE
ou eyl pue o[qeorjdde 195uo0] ou sem JSLI O} 1Y) PIe}s

asg 1oy 1opamq Ando o) SO0 FOAD SK 2esnIu
UoTyM I91SIS0I YSL 9} UO PIYIIUSPI SJONUOD OU dIB 2IY],

"JUS[BAO)) UO PIPIOOAL
10U SBM ST YSnoyi[e ‘JOISIFI JSLI 9y} U0 PALIIUIPI SUONOL
royuny oyl Sunuowedwi up opew sem ssaroid owog

‘sjuswaIInbal 901AISS 199U 10U
SOOP UOLBPOUILLIOIOE 30IJO — SO0 FOAD ©

pue ‘preme Aed snyeig 2[3UIS oU3
Jo 10edwi a1 03 anp 1oYp v FuidopArsp
90IAIOS S[BOWL S[OOYPS — $00Y YOAD °

‘(SJOOYDS AIBpUO0DaS) PUBLIOD Iim saor]d

‘sysu ueASp1 oy | POUUEId eouBlRq 0} 1B — €00Y YOAD  © T1/010T
8:&.:_%«._ _ wmn:usg_ ho.v_\maﬂm ; TN adoog BIAR PRV
V XIANAddV 11/0107 LIOdAd LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNIILINI ZLLIOTIA




Page 104

6 98ed

11/0107 Woday ¢ Jouen) — ypny [eurau] AsSuuel Jo ySnoiog Uopuo]

‘paxmnbor a10ym ‘Sururen jo uorsiaoid
oyl 01 uoAIS oq p[NOYS UOTJRIOPISUO)) ‘JUBASAIL QIOUM
‘UOTIOR JOYMN] JOJ PAAU Y} PUB ‘S[0NUO0D FUIPUOSILIOd pue
SYSII JO UONEBOLTIUAPI JO21I00 Y} sopnjoul siy] AS9jens
JuowoSeuR|y MSTY S, [IOUN0D Y} M dUl] Ul ‘A[ojeInooe
pue A19191dwod 1031501 NS U 219[dwod 0} jusweIinbal

IJUBINSSY

mwn.n_ﬁﬁw Kay/smyels

;umcuw

2OIR IpNY

V XIANAddV

11/0107 LYOdTY LIANV ATHALYVAO - LIAAY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAA




Page 105

01 28eg 11/010Z Hoday ¢ 10urend) — Ipny [eurelu] Ao8uLe]] J0 Y3nolog uopuoj

"SISINA
o) 01 Juaweordar v st pado[oAap oq [[IM prepuels JO[dWIS B JByl POULIFUOD OS[E 91B1§ JO AIR0r0eg o) Aq JUaluedunouue o],

JIpNE SIS Y} JO UOLB[[SOUED O} JO ‘S)ISIA JO JAPAYDS INO UO S[O0YDS SUTUIBLIRL 9} PASIADE QI0JOIO) QABY O AL "UFN0I0q
o) Ul S[OOYDS JO 1IPNE SISIAL oYl M peoadold 01 10U UOISIAP dU) 003 [I0UN0)) dU} 1031J S1RIPOUIL IIM SISJA] 1US1IND 31 PUd
0] UOISIOAP A JO (10T JOQUISAON UT UOKRONpPH 10J 9181 JO AIRINAS dY} AQ JUSTUROUNOUUE. 31} FUIMO[]O,] "S]00UDS AIBPUOOAS 231U
puE [00YOS SIUBJU] QU0 ‘S[00Y0S AIBWIL XIS SUIpn[oul ‘S[ooyds (] PAYSIA 9m “(SISIA) S[O0UIS UL PIBPUES JUSIISTRURIA [21OUBUT]
oy 30 syuemeIMbaI A YHM ourI{dWod PANUIUOD JPAYD 01 [[/0T0T T8oK [BIOUBUL A1) 10] S[OOYDS 01 S)SIA JO A[NPaYds 1o J0 11ed s

:ATRWIINS PUE SJUIESSISSY SISTALG

V XIANAddY 11/0107 DI04 LIANV ATIALIVAQ - LIANY TYNJTLINI HLLIOTIA



Page 106

11 98eg

11/0107 Woday € 1au1eny) —1Ipny [ewIdIu] ASULIR JO YSnolog uopuo]

“PAULLIIUOD 9q JOUUED SUIT ST} J dJep uonejuswo|dul 1051e]
B INQ 91Bp 9SBO[RI S)I JOYE U00S A[oAne[dal pajoadxo og pinom AdguLep
12 9°¢ UOISIOA JO uoppuowedw] ‘9’6 UOISIOA I0] J1lem 0} Ing G'6 UOISIOA
yuowedwr 0] J0U PapIOAP I0JOIAY} SBM 1 ‘UOISSI00NS JoInb Ul SUOISIOA
om1 Sunuowoejdur Jo 3500 oy PIM pa[dno)) AJUSIOYJS PUB SSIUSATIONN
ssouisng uo wedwr AjeaneSou Aqrenusjod pmod eyl s8Sng suBuod §'6
uoisIoA ey} Jorjddns oy} Aq poesiApe sem [10UN0)) Y} Inq ‘SUONHESIQO Jipne
100U O} SWINULSW Y} UL Pa[[BISUl U9q dARY JYSIW ¢'6 UOISIOA 10T
AIBNIG UL 9SBI[I JOJ 9NP 9'¢ UOISIOA [[BISUT 0] SUIYIS 9 [[Im [IOUNO)
oy} 210J0I0Y] SIUSRINDAI SSAUISNG IOYJ0 oW JOU Se0p Ing Juipuy
1pnE oY) $9ssaIppe (,0FeIUBAPY, PIJ[BO MOU) SIBMIJOS 9} JO G'G UOISIOA

:TI0Z Svnuvp ¢ wpdny
pajwwduwy Apaed

800¢ AeIN
/ 8urosuQ

"APURLIND sIn030]
pue suo3o] [rysseoons oI st ‘Fuidso]
[l upny Junsixe oyl Ul papnjoul aq
ueo sydweye wo3o] paliel, M0 PUB IOUIQUM
SuneSnsoaur 03 o B yum  sionddns
QIBMIOS 92U} JOBIUOD DP[NOUS JUSWOTBUBIA

|

WA)SAS JudmRSeuRA] 2AnS13 T X AHOL

SHDIA¥AS ALINAWINOD ® TAALTIAD ‘SLINAY

SNIL)S/SSAAT0Ag

| aunpeaQq
[eursLIQ

Auony |

WORBPUAUITOIDY

o

9(0/SO07 SUOIBPUIWWI03IY Jo uonejudwdfduy - 1.10dayy ssa.udoig pajrera(

V XIANEddV 11/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAQ - LIANV TYNIHLNI LLIOTAA




Page 107

71 93eg

11/0107 Hoday ¢ 1ouen) — 1pny [ewIu] A9FULIRY JO §8noiog UopuoT]

[ 10T Yo4PJ -2uljppa( pasiasy
*730-ug1s 10} LN ¥Xeu 9y} 03 1 juasaid

1M Oym IOSBUBTA QOUBUT] OU} UIIM 9I8 PUB PISI[BUL 91 SIUSWNIOP dY ],

SIrroccr ampdn
pawwRpduwy Apred

800C YoreN

"JJBIS 1UBAR[RI [[8 0 POIBOIUNIUWIOD puB
PaIep 29 PINOYUS SIUAWNOOP [[8 “SIOWLISYLIN]

"AIeSS909U J1 ‘pojepdn pur
‘Aifenuue 1589 18 pue ‘A[Ie[ndal pamolsdl
aq pinoys sempoooid pue sopod v | 1

diygs1oA1909) 29 drysejuroddy

SHDIAYAS ALINNAINOD % TANLTIAD ‘SLIAAVY

SNB)S/SSI501g

oﬂﬂﬁmvﬁ
[BUISLIQ

Aypprorig

UOREPUSWIUTI0dSY | fE) 4

¥V XIANEddV

80/L007 SUCTIEPUIWIWIO0INY JO uonejusmddu] - 110dsy] ssa.1801g pafieia(

11/0107 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNIAINI ILLIOTIC




Page 108

c19%eg 11/0107 Moday ¢ Jouend) — PNy [ewioiu] AeSuLey Jo ySnolog uopuoy
I 0 _ I 0 0 01 ol s | z I ol sl ¢ paIILLI ] UONEPOW0d0Y Areioduwa ],
“ TMWEOIAUT TBQA[)
0 0 | 0 0 0 1 0l 1 fo ] ol 1]o VIN AIanopng 28esIa FRIONOIRIY
M 0 9 z t e Jole| vl a|ofor|c| pewu wOEoldy]
[onuo SuIp[ing pug m&ﬁmﬁ@m
0 0 0 0 I z I Il o € [ ¢ | 1] 0 [mnuesyns ipry AJLmoag 211SGa M
0 0 0 0 [ 1 I 0 0 [4 1 | 0 | [enueisqng uoneonddy aunjyuey SEN
0 0o | o 0 0 8 _ - ¢ 8 _ z | ¢ Py (JW2WAINI0IJ) SPIEPUBIS QWO 1U30a(]
0 0 0 0 1 I 0 I 0 rd 0 e 0 | renueisgng (S101Ip31))) A[qBAR ] SIUMOIY
0 0 0 0 0 b 1 lelo]| ¥ 1 | £ | o [menumsgng (s101q2(] AIPUNS) 2[GAIS02Y SIUNOOOY
0 0 I I it fofl vt o T |t | 1| o |mewumsas [enuay AreRApng
% udWASRURIA [eIouBUL] o18a1ENg
0 0 | 0 0 0 g 1 fv|]o] s | 1| ¥ | 0 |renuasgng JOWATEURJ ATSERLL
0 0 _ 0 0 0 £ [ i D € [ z 0 _.Nmuﬂ.m.-w@ﬂm ﬁﬁq._m.“.mm,duﬁﬁﬂ‘d. pund SQT....ED&._
$92In083Y JprI0dI0
0 0 | 0 0 0 € Jo|l€|o] € | 0] €| 0 |menumsqsg AR
m IPIM-TIRENSD — jrrodio)
Smpueysing | NP ssoagoag| “duy
529y | ION uj ION | V/IN |80 | € (4 I |®oL] € [4 I
1 Arrorig pajuamapdumy A108938)
[3A9]
SUOIBPUIMIWI0IIY DUBINSSY VANV LIANV
MA0A\ MPNY 01/600 - 21981 d) mofiog
V XIANAddV 11/0107 LIOd T LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANY TVYNNALNI ALLIOTAA



Page 109

y1 298eg 11/0107 Bodey ¢ 103rend) — 3ipny [eurau] AoguLiel Jo ysnolog uopuo]

SuonepuatlIiuodalr JO Qoswuﬂwaoﬁﬁﬁﬁ Paliels 2ABY SI201JC — P MQQE@M@MﬂM \J,Q g

“TOYP] USA( JOU SBY UONOE DATILUINE ‘POSSAIPPE UDI] 10U SBY zos%%EEooﬁ ot — pajwewrdrdwy 10N

"SLI 2} SSAIPP® O} UYL} U SBY UOTO’ SATBUI[L JO “WRAISAS a1} Ul safuryo 01 anp djqeorjdde 1o5U0] OU $1 WONBPUIWIO2T O ~ /M

‘sosuodsai Jo ojdures v PIIJLIOA IABY dA) 'SUONEPUSWILIONAT JO $$21301d oY1 HONBOYILS0-J[2S YSNOIY) Pajeolpul Sy SI901;0 — peyuduayduuy
C i 8 z 9 LL | 6 | 1S | L1 | ¥6 | 11 | €9 | 0T mog
0 0 0 o | o |t Jolut]o] 1t o] 1]|o|mnuesg Arend ereq
Oddd — SPARNISYY JRIYD
0 0o 0 0 0 I 0| 1]o0 I 0 | 1 | 0 |enuesqg HORIY 03 J[EQ 0TI9UN05
| OB — $ADNMXY WD
0 0 ! 0 0 0 9 0 ¢ ¢ 9 0 ¢ € pajI Q0UBINSSY JWIIA 109{01 — 2LUWBISOI]
_ . uonrISUagay] punoIn) uonseIddy drspio]
0 0 | o0 0 1 9 o |+ |c| ¢ o]+ | €| poumy SoUBINGSYy TUAWATEUEIY
100f01g — JuewdoeAs(] e d PIoLIRIA

|
0 r | 0 0 0 € 0| T |1 v 0 | € | 1 | poywry qesy [BIUSTA
0 0 | 0 0 | o ot |z |s| o] e || 8| o0 |renuesgs wonEoNdde yromIutEL
0 0 | 0 0 0 v |t || 1] v | 1| T | 1 |enuesyns HOTRRITOD
, PUE TOTIRIOUAD) SWOOU] — SQNUS)) 2INS1o]
0 o 0 | o I z |olz]o]| € | o] ¢| o ]memumsans Funso I 10181563 STy
-SurIge pur SOURIQI] IMNS -S00V
0 0 0 o | o | z|lolo|z| T |o]o]|c| pommy Buysal sisise FEAR
- (arnsio] FuUIpn]oUl) SOOIAIRG UONBAI0DY
SIJIATIS ANUNTWTIO] 29 AN a@%%ﬁ
Surpuwysing| 2P ssaaooag| “dury
S0y JON s | JON | V/IN |I®JoL | € 4 I |80 | € (4 1
I Ayprorg paywamaduny Ax03a3e)
[PAT
SUON)BPUIIHOIIY UBINSSY VY LIdoyv
V XIANAddY 11/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNJIEINI ALLIOTIA




G a8ed 11/0107 Wodoy ¢ Jouend) — 1pny [ewolu] Ae3uLiel] JO ysnolog uopuoy

[10Z YDy :2utpra( pasinay

‘dnoi3

-‘woneuowoduwr orendordde ue 01 pojedoo[R 29 pMOUS

101 (107 UoIBN O}  pepudixe  ourpesp  uondrduio) S} $S9008 [oA2] Y31y asmnbai s1asn s1eyp

"PSAOUIRI 24 PINOYS ST}

'(110¢ Arenue( prw 10} Ul pawiuesgord AueLInd 9A1-03) poxmbar jou ST $S9008 JO [9AS] ST} IUYM

‘SurpeaSdn AULLIND ST YOTYM UOISIOA MOU UL PaXL Sng "WA)SAS pUB DaMOIAQI ¢ Pnoys wvisAs plingi

JueLId SY) Ul 3ng, ' 0} onp paAe[op Uedq SeY UONno® SIYL puB UB|Jl OU} UO S$SO00B JOIBNSIUIWDPY
:pajuswdjduay JoN 010Z A1t Z woIsAg M siesn  Jo Joquinu oYl | ¢

|
NOILLVOITddV LI TOWINOD % DONINNVId

Page 110

[107 &4vnaqa,J :ou1jpna( pasinay
‘JULIRH

uo pepeo] Suleq o3 Joud jusWRSeURW
Jotas oreurdoidde £q panoidde oq pinoys
‘70NU0O UOISIOA FUIpPNoul ‘seinpedoid o
‘orerrdoidde oroym ‘pejepdn pue pomoIAdl
90UO BU} POPUSWITIOORI ISUMN} SI 3]

-oreudoidde azoym
‘popULWIE IO DPIAOWNRI 3 [[IM POULIJUOD JABY JUSWOTRURW
UYOIgM  SJUQUINOOP JOUJ0 QI 210Y] ‘WPULIRH WOY Suawnoop
218P-JO-IN0 SWOS PAAOUIDI QABY] JUSUISRUR YSNOYY “SO/400T
10] 21npao0id SIUN0OOE [RULY Y} 0] JOUDIDSL SINBU (SAINPIDOI]
UMO(]-9s0[) Suipnul) jeuuRH UO J[qR[IBAR 0UBPING 9y} "MIIARI 1)) 10] paudisse Ajijiqisuodsar
JeY) POIOU M “JOULIBL 01 Pappe 10U I8 sompaooid a3 ysnoy)y Uia  pausuumoop  pue  PR/jysigelse 2
pInoys (seanpasord umo(g 2s0]D Surpnjoul)
JPULIBH U0 9jqe[ieAR  2oueping  pue
sompaooxd [[e 10 Mda1A21 Jo swuriFoid
paywawdjdwy Apaed 0107 1udy € oporad B 1Ryl popuSwIIodar ST | I

"JJe1S JuBAQ[RI
0] POJEOIUNWITIOD 218 PUB A[[BNUUE PIMIIASI dIB SAINPIV0IJ

TOULNOD AYVLADANT 2 INHIWIDVNVIA TVIONVNIA ODIDHLVALS

SEDANOSHY HLVIOLAGCO
aurpeaq
;, ; | wonejudurdpduy e
smpeyg/ssaadorgy T [eUISLIO b_..o._um . UOREPUIMLI0IY JEN

01/6007 SUONEPUIWWO0IdY Surpuelsing - 110dayy ssa.1801J pajieiag

V XIANAddV I1/0107 LHOdTY LIANY ATYALIVAO - LIANY TYNJIIINI TLLIOTIA




Page 111

91 2%ed

11/010Z Hodey ¢ 10uen) —IIpny [euslu] As8ulig JO y3noiog uopuo]

[T07 Y2Ivy “outjppa pasiady

"110T Yo\ T ¢ 10§ 20e[d
ur aq 03 padoy st pue opeiSdn Jueund oy} JoYe [nun pioy uo nd
U99q MOU SBY SIY ], "A[103.1100 Uni jou pip spodai oy jng ‘opeisdn

DOI FTOVIO 9Ul M PIUEIS SIY [[BISUL O) SHIOM [BHIU]

suoneoridde 10j Suniodar oyl 91BII[IOB]
pnoys pringr pue uejdl woy Sunioday

‘paulop
ore paxmber aie jeyl spodar Afuo ainsus
01 POM3IAdI 9Q PINOYS SwWRIsAs ppngl
pue Ue[Jl o1 JoJ suodoy [BISAID oy

:paywauwdjduy Apaed | 0107 Isnsny ¢ z A 9sn 0] 9[geiiea spodar juelmd 9yl | §
"PIINGI UI SP[L SSAIPPE 109]]21 0] Papuswir
2IDSYIAON 0 popIIiqns 9q 0} SULOg-e <2yl UL SPRel SS:IpPPY
u20q svy 15onbad JUIWIOUDYUD [PULIO | [041U0D S, AOSULIDE] JO pUB ‘SOOTOAUT
opisino st suy1 sp papiaoad aq 01 2]qv §] 2P UouVIUIUI]A UL ON onea ySiy jo Surssaooid 2yy 10111
S[1°I°ST 2mwpd)y yuauaSounpy 01 P[Pl 20UBUY 9Y} U0 SHOAUD JIWI] o
'$$01801d UT JIOM ST SIY ], "PIsIel ‘sejep o1ming 9jqissod
uonepULIWIONal oy} uodn poseq paprwgns dq 01 St isonbar pue JUL0aI opNout ATUO 0} SP[RY 1B e
JUOWIROURYUS UY "PAA[OAUI JSLI oy} 0} uosuedwoo ur ysy :SJOIU0D SUIMO[[0]
00} SEA ]SOD OU} Jey} PIPIOAP SBM 11 “PIA[OAUL JSOI Y} pajedIpul oy Sunjuowoduul 1opisuco pue uonedrdde
Aoyy 01 pue 9JESYMON YHM P[OY Sem UOISSNOSIP [EULIOFU] ue[Jl 91 UO S[OAU0O Indul pUR UOHBPI[BA
rpoyuwonmdpduay Apaed | 010 ISn8ny ¢ 7 BIED  MOIAI  D[NOUS  JUSWOTRUBIN | b
[10T Yo -2uljppa(] pasiady
‘suoneordde oy} 10} SO[1J WOISAS
-woryeuowaduur oy} S$SO00B JOUURD SIOSn puB pPaleFoises
10] 1107 UoJBN 01 popuolxe  ourpesp  uond[dwio) st Suisseoord Juruued pue JUSWISOIOIUD
JO 9701 9} 1BU) 2INSUD OS[B PINOYS SIYJ
(1102 ‘sqof 9191du10o 03 paambar sonNp WIM
Arenuep pru 103 ul powwesSord ApuaLmo 0A1-03) Surpeisdn oury ut a1e sdnoid 19sn 213 pue suoIsstuLed
AUOLIND 218 oM UOIYM UOISIOA MU Ul PoXy Jng wd)sAs OAISSOOXO OABY 10U Op SIoSn  jer
Juelnd oYy ur 8nq, © 03 anp poe[op uooq Sey UOnoE SWL 2INSUS 0] POMAIAAIL 9q pInoys suonedijdde
rpajusudfduy 30N 0107 1sndny ré pingr pue ug[Jl oY} UO SSed0® Ios() | €
urpea(q
uonejudwofdury o o
SNIB)S/sSa1304 g eSO Auorig UONEP U0 P
V XIGNAddY 11/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATHALIVAO - LIAAY TYNYIINI FLLIOTIC




Page 112

L1 98eg

11/0107 Woday ¢ Jeuren() — 1pny [euii] AsBuLiel] JO ySnoiog uopuo

[1/€0/1€ -auljppad
waIsAs ayppdn jonuvul » 2IDSYSUL J[IM 1AL Y] WLIdTUT Y]

ur "Jy-1 pun swaisds juowdnd ay; usomaq sanssi UOUDASUI
ayr [0 aipmp a4p [ [DAUD — [O4UOD S,201442S Yl O
apisIno s1 s1Yy1 sp papaoad aq 03 2]qp s1 21pp uouPUIWI]AULL ON

JIIIST amwpdp) puawaSvun

"paAIR0al syuswiAed 10] payoayd
ST gvS ‘peropdwos Ajjewnio} are suoneoijdde 210joq Agqaioym
podoeAdp U99q SBY PUNOIBYIOM B WILDIUL 9y} Ul ‘IOAIMOY
‘POAJOAUT $1500 0] anp jussaid je Jea[oun s 21ep uonejuSWLdW]

"suI0 -9 pue uoneordde jeli0d
Suruue[d oY) 0} POJIOUOIAI I8 J0BLISIUI
Sundieoay] Yyse) oy} BIA PIAISIRI sjustuAed
[[¢ eyl QINSUD pOYS SIY] IOISAS
sjuowiArd-2 AoBuurl o1} ®iA uopneoijdde
plIng1 pue 211Sgosm ASSULBL Y} UO SULIO]
-3 se [[om Se uB[dl pue [BlOd Juiuue(d
oYl WO} POAISOSl SJuoWARA  2[I0U02AI

rpojuonmdfduwy Apaed | (0107 ISn8ny [¢ z 0] paysigese 2q pmoys empaooid V| 9
"S5300Y
or[qnd  10] POMIBWI  JOU  STUSWIIBNY
pUB $SOSBO JOOIJJ0 JUSWIADIOIUY o
‘sojeoridnp
ou 2l 210U} oinsue o1 suonedijdde
pUEA Uim suonesrjdde prop SuDpay) o
‘suorjeorjdde proa pue 931dwioou] e
159580 SUIMO][O] 91} 0} POIIW]
jou ySnoyi podoeadp 2q pInoYS ST
"a[Bosown} 01j10ads
e unpma pamnber st asuodser B om0UMm
auipea( e .
: uoneyuawmddur] : |
mﬂﬁ_m\mmﬁuo.&  ewisLiQ Suonag UONRPUITTI0IY BEM |
V XIANAddY 11/0107 LIOdAY LIANY ATYALIVAO - LIANV TYNJIIINI ZLLIOTAd




Page 113

Q1 @%egd

11/0107 Hoday ¢ 1ouend) — Npny [eueiu] Asfuuey Jo ySnoiog uopuo]

[ 10T Y24 [ £ -auljpva(] pasiaoy

"$so1301d uT JHoMm
s1 SIy L, “suolsiaoId A19A0091 29U} PUB PAIOPISUOD SOLIBUIIS 2IN[IE]
woIsAs 2yl sowiIno yYoIgMm pado[oAdp U9 SBY JUSWINOOP Y

[eHod Suruue(d 93 JO UOISA[OUL 2YJ, =

pue ‘pejeindod aie 1030031(]
JUBISISSY QU] JO S[IBIOp 10BIUOD [[Y o

:aansuo djoy 01 pajepdn
99  pnoys ue[d Aunuiuo) ssaulsng

:porwowdfduway Appied | (107 Isnsny [¢ Z jonuo) Surpping pue Juluue]d WALND YL, | 6
"TI0Z Y24 € 2Upna(] "SS24304d Ul AJJUdL4ND QUUDASOAJ
JDMAUDY 2ANIINAISDAUT 2Y) O SJUDWID[2 U0 PISDG UIYM 241]D2fJ2 ‘JouuBL AJoUI] € UI POI0Jsal
~1S03 2U032q []1M UORN]OS Y ISNGOL 240U D L2YIoYM dUTULIDIOP 0q ueo uoneoljdde pue JUSWIUCIIAUS ISAIDS
01 ApMAPUN 24D SUOLIDSSIAU] "SUOTIDAZPISUOD L2UOUL L0f dN]DA oty je omsue djoy o3 siseq zende1 € o
Aq pautn4isuod ‘pajusuio]dul] u22q svY UOUNjos ¥ papnull Y P9159} 2Q PINOYS SIY], "UOTLII102ds WIISAS
SI1°T°ST 2wpd)) puamaSvun iy pue speuoo ojeudoidde “uowuonNAUD
IOAIdS [ 9y JO AISA0D9I Apeo 2y
"SUOISTA0Id AI9A0091 2} PUB PAIOPISUOD SOLILUSIS 2In[Ie] 10J poxmbor sdais Uy AJUUSp! PIROYS STY L
WoIsAS AU} SAUIPNO YoM Pado[oAdp UA9Q SBY JUSWNOOP Y "SWwRYSAS prngrue[dl 9y 10} pajuswaidun
:pajweud(dwy Apaeg | 0107 Isndny [¢ 1 9q p[noys ue]d AIpA000Y JeoisesiI V| 8
"$1N000]
21DSYIUON 01 ponIuqNS Josn pue s)dwolE $59008 PAISLIOYINEU[] e
u22q svy 15onbas JUPWIUDYUD [PULIOf | JOIUOD S, AdSULIDL] JO PUE WRISAS oY} 0 SS200% 15[} ©
ap1sINo 1 S1Y7 S» papiaodd aq 0] 2]qp st 21pp UoIUIWA]AUT ON .
[1°1°Sz 2mpd)) 1owaSouvpy {SPIRIJ 10 S2]1J W9lsAS 01 so8ury) o |
:SBaIE SUIMOT]O] Ul 10] POpIOdl
‘ponprwqns SI AjlAToR WRISAS [[B 1By ainsue djey
2q [[IM UOTBPUSWUIONOAI 2y} uodn paseq 1sonbal JUSWSIURYUS 03 JuowsSeuew Wim poje[duwios og prroys
ue ‘oroqe sjonuodo ndul oyl YUM SB ‘IOADMOH PIINFuod sty Sunmipne 1oy pommbol sojqel oyl
SU dV71-1 2y Jeyl Aem 9y} 01 anp oWy SIy) e pajusa[dun so1j0ads Aljeuonouny [rell JIpNE SInsuo 0)
2q 03 Sur103 10U ST UOHBPUSUILIOIAT SIY} 1Y} Padide uddq sey 1] PoMaIARI oq pinoys uoneardde prmgr pue
rpaywdundfduay Apaed | 10z Isnsny [¢ z ue[dl 23 uo 208[d Ul JIBJ} JIPNE JUSLMO oYY | L
 ouppesq
ot uonsyudwd[duay
SMEIG/ssaaB0ag [euisiIQ Suotig . HONBPUITITIO9Y] JE
V XIANHddV [1/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNIFLINI TLLIOTIA




Page 114

61 98ed

11/0107 Hoday ¢ Iouend) — ipny [ewralu] LA98uLieH Jo y3noiog TOpuo]

1oyuny v 10} sfesodoid 01 pa] Sey uopenis 108pnqg JuSddL
oyl ‘1oqueidog Aq posijeuUly 9 PINOM JSIYl Jey) UOHUSIUL Y}
sem )1 pue dn umeIp uooq sey seinpadord paxmbax oyl Jo 181 Y

20107 1snSny ul juawaSvuviy wiodf awpd)

"SSUNOaW Wed) JJEIS 18 PIsSsnosIp
u2aq pey sampedcoxd posijeuly oyl IBU} POULIOJUI QJOM A\

"901AI0S 913 10] P2IR[dOD JUSUSSISSE SPAdU Y} JO
S}NSSI U} Y SUI UI JJBIS IO] POUTRUIRI SPI0OdI FUIUTR) Y}
2SI[ENUSD 01 A1) 01 UaYe) Surdq APJUSLINO SI UOIOR JeY} JOFBURN
poddng ssoursng oy} Aq POWLIOJUI JI9M A\ "PAUIBIUIBUW dIOM
sSop Suwen ‘pojdwes suied) 921y} [[B 104 ‘JoUBLUI S JIOUNO)D
oyl UO O[Qe[lRABR QpRW pUE ]JjBIS 0} PIIBdIUNWIWOd SURq
210J0q pastfeul} Suleq Jo ssedoid oyl ul st sey yoed uononpur Uy

“MOTASI QOURINSSE
Ayrpenb Sunieme oI J0 JEULIO] JJeIP Ul [[1S oIe Yyorgm soInpaosoid
QWIOS 2B 210V} 18U} PUNOJ SBM }1 POSI[RUI] UAdQ 9ABY JUIOS
pue podo[oAdp US0Q 9ABY 2S9U} JO Isowl YInoyyy ‘soampadsoid
pue sowrjod moyl Sunepdn Ajny jo ssoooid oyl ur orom
DOTAIOS U UM SWIR) o) “Jipne dn-mo[[oJ Ino Jo Suwi} 8y} 1y

payuoudjduwy Apaeg

010T YdIBIN 1€

oY} JO UONBUIWASSID oU) JoJ sooe(d ul
ind oq pnoys ssecoid B ‘IJelS 01 9[qR[IBAB
apew Suleq sampaooid oyl 0} ‘uonippe uj

"‘papraoxd
Sumureny pue sypfs ul sdeS [ Supiooax
‘pels yoes 1oy 1day oq pnoys Jo] Surues
® 18} pUE pojepdn pur PamoIlAdil 9q PINoYS
JJe1s mou 01 uea1d oed uoponpul oyl 3By
POpUSWILIODaI IoUUNY ST 3] ‘Juswefdeusl
IOIeS AQ JJO pPOUSIS pUB  DPOMIIAI
A[euio} 2q uey) pinoys ‘supjd Iiom
O }[Ing 99 01 ANiqIsuodsar Fuimaisl
AJTJUSP! PUE S[ONUOD UOISIdA 2ABY PINOYS
yomym  ‘sompadord oyj], padopoasp am
9S91} “ISIX0 Jou Op saInpadoid 21oUMm 1B}
puE SIOIAIRS SUISnOy AlUNWIWO)) pue
0159jBeN)S JO 2IMONISAI 9OIAIS [OUM,
oyl woy Suninsal ssonorid [ruoneiedo
Mau oy 10opje1 Aledoid pue oep-oi-dn
oIe 9SoU} JBY} 2INSUS 0} 90IAISS oY) UIHM
wea} A19A9 SUlIdA00 sainpaooid juaumd [je
JO MIIADI B 93[BIISPUN DPINOYS JUSWRASRURIA

01

NOILVAOWINOIDOV AAVIOdINIL

INHANOGYIANA NVFAO

‘up]d
oy} ul pspupoul 2q pmoys suoneoiidde
ueldl pue prngl 2yl Jo  AIDA00DI
oy} 0} Sune[al S[IBIRP AU} ‘PIR[duWIod UM

'011sgem AsGurrey
oYl UO Pasn SwoJ-2 pue AJi[BUONOUN]

aurpeaq
uonejudmdfdury ; ;
S B)S/559450.4 _aEw_..O Aoy 0T BPUIUINIOINY FEN
V XIANHddV L1/0107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TYNIAINI TLLIOTAd




Page 115

07 288

11/0107 voday ¢ muend) — pny [euseiu] Asfuuey Jo yfnotog uopun

"T10C YdIBIA JO SUI[PESp 9U) 210J9q
pojuow[diur 9q [[IA UOHBPUSIIWIOJAI STy} Jey} pojoadxo si
1 pue opew Suloq s $s01501d JUS[[R0OXF QUIWRISOI] 9I8)) [BI00S
JO UOIBULIOJSUBL] o1} Uim oul] ul pajepdn aq [[Im ‘[enue]y
JUSUISSBUEBIA 2J8)) 29 JUSUWISSASSY o3 Jurpnpoul ‘sainpaooid [[e
18U} POULILJUOD DABY JUSWZBURA - (9np 19K JON) $$3180.1g uf

[TOC YoIeN

"[OIU0O UOISIdA JO 25N 2y} ySnosy
‘30 poauleidl 9q PINOYS SIU} JO S0USPIAT
‘9J0YM B SB [IOUNOD 91 JO S$2AN03[qO
pue uowoaIp 01391enS oY} UM QUI] UL
QIe SJULIUOD S} Jey} 2Insuo 0 ‘pajepdn pue
POMIIAQI ST [BNUBIA JUSWSSRUBA 9I8)) DUB
JUSWISSISSY 9] 1BY) PIPUSWIIOOSI SI 1]

I

HLIVEH TVINTA

SEIDIAYES ALINAWIOD % TANLTND ‘SLINAV

USDUDJN 20uv1]duio))
P JUDUANDIOL] /| UOIDPOUWUIODDY LdDL0dUMA] / J2SVUDI
SSU] PUD SIUGUISSISSY SUISNOF] [4201[J0 2]q1su0dsay

[ 107 Y240 -2uljppap pasiasy

110T YoIeIN Aq pastjeuly
dIe S2INONIS WBD) PASIAdL IS[IYM UOTRPOWIIOdde Areroduo)

01 UONR[AI UI SJUDWIO[O 9OUBUI} U} UO 3Oeq P[OY 0} Pasu ® oq
Aew 210y} pojordwod aq [im soinpooold o) IS[IYA\ 2INJonIsal

"SUOTSSas BuysLiq
pue Jururen) ®vIA JJEIS B 031 Seinpeocoxd

at miﬁw /SS2130.1J

umpEIq
uoneyuawddury
[eui3LQ

Aypiong

o | :oﬁ«ﬁﬁoﬁ%cua%

A

¥ XIONFddY I1/0107 LIOdAA LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNMIINI ALLIOTIA




Page 116

17 °3eg 11/010T Woday] ¢ muend) — Ipny [euIoiu] A98ULel Jo Y8nolog uopuo]

PRITWIT] NSIBWIYO Y, AUIN0 ], 311I0[3(] 1O IRQIIR Y

"SULIYJ JOQUUIAW S PUB T 1 1(J JO 2IMonis [e39] 2 Jo uondiIosap poyie1ap g J0J JnOqeS{n’ 0031109 Mmm
20s oseo]d sennue juopuadepur pue ojeredes AjeSe] ose suuy Iequiowl asoym ‘odjuerens Aq paywn Auedwood oyeaurd N B (L TLIC,) PRITUTY
NSIBWIYO | 2YONO0 ] 2NIO[(J JO W Joquuiatl WopSury paimy) 3y} ‘JT7T aN0[R(] JO AIRIPISqNS © ST PaTWl] NPNY [RUIANU] J0109S I[N 2UoN01 29 2n10[a(]

‘Z91S8SH ON SO[EA\ PUE puejSus wl parolstSeay wWOpBUTY patruf) “YI¢ VHOT UOPUOT 1021S MaN S[NIT [ ‘9SNOH [[IH :201J0 paraisifay]

“PAIIWILT JIPNY [BUISIUY JOTO3S OI[qd SYONO T 29 2107 0 $SOUSIRTAI 212 SNTO[S(] O} SIVUAIFIRT JUIWNOOP ST U]

1107 Arenuep
TOPToTY

P JIPRY [RUIB)U] 103998 AR 2YIN0J, 2 °

"pIeog SpIBpUE]S SOURINSSY PUR JIPNY [BUONRBWINU] 3 Aq panssI (00§ TV S]) Siuewadedus 20URINsSsSY U0 PIEPURIS
[eUOTIRIISIU] U YA 9[qerediioo j0u SI 170dol JIPNE [RLLDIUL INO Ul PIpIBME [3A9] SOUBINSSE O] WISISAS JONUOD [BUI2IUI 2[QRIAI B JO DOUBUIIUIRTE Oy}
107 Juepodun §1 JuoweSeurl Aq SUOTIEPUSUIIIOR] IO JO uoneuswajdu A[9Wn PUR 9ATOR]JT "SIUSWINO0P 383 JO AIONUSYINE 2] 2INSUI 01 PUB IO 1IPNER
1mo jo sesodind a1y} 10J SUOTIOBSURI PUE SPIOOAT SUNUNOIOE IOY) 0 $$3008 [N st oplacid 01 JusteSeurt U0 A[21 9/ YONS S8 DU 20UBOYINSLS PUR SLI 15918218
J0 Suraq se juowoSeuew Aq PIIJIIUSP! SB SEAIE UO SNOOJ 01 PAufisap ale saImpadoid Jpne [BuIdlu] "PNnell SAISN]joo jsulesz Jooid g 10U AW PUB 20UBINSSY
2INOSqe J0U PuE J[qrUOsEal IpIA0Id AJHO Ued [0NUOD [RUIIUI JO SUINSAS PUNOS USAT "SSULIB[MSLI JO Pnell Jo Auiqissod oyp 01 spedal aavy 01 paimnbal
oIe “pIoM Iar Sunonpuod ur ‘SIoNpny  AJLe[nSalil IO prnelj JO S9OUBISWNOID [[B AJNUSp! 01 uodn Poyjel JOU ‘S[ONUO0D [BWISUL U} SISSIU{BAM DU SIITU21S8
e Ayiuapl 03 uwodn paljel 2q 10U P[NoYs Jpne [BuINul Aq pauLiopad YIoMm PUR TUSWOSBURW YIM S1S3 SSNLIB[NSaL 1910 DU PNERI JO UO0L0218p pue uonuaAlid
9yl pue S[ONUOD [BUISIUT JO WaISAS punos e Jo] Ayjiqisuodsar oy jeyy osiseydwn apy  seonoerd juoweSeurw punos jo uonedijdde a1y 107 soniiqisuodsar
$,JuotraSeur 10] AIMIISQNS € St UayE) 2q JOU P[NOYS pue J0u SI JIOM JIPNE [BUIUl Jo soueuuiojrad oy potuswoaydur are Aoy 21052q 10edwl [[n] I19T) 101 noA
Kq passasse 2q pInoys s1uaweAcIdl J0§ SUONEPUAUWIHOO9Y "Ope 2q 1S Tey} $IUaaA0Idwl [[© 10 1STX2 1BY] SISSOUIBOM 21} [[B JO UATRIRIS 2AISUII 210D

© A[LIESSD09U JOU SIE PUR SIOA JIPNE [BUIUI INO JO 9SIN0D dY) JULIND UONUINE INO 0] dWBd YoIym oS0y} AJuo 2ie podol ST Ul POSIBI SIONRUW oy

“/.0[2q INO 1S SUONBIIWI] 31f} JO Siseq o uo patedaxd st yorgm 1rodar sty 103 AN[IqIsuodsar axE) 2 pn

ANIGISUOdS JO UG

V XIONHJIY 11/0107 LYOd Y LIAAV ATIALAVAO - LIGNY TVNIALNI ALLIOTAA



Page 117

Z 1o | ebed

YOIs Ho
1S|IUM 8Jeymssie
Pupuom
pasodul oahojdwse
uoljoues Areuyidiosiq b L L 12y} uopebe|y
wsLAo|duwe EIITVETS
J8Ul0 paJejospun s, 81doad
pey asho|dws Bunoj
V/N 0 0 b 1ey; uoyebayy pue usupiyd
UMBIPYHM sinoy
uoneoyddy 13 pPa10BLU0D BuLInp
wewAojdwe
ps1e|dwoo [eaddy Jay1o Bupjeuspun
ashoidwe 2018198
pessiws|g #9kojdw3 ! L L 12y} uopebelly | @Anoex3 ey
S8jUOW U0 10
pessiwsid b F - ey} jo uopebayy
1ONPUODSIA
SS0J0)
passiwsig L L L 10 uonebe|y
po19|dwoo jeaddy obpeg
anjg wenpnel} $901AI8G
B pesn aaAojdwe ALUnuIoON
pessiwsid b H L 1ey} uonebajly | @ 2inyng ynpy
uonebiisanuy|
Areundiosiq
01 109[qgns 0L0g/eL/Le
{umown} 1) SI90140 1e uanoud | pajebiiseaul
(3) enjep | swooinQ Areundiosig JO "'ON SOSED JO "ON | $9Se2 j0 "'ON | adA] Awejnbail a1ei0108.41Q

01/600¢ WOH4 4/ 8 0L/¢L/L€ - 0L/¥0/10 A3 LVOILSIANI SILIEVINDIHH! — LidNV 3SNOH NI

g XiAN3ddVY




Page 118

Z 10 g ebegd

LE FL 4 je10]
UMeJIpyiA eaddy 0L/8002 4/8
uone2oje
pasoduwil Buisnoy Jenbeil WBUWILOMAUT
uonoues Areuldiosig L L L 10 uoneds)y uBgiN
$80JN0s8)
pasnsiuw
uonoy seioidws
Areuydiosig buipued ! L L 12y uonedsjly
ysep Jsyl
WwoJ} sSaUIsSnNg
e Buyun
s1 @8iojdwue
passiwsiq e@aAojdwg L L L 1eU1 uonebely
M2IS HO
1SIUM aleymssie
Sunjiom
paubisey saAojdw3] L L L 10 uonedey
poe|dwon) jeaddy 0L/600¢ 4/¢
ares pue| Jzinbe.il £92JN0S8Y
poessiwsi(] 9skojdwg L L L Jo uonebeyy eyziodion
SHSIA 82w 01
ERIISEIN pejel esfojdws
Aq pepu3 joesuo) b L L 12yl uopebely
uonebiisoauj
Areundiosiq
01 109l[gns 0L0zg/2L/LE
{umowy 1) S190110 12 uenoud | poiebiisaaul
(3) enjea | swoonQ Areuydiosiqg 10 "ON SOSED JO "ON | Sose2 jo "OoN | odAj Aiueinbaij s1BI0102.41Q

d XIAN3ddV

01/600¢ WOH4 4/ 8 0L/¢L/LE - 0L/¥0/10 A3LVOILSIANI SAILIHVINDIHU! — LIANY ASN0OH NI




Page 119

Appendix C
Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis October to December 2010

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 October 2010 - 31 December
2010.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who
» hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
e Agency Workers

: Legend

Adults, Culture & Community Services ~ AS
The Children & Young People’s Service G
bepérate” ﬁeédumesm o o CR
People & Organisational Development PO
Policy, Performance, Partnership & Comms PP
‘Urban Environment S wE
Harmgeycoum” o . HGY o

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

» Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and ssek improvemenis in
behaviour

» Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

» Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

» Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

»  Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

o Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

» Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)



Page 120

Appendix C
Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

E‘HDirecto‘ra’[e | Casﬁés“Opren | Casés Clovséd - 'No of cyases‘ No,ofkerﬁ'bléy”eéék

>R N

Please, note that the total number of cases is 72, but this only represents 66 employees. The reason
being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

s Urban Environment has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at
2.60% in this quarter

s 35 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

Stage o  Cases Oﬁen ~ Cases Closed Total | %
Invest. - not suspended - 14 17 31 43
Invest. - suspended 17 12 29 40

o : ; . 1 | . Y \

Appeal 3 6 9 : 13

Total - 35 ; 37 | 7N 100

Zofé



Page 121

Appendix C
The following table identifies the outcomes of the 37 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

' ; Invest. - Invest. - Invest. -  Invest. -
- Outcome : not ‘

suspended = Suspended - appeal - ET

Compromise agreement 0

Total %

o
o

DIS Appeal Dlsmussed

: Dis. Appeal Part Upheld
Dis. Appeal Upheld |
DIS Appeal WxthdraWn | o
D' sﬁ.nysmxssal Sl
DISET Dlsmxssed o
Dis. ET thhdrawn :
D|s Final Written Warmngw |
. i‘ks‘_wNo Actlon L
Dis. Other
fk:v[i)ie._Relegatson/Demotson N |

Dis. Resigned :
Dis. Verbal Wamlng o
DIS Wn’[ten Wammg P
:Escalated o next stagé

NOOOW-=20OO0OO0O0O0®»O 0o o
NO DWW SN0 = s N O OO O
-
~

00O W O O N OO 4.0 0 O O

Suspension Lifted
" Total | :

b
'\l
—
o
N O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0000 =440 00 0.0 O

'® O 0O O 0O OO0 0 OO0 OO0 OO0 o0 oo

w
\’
-
o

‘O

s 19% of cases resulted in Dismissal

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases

iReason | Cases Open Cases Clbsked ’Total H %
;Assaui‘t 0 0 | | 0 | 0
;Attendance o 1 z 6 | 7 10
Behaviour | 10 EE | 2 29
Fraud / Theft 8 3 1 15
| 3 1 . 6
Negligence 9 11 ? 20 - 28
Other : 4 5 | 9 | 13
Total | 35 37 ; 72 100

Mlsuse of resources

» The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour al 29% and 28% for Negligence
Jofd



This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Ethnic kClaes
B&ME 18 45
‘White 10 42
Not Declared 00
Total 28 42

Page 122

Disciplinary Case employee representation
by Ethnicity and Gender

Female

CTotal %

| Total

l\/lale

22
14

2

38

%

-
58
100
58

40

2
66

All

- Total

04

Appendix C

%

61
36
3

100

e 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is significantly
higher at 58%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Dir

. VENB&ME 8 62

;AS

R
?PO
PP
UE

HGY

Ethnlc
. Group

'QB&MEE
lB&ME‘
iB&MEE
BaME
B&ME

B&ME

Disciplinary Case employee representation by

Ethnicity and Grade Band
Total no. in grade band WF = % of total dlSClpllned employees in Dlrectorate)

PO4-PO7
wE

f 801805;

Scs—soz

38

o

Py
W
o oo o O

L
O ;i
R

L
e | ;
0 2 20
20 40
20 e
| 100
© 20 -
0
§20;
o
20
67
-
8 13
09 45

W N = O 000 NONW oW

ke
o

N
i
m\smcsm«-xo-x—xo-a.p'r\):\)m.-sé—tooof—l

O
-t
o

Po1P03§

T

»b»\l(;.)l\)-—‘*l\JOl\JOOOf\)—*—Lﬁb‘—*‘(‘D‘OOO;

-
vl

0
0

S

20
10

10

0

0

7
13

11

o

17

s

20
0 3
40

a0

20

i
N

\zmooo-—&o—sooom—x—x’co;oaﬂooo‘oiof—l

45

ml

CWEL T

mmoooooooooooool\)?l\:jo:ooo;-—l

 TOTAL
o
8§ 62
5 38
13 100
e
e
S N
e
40
10 100
100

‘oo o o

o o :

1

O .
1100
5 100
. |
5

5 100
10 67
5 33
15 100
40 63
24 38

64 100

W W o o o0 oo o000 000 o,

NB: 2 employees are excluded from the above table due to not having an ethnicity declared

4 of

o

Bath employees are from Adults, Culture & Comms Directorate and in salary band SC1-5C5



Page 123

Appendix C
Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases
Case status - Total |
‘No.ofcaseshead 9
No. of cases not concluded u 17
No. of cases not concluded - leaver | 3 :
ETotalb ~ o 29

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 29 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If a case has not concluded by the end of the quarter, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the suspension to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

61- . 121-  181- 5240+; Total * Total daysof = Max.

120 180 = 240 cases days  total  Days
: f | : f cases .

Total
- Directorate =~ 1-60 . cases
: - heard

AS 5 2 o 7 35 52 9 1

c 31 9 1247 139 289 2
, o

‘CR 14.

o o o o
o o » o
e

o 5 379 76 92
0

PO 0 1 12 12 12

<o

PP 1o o o 0o 1 54 54 54
UE 4 0o 1 0o 1 6 58 98 372 3
HGY 14 8
fTotaicases
- closed

14 2 29 2743 95 872 9

6 2 0 2 2 12

On average, 95 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

-y
[



Page 124

Appendix C

The chart below illustrates the average and maximum number of days taken for a suspension case by
Directorate for the quarter.

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

450 -
400
350
300
250 |
200
150
100
50 |

B Avg. days Max. days ‘

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter for a rolling year and highlights
Haringey Council’s average number of days per case.

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case
by Quarter

200 =

160 -

120 4

Jan10 - Mar10 Apr10 - Juni0 Jul10 - Sepi0 Oct10 - Dec10

Total Number of Cases B Average Days per Case



Page 125 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 3 February 2011

Report Title: Risk Management update Quarter 3 2010/11

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources J @W%/« 2 !! i j /[

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on compliance with the
corporate risk management policy for the management of risk registers across the
Council.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the compliance with the risk
management strategy for the completion of risk registers across the Council.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and
provide information on its implementation across the Council, the corporate Policy
progress reports are provided on a regular basis for review and approval by the
Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable




Page 126

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the
authority. This report focuses on the compliance with the corporate risk management
framework for risk registers during the third quarter of 2010/11.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the monitoring of
compliance by Directorates to the Council’s risk management framework forms part
of the annual audit programme. This is an important function and it is positive that
no non compliance or recommendations for improvement are being highlighted to
the Committee at Qtr 3.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

-10.1 This report deals with how risk registers are managed across all areas of the
Council. Improvements in managing risks and controls will improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports.
Their comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance
with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to implement the Council’s risk management framework is part of the
contract with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive
tendering exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs
of this contract and managing the corporate risk management policy are contained
and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 127

departments manage risks as part of the routine work to achieve their business
plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix 1 — Update on risk registers Quarter 3 2010/11

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council’s Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The latest version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 25 March 2010.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy in respect of risk registers be presented to the
Committee on a quarterly basis. The review and testing of risk registers forms part of
the 2010/11 annual audit plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on
25 March 2010. This is an ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage
identified risks are effective and operate as intended.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 All risk registers are managed electronically at business unit, department and
corporate level. Appendix 1 shows the latest position for all Business Units and
Directorates as at the end of quarter 3.

16.2 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief Executive’s
Management Board and reported annually to the Audit Committee. The last review by
the Audit Committee was completed at its meeting on 24 June 2010. The corporate
risk register was subject to its quarterly review at the CEMB meeting on 16 November
2010.

16.3 During 2010/11, a number of organisational changes have taken place across the
Council. The functions of the previous PPP&C directorate are currently managed by
other directorates and their risk registers are incorporated into the new reporting
structures as follows: Safer Communities Business Unit now reports to the Director of
Urban Environment; Policy and Performance and Communication and Consultation
Business Units now report to the Assistant Chief Executive — People & Organisation
Development. Appendix A reflects these changes.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 128

730 1 98eqd

| Loz Aenuer bujuoissiwwoy B S90S NPy ng SO0V | S2
| LOZ Aenuer saoinieg oibejens g buipienbajes ng SO0V | V¢
L L0z Aenuer $90IABS AJUNWWOYD @ 8IN)NY S)NPY IGETq (SOOV) seoines €c
AUNWIWOD ¥ ainynDd synpy
010¢ 1890300 SHIOMISN S,UaJpliyd ng SdAD [44
0102 4890100 Juswdojaas( % poddng ssauisng ng SdAD | iz
010¢ 4290100 uoisn|ou| '@ spJepuels |00yos ng SdAD 0¢
0102 48403100 saljiwed g uaipliyp ng SdAD 6l
0102 4990100 yvr/buipsenbsjes ydog SdAD 8l
0102 4890300 9019 §,9|doad BUNOA @ UaIp|IyD )deg (SdAD) | LI
80IAleg s,9|doad BunoA 9 ualp|iyd
010z Jeqwads( sa2IAI9g Auadold sjelodio) ng ST} 91
010z Jeqwaoa( JusiaINo0ld 91e40di0) ng T Gl
010¢ J19qWIBAON Juswabeue sty B IpNy ng d0 vl
L Loz Aenuer aoueUI{ 8)el0dio) ng o) cl
010¢ J8qWIBAON uojjexe] [Bo07 R sjjsusg ngd }=[0) cl
010z Joqwisos( S92INISS Jawo)sn) ng I Te) Ll
110z Aenuer SOOI || ng 30 0L
110z Aenuer S90IMDgG [ebaT ng d0 6
0102 1890120 $90IN0s9Yy 8)el0dio) 1da (YD) s92in0say 81el0dio) e}
0102 49490300 Bujuies] g Juswdojprs( |euonesiuebio ng aor®d — 30 L
0102 4890100 poddng Jaquia|y g Adeloows( [e207] nd aoxd -390 9
0102 4890100 $92JN0SvY ueWwnH ng aoxd - 30 g
010¢ 4890100 PoueWIOHAd % Adljod ng aoxd - 30 4
010¢ 42903100 uolejNsuoy g UoediuNWWoy ng ao®d — 30 €
010z 48903120 Juswdojaaa(] JeuoiiesiuebiQ @ ajdosd ydaq (aow%d) uswdojprag
[euonesiuebiQ ¥ 9jdosd — 30 Z
010Z JoQWIDAON Jo1sibay ajelodio) | syelodio) gnN3aD - ayesodio) L
MaIADI
juasal Jsow jo aje( apL 193s1bay ysiy [9AaT] jusawiedaq

1 xipuoddy

Arewwing ajepdn 19)s169y %Sy - L1/0L0Z € J91enDd Hoday ssaiboid




Page 129

C3o 7oBed

010¢ Jequaoad SojiUNWWo) J8jeg ng an [43
| L0g Aenuer juswdojaraq Adljod B buluueld ng an| ie
L L0z Adenuer S9JIAISS Buljjuol ngd an 0¢
L L0z Asenuer saoInleg BuisnoH Ajunwwo) % dibsjens ng an 62
L L0g Adenuep JUSWIUOIIAUT ueqin deQ (3IN) uswuonAug ueqin 8z
| L0Z Aenuer BujuieaT g sauelqi ‘aun)nd ng SOV LZ
| Loz Aenuer S8JIAIBG UONBJI09Y ng SO0V 9c

FEEY
juadal jJsouw jJo ajeq oL J93s1b6ay ysiy ELER juawuedaq

1 xipuaddy

Krewwng ajepdn 19)s16ay %Sy - L1/0L0Z € J91end Hoday ssaisbolid




Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 131 Agenda Iltem 14

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 3 February 2011

Report Title: Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) Inspection

s

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources ;Q&J{‘U ;&(

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

[y

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform Members of the inspection visit made to Haringey by the Assistant
Surveillance Commissioner in November 2010.

1.2 To inform members of the recommendations made by the OSC and the Council’s
response in order to ensure these are appropriately addressed.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council complies with
relevant legislation.

3. Recommendations
3.1That the Audit Committee notes the content of the OSC inspection report.

3.2That the Audit Committee approves the action plan to address the recommendations
made by the Surveillance Commissioner.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’s arrangements for
corporate governance and compliance with its own and other regulations as part of
its Terms of Reference. Compliance with legislation in relation to the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) falls within this remit. In order to facilitate this,




Page 132

reports on use and external inspection reports are provided for review and
consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Head of Audit and Risk Management acts as the lead operational officer in
relation to compliance with RIPA legislation for the Council. This report outlines the
results of the recent inspection of the Council’s policies and procedures by the Office
of the Surveillance Commission and focuses on:

e The conclusions of the inspector on the Council’s policies, procedures, training
and application/use of RIPA in practice; and
¢ The recommendations for improvement and how the Council will address these.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
comments as follows.

7.2. In view of the commendable findings contained in the OSC report, there are no
direct legal implications arising out of this report. Further, the action plan produced to
deal with the minor recommendations found on inspection, are a proportionate and
effective solution.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has been consulted on the content of this report and
notes that there are no financial implications to highlight.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how RIPA legislation is applied and used within the Council.
Use of directed surveillance could have an impact on the community as a whole if
used incorrectly; therefore it is important to ensure that safeguards are in place to

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 133

enable the council to comply with the legislation. Used in accordance with the
requirements of the Act, directed surveillance can enable the council to improve
conditions for those who live and work in the borough.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation has been undertaken with relevant service managers where the
application of RIPA is included in their responsibilities to ensure that the
recommendations will be addressed.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The costs of
ensuring the Council complies with RIPA legislation and operating guidelines are
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management and relevant
service departments’ revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Action Plan
Appendix B - OSC report

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1An inspection of the Council’s policies and procedures relating to the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act, 2000 (RIPA) was conducted by an Assistant Surveillance
Commissioner (ASC), from the Office of Surveillance Commissioners, on 24
November 2010.

15.2 The inspection focused on directed surveillance and covert human intelligence
sources (CHIS) and a range of compliance issues. Broadly speaking these were:
policies and procedures, completion of RIPA authorisations, training, and roles and
responsibilities, including the role of the Senior Responsible Officer which was
introduced in 2010.

15.3 A report on the outcome of the inspection was received by the Chief Executive on 13
December 2010 from the Chief Surveillance Commissioner, the Rt. Hon. Sir

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 134

Christopher Rose. This is attached as Appendix B. In summary, the report concludes
that the Council has good policies, procedures and training in place.

15.4Whilst the Chief Surveillance Commissioner stated that the council appeared to be well
placed to use the powers available to it under RIPA, the report at Appendix B does
contain two recommendations for improving the application of the required processes.

15.5The Council has confirmed that it accepts the Surveillance Commissioner’s
recommendations and will implement them in order to ensure full compliance with the
requirements of RIPA.

16. The Inspection
16.1The ASC met with the Head of Audit & Risk Management (the Council’s operational
- lead officer for RIPA), together with the Head of Enforcement to review the Council’s
use of RIPA.

16.2The ASC reviewed and discussed the Council’s policy and procedures documentation
in relation to their operation and best practice. A review of RIPA applications,
authorisations, renewals and cancellations was also undertaken. Feedback from the
ASC during the course and at the end of the inspection was positive on the
understanding and application of RIPA principles across the Council; on the Council’s
training for Authorised Officers, which was provided in-house by Legal Services; and
on the briefing provided to the Senior Responsible Officer in respect of their role and
responsibilities.

16.3 The ASC also visited the CCTV control room on the day of the inspection to review
the Council’s use of CCTV and RIPA implications, including the use of the service by
the police. Feedback from the ASC at the end of the inspection was again positive on
the CCTV control room operation, the officers’ understanding and application of RIPA
principles and the use of the service by the police.

17. The Report

17.1 The ASC did not find any material gaps in approach or compliance in the Council’s
use of RIPA. No omission in information required by the authorisation forms, or the
authorising officer statements (apart from one instance) was identified. However, the
ASC did make two recommendations to ensure the Council met best practice and
improved its existing processes. The recommendations made by the OSC are detailed
in Appendix A, which indicates how these are to be addressed and implemented.

17.2 The ASC did raise one point in his report (paragraph 22, page 4) which was not
discussed during the inspection visit. The Head of Enforcement has confirmed that
Legal opinion was sought prior to the release of any information regarding Enterprise
staff wrong doing. The conduct and collusion of the staff was material to the
determination of the offences and defences in this case. The Council was satisfied that,
following legal advice, the specific circumstances of the case facilitated the use of the
information obtained and no challenge was made of its use.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 135

| Jo | obed

010¢ Jequwisdeq ¢¢
paje|dwo)

‘poalby

"SuoIepuUsWILLIODa.

pue podey uoioadsul DSO 8y} Jo aoueldssoe
$,]12UN0Y 8y} BUILLLILUOD JSUOISSILUWOYD) 9OUEJ|IBAINS
$914D 8y} 01 81lUM pINOYs 8AIINOS8X3 81y ey

SJ9010 Buisuoyiny i
uswisbeuey

3Sid ¥ HpPNY O pesH

2 wiod Joy bulobuQ
"1 iod
10} | Log Aeniged |

"18S Usaq eAeY sajep

MBIABJ JBY} 8INSUS 0] JuslusbeUR MsiYy

® UPNY UIYUM suwiio) pele|dwoo Jo 1dieosl

UO UaMeuapun si %98Y2 |eul) & 1By} 8Jnsug
pue ‘eouepinb 8210 SWOoH

YIIM 80UBPIODOR Ul S81BP MSIAS) 81BIndo.
189S 0} SJ821y40 BuisLoyine [je puiwa. Ajjewio

|

J1m uswisbeUB YSIY B UPNY JO PesH 8yl
‘poaiby

'PJ008Y [eJlus) ayy ul paoeid eq

ueo Aey} 1Byl OS SWIO} UOIBSLOYINE 8U1 Ul SI80IHO
Buisuoyiny Ag pepJooal ale sejep Aidxe 1081100
pue sajep maiAal 8y} Jey} pue ‘0] paisype pue 18s
8Je S8Jep MIASI JBY] 84NSUS 0] UaMB] 8q aJed 1ey |
SuwLIO4 991 SWOoH

SJ9214O Buisuoyiny Iy
Juswabeuey

ASid ¥ HPNY O pesH

¥ od Jo) BulobuQ
"€ pue g ‘| swuiod
10} | 10g Aeniged |

"9sn Ul 8Je SWJoj

JUS.ND ey} ainsus 0} Juswabeuey Ysiy

Q UPNY UIYUM SWIo) pale|dwod Jo 1diedal
UO USyBUSPUN S| 308D |eul B ey} ainsus
pue ‘jels

JI8Y} O} SWLIO} pue s810U aouepInb 1sa1e| ay}
o sa1doo apinoud siao1yj0 Buisoyine 1ssnbau
‘sejou aouepinb panssi

-3J 98U} UIYyUM pPauIeluOd SULIO) 8yl asn Ajuo
pue swo} Buiisixe-aud Jo sa1doo Aosisep

0} 4821140 Buisuoyine ||e pulwai Ajewio
{SWI0} 9010

SWOH 8y} JO SUOISIBA 1S8]e| 8y} apnjoul

0} $8)0U 92uepInb Jua.IND 8yl atepdn

}

M JuswisBeueA MsiY B IPNY JO pesH ay |
‘pos.by

suoljesuioyine pue suoleolidde aininy |je ul pasn
9Q SWIO} Yd|Y 8Y} JO SUOISIaA 1S818] 8y} AJuo 18y |
SWIO- 90144 SWOH

Aujiqisuodsey
pue auljpeaq

asuodsay juswebeuep

uollepusiwodsy NSO

Vv Xipuaddy

NV'1d NOILOV — 010¢ H39W3AON LISIA NOILO3dSNI OSO




Page 136

The Rt Hon. Sir Christopher Rose

v Office of Surveillance
Commissioners

Chie HARINGEY Coy
Surve!llapce CHIEF EXECUT h I
Commissioner IVE'S OFF
. RIVER PARK HOUSE °0|
Restricted 1 DEC 2010 9™ December 2010
1'*"-—--_._...____
-‘.-—-—h—_‘—h—-_

M&.W

Covert Surveillance

On 24™ November 2010, an Assistant Surveillance Commissioner, Sir David Clarke,
visited your Council on my behalf to review your management of covert activities. | am
grateful to you for the facilities afforded for the inspection.

| enclose a copy of Sir David’s report which | endorse. You make infrequent, but
appropriate,use of your covert powers. You have a sound RIPA structure, with good
policies, procedures and training. All this is commendable. There are only 2
recommendations, but the first relates to a matter to which Dr Kolbert drew attention
following inspection 3 years ago and it must now be urgently addressed.

The recommendations are that only up to date RIPA forms be used and that review
dates must be set, recorded, placed in the Central Record and adhered to.

| shall be glad to learn that your Council accepts the recommendations and will see that
they are implemented.

One of the main functions of review is to enable public authorities to improve their
understanding and conduct of covert activities. | hope your Council finds this process
constructive. Please let this Office know if it can help at any time.

? ] @1(

Mr Kevin Crompton

Chief Executive

London Borough of Haringey
River Park House

225 High Road

London N22 8HQ

PO Box 29105 London SWI1V 1ZU Tel 020 7035 0074 Fax 020 7035 3114
Web: www.surveillancecommissioners.gov.uk email:oscmailbox@osc.gsi.gov.uk



~ Page 137

Office of Evelnce
Commissioners

OFFICE OF SURVEILLANCE COMMISSIONERS

INSPECTION REPORT

COUNCIL OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY
24 November 2010

Assistant Surveillance Commissioner:
Sir David Clarke

RESTRICTED




Page 138

RESTRICTED

* DISCLAIMER

B2 “J‘"Ihi"sk“r‘e;ﬁrt contains the observations and recommendations identified by an individual
surveillance inspector, or team of surveillance inspectors, during an inspection of the
specified public authority conducted on behalf of the Chief Surveillance Commissioner.

The inspection was limited by time and could only sample a small proportion of covert
activity in order to make a subjective assessment of compliance. Failure to raise issues in
this report should not automatically be construed as endorsement of the unreported
practices.

The advice and guidance provided by the inspector(s) during the inspection could only
reflect the inspectors’ subjective opinion and does not constitute an endorsed judicial
interpretation of the legislation. Fundamental changes to practices or procedures should
not be implemented unless and until the recommendations in this report are endorsed by
the Chief Surveillance Commissioner.

The report is sent only to the recipient of the Chief Surveillance Commissioner’s letter
(normally the Chief Officer of the authority inspected). Copies of the report, or extracts
of it, may be distributed at the recipient’s discretion but the version received under the
covering letter should remain intact as the master version. Distribution beyond the
recipient’s own authority is permissible but it is requested that the ‘Secretary to OSC’,
Office of Surveillance Commissioners, is informed of the named individuals to whom
copies or extracts have been sent, Any references to it, or extracts from it, must be placed
in the correct context.

% The Ofﬁce of Survelllance Comm1smoners (OSC) is not a publlc body hsted under the i
- FOI Act 2000, however, requests for the disclosure to a third party of any mfarmatmn 8
contalned wnhm thls report shouid be netxﬁed to the Secretary tco OscC.”

RESTRICTED




Page 139

Office of Surveillance

Commissioners
OSC/INSP/O75

Chief Surveillance Commissioner,
Office of Surveillance Commissioners,
PO Box 29105,

London,

SW1V 1ZU.

28 November 2010.

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

INSPECTION REPORT

Inspection date 24" November 2010

Inspector Sir David Clarke
Assistant Surveillance Commissioner

London Borough of Haringey.

1. The nature of the area served by the London Borough of /Haringey
(“LBH") remains as described in earlier OSC reports.

2. The Senior Corporate Management structure is headed by the Chief
Executive, supported by five Service Directors. The Chief Executive is
now Kevin Crompton, whose address is River Park House, 225 High
Road, London N22 8HQ.

3. The most recent OSC inspection of LBH was conducted by HH Dr
Colin Kolbert, Assistant Surveillance Commissioner, on the 3" March
2009. That was his third visit to LBH, and he once again reported
favourably and made only minor and readily achievable
recommendations.

4. The Council has continued to be a modest user of RIPA, having
granted only six authorisations since the last inspection. Four of these
were made under the “Safer Stronger Communities” umbrella, in
relation to vandalism, drug dealing and noisy disorder in housing areas.
The other two were under “Urban Environment”, one in relation to
alcohol sales to already intoxicated purchasers and the other in relation
to fly tipping.

RESTRICTED

PO Box 29105 London SWI1V 1ZU Tel 020 7035 0074 Fax 020 7035 3114
Web: www.surveillancecommissioners.gov.uk email:osemailbox@osc.gsi.gov.uk



5.

6.

Page 140
RESTRICTED

None of these applications had used the urgency provisions, none was
concerned with the likely acquisition of confidential information, and
none concerned Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS).

One application for directed surveillance was refused by the authorising
officer.

Inspection.

7.

| carried out the inspection on 24 November 2010 at the LBH's offices

at Alexandra House, Wood Green. | met the following council officers:

¢ Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management;

¢ Robin Payne, Head of Enforcement Service and an Authorising
Officer

These were the officers interviewed by Dr Kolbert at his inspection in

2009; indeed, Ms Woods was described by him as already a veteran of

his two previous inspections. These officers provide valuable and

commendable continuity to the Council's RIPA activities.

The inspection started with a discussion of the revised Codes of
Practice and OSC Guidance, LBH's RIPA management, policy and
procedures, the designated authorising officers (AQs), training, and the
actions taken on the recommendations in the last OSC report. | then
inspected the RIPA authorisations themselves before examining the
Central Record, for which purpose | briefly met its keeper Julia
Johnson, Principal Auditor. Finally | met Ms Woods again for a final
discussion before departing Alexandra House.

| then visited LBH's CCTV centre at Ashley Road, Tottenham Hale. |
deat with this separately, later in the report.

10.1 am grateful to all concerned, particularly Ms Woods, for their helpful

cooperation which greatly eased my task.

RIPA Structure

11.LBH'’s RIPA Procedure Notes, approved by Dr Kolbert at his last

inspection, were duly revised as recommended by him and have been
further revised to take account of the 2010 revisions to the Codes of
Practice. The Notes are clear and accurate, and include full
explanations of the requirements of necessity and proportionality.

12. The attached application forms are, however, not the latest versions in

that the paragraph references to the Codes of Practice relate to the
earlier Codes preceding the 2010 revisions. In particular, the important
box for “collateral intrusion” has a wrong reference and is therefore
misleading. This is easily remedied by downloading the current forms
from the Home Office website.

See recommendation

RESTRICTED 2



Page 141

RESTRICTED

13.The Procedure Notes include a useful provision that the Lead Officer
(Ms Woods) reviews the implementation of RIPA, as well as the policy,
on a regular basis. In practice she, together with Julia Johnson, act as
de facto RIPA co-ordinators and provide the necessary oversight of
LBH'’s RIPA activity.

14.1n the light of paragraph 3.28 of the revised Covert Surveillance Code,
LBH had appointed Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources, as
Senior Responsiblie Officer. | did not meet Ms Parker but | was
assured that she is familiar with RIPA principles and practice as a
former AO. Ms Woods showed me the clear and cogent briefing note
she had prepared for the SRO, setting out her duties and
responsibilities.

15. There are now ten designated AOs identified by their names and posts,
listed in an appendix to the Procedure Notes. All are appropriately
qualified as required by Sl 2010/521. They include the incoming Chief
Executive, who was previously Chief Executive of Luton Borough
Council and is therefore familiar with the role of AO for cases involving
confidential information. The AOs are carefully chosen and limited in
numbers, in such a way as to ensure that they are properly trained and
are regularly updated with any changes of law or procedure. In
practice, however, only two LBH officers have had occasion to act as
AOs in the period under review.

16. The procedure notes make clear that in the unlikely event of a CHIS
authorisation being considered, consultation must first take place with
the Head of Audit and Risk Management (Ms Woods) and with the
Head of Legal Services, and that specialist training for all relevant
officers would be required.

17.The Central Record is as described by Dr Kolbert in paragraph 9 of his
last report. The computer spreadsheet contains columns for all the
information now required by paragraph 8.1 of the Covert Surveillance
Code of Practice, but | found that the column for entering review dates
(not itself a requirement of the Code, surprisingly) was blank in most
cases. This reflects the fact that in some of the authorisations, no
review date was set, contrary to the guidance properly given in
paragraph 8.4.1 and 8.4.2 of LBH’s Procedure Notes. For the Central
Record to serve as a useful management tool, it should record the
review dates set by the AO when authorising, rather than recording
(after the event) the date on which the review has taken place.
Separate columns are provided for recording renewals and
cancellations.

See recommendation

18.1 enquired why LBH's use of covert surveillance seemed lighter than in
some London boroughs of comparable size. Ms Woods and Mr Payne
explained that they act as gatekeepers, challenging those who wish to
use these powers to justify whether they really need to do so, thereby

RESTRICTED 3



Page 142
RESTRICTED

testing the proportionality of such action before it reaches an AO for a
formal decision. This is commendable. They also explained that
increased information sharing and data matching techniques have
greatly reduced the need for surveillance, and that no RIPA
authorisations have been sought for Housing Benefit cases for some
years.

Training

19. The last training day was held on the day before the last OSC
inspection. | was shown the excellent training materials shown to Dr
Kolbert on that occasion. Further training is planned but has not yet
been fixed. Apart from the arrival of a new Chief Executive, the AOs
are unchanged.

20.Ms Woods explained that she provides regular email updates to staff,
as she did when the revised Codes of Practice were published earlier
in 2010. | am satisfied that the training needs of AOs and applicants
are met.

Examination of Records.

21.The Urban Environment authorisations, for which Mr Payne was the
AQ, contained good descriptions of the surveillance operations and of
the necessity and proportionality of them. However, no expiry dates
were entered, despite the prompts on the forms indicating how the time
and date of expiry should be shown.

22.1n one of these, in which surveillance was authorised to investigate the
unlawful depositing of waste by tradesmen, the surveillance revealed
LBH refuse collectors helping themselves to fruit and vegetables on
display outside a shop. In reliance on this evidence the men were
suspended from duty. It appeared to me that this use of the authorised
surveillance fell outside the terms of the authorisation and might have
been open to challenge.

23.The Safer Communities authorisations, for which the Head of that
service was AO, were (save in one case) thorough and well
documented. Necessity and proportionality were fully dealt with,
except in one case where the AQ did no more than tersely state that
“no other overt action would achieve the results required’. The fact
that her other authorisations were fully dealt with led me to think this
was a one-off error which would have been noticed on the next review
by Ms Woods. There was, however, a more systemic failure to record
expiry dates, save in one instance where an expiry date was specified
but did not comply with the prompt, being three months (without the
required deduction of one day) after the authorisation date.

See recommendation

24.The refused application was well documented. It was made by the
Children’s Service of LBH, and concerned surveillance to be carried out

RESTRICTED 4



Page 143

RESTRICTED

on the parents of a child who was the subject of ongoing care
proceedings, to ascertain whether they had resumed cohabitation and
potentially put the child at renewed risk. The AO gave full reasons for
his view that covert surveillance was not proportionate and was not
likely to achieve the hoped-for results. He might have added that the
stated purpose of obtaining further evidence for use in the care
proceedings was not an admissible purpose, not being for the
prevention or detection of crime.

CCTV

25.1 decided to visit the CCTV Control Room to see the operation for
myself and because it was not visited at the last inspection. | was
welcomed there by James Mehmet. | share Dr Kolbert's opinion, which
he formed on an earlier visit, that it is excellent. The close cooperation
with the Metropolitan Police continues. It so happened that two officers
arrived whilst | was there to view some recorded footage, which was
retrieved quickly and efficiently for them.

26.1 viewed the CCTV monitoring screens and discussed RIPA issues with
the CCTV supervisor lhsan Igbal, an employee of NSL Services Group
who have been contracted to LBH since 2008 to provide monitoring of
the community safety CCTV cameras. Mr Igbal was clearly well aware
of the circumstances in which the police must have and produce RIPA
authorisations before being permitted to use the CCTV in a targeted
operation, and he showed me several of the confirmation forms (“form
5429") which the police provide to him. These are not full copies of the
RIPA authorisations, but give sufficient detail of the operation, with the
identity of the police AO, to confirm to NSL and to LBH that valid
authorisations are in place.

27 My visit was interrupted by a fire alarm evacuation and | did not feel the
need to await the all-clear so as to return and inspect the other part of
the CCTV operation, which concerns driving and parking enforcement
and is not contracted out.

Conclusion

28.LBH continues to have a sound RIPA structure, with good policies and
procedures and good training. However, though Dr Kolbert's
recommendation at paragraph 18 was complied with and the then
revised form brought into use with the questions set out in a logical
order, | found that the latest version had not been downloaded. This is
a minor matter, but more significant was the failure to ensure that
review dates are consistently set by AOs. This can be readily
remedied in future authorisations.

29.1 make the following

Recommendations

RESTRICTED 5



Page 144
RESTRICTED

I. That only the latest versions of the RIPA forms be used in all future
applications and authorisations;

Il. That care be taken to ensure that review dates are set and adhered to,
and that the review dates and correct expiry dates are recorded by
AOs in the authorisation forms so that they can be placed in the
Central Record.

Poiy ks

David Clarke
Assistant Surveillance Commissioner

RESTRICTED



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2011/12 to 2013/14
	8 Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) - progress report
	9 External Audit progress report
	10 External Audit Plan 2010/11
	11 Annual Audit Letter
	12 Internal Audit Progress Report - 2010/11 Quarter 3
	13 Risk Management update - Quarter 3 2010/11
	14 Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) Inspection

